
TCEQ Interoffice Memorandum 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

To:   Mary Smith, General Counsel 
 
Thru:  Melissa Cordell, Assistant Deputy Director 
  Enforcement Division   
 
From:  Michael Parrish, Team Leader 

Special Functions Team 
 
Date:  May 16, 2024 
 
Subject:  Supplemental Information 

May 22, 2024 Commission Agenda 
Item No. 9 – Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC 
Docket No. 2022-1557-AIR-E 

 
Enclosed please find the following: 
 
Supplemental Information: 
 

• TCEQ Permit by Rule Registration Number 39039 
• TCEQ Storage Tank Registration Number 0001239 
• TCEQ Texas Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Stormwater Multi-Sector 

General Permit TXRNECC96 
 
 
Please do not hesitate to call Michael Parrish at (512) 239-2548 if you have any 
questions regarding this matter. 
 
cc:  Garrett Arthur, Public Interest Counsel 

Melissa Schmidt, Public Interest Counsel 
Gill Valls, Office of General Counsel 
Katherine McKenzie, Agenda Coordinator, Litigation Division 
Amy Settemeyer, Deputy Director, Enforcement Division 
Melissa Cordell, Assistant Deputy Director, Enforcement Division 
Rebecca Margain-Nunez, Executive Assistant, Enforcement Division 
Brett Lanham, Manager, Special Functions and Compliance Monitoring, 

Enforcement Division 
Michael De La Cruz, Manager, Air Section, Enforcement Division 
Yuliya Dunaway, Enforcement Coordinator Air Section, Enforcement Division 

 



 

November 21, 2022

 
Mr Eyad Albelbaisi
Operation Manager
Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC
4500 Great Trinity Forest Way
Dallas, TX 75216

Permit by Rule Registration Number: 39039
Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC
Project Description/Unit: Pro-Crete Ready Mix
City: Dallas, Dallas County
Regulated Entity Number: RN102390051
Customer Reference Number: CN605903574
30 TAC § 106.141

 
This is in response to your Permit by Rule (PBR) registration submitted through the online ePermits process
for your facility located near Dallas, Dallas County. Based on the information submitted and review completed
by the ePermits, this is an acknowledgement that Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC has certified emissions associated
with Pro-Crete Ready Mix under the Permit By Rule(s) listed above. For rule information see: 
www.tceq.texas.gov/permitting/air/nav/numerical_index.html. Records must be maintained in accordance
with Title 30 Texas Administrative Code § 106.8 to demonstrate compliance with the claimed PBRs.
 
As a reminder, regardless of the authorization mechanism, all facilities must be in compliance and operate in
accordance with all rules and regulations of the TCEQ and the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. Facilities
not operating in accordance with these rules and regulations, or that misrepresented or failed to fully disclose
all relevant facts in obtaining this authorization may be subject to formal enforcement action.
 
This action is taken under authority delegated by the Executive Director of the TCEQ. If you need further
information or have questions, please contact the Rule Registrations Section at (512) 239-1250 or write to the
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality, Office of Air, Air Permits Division, MC-163, P.O. Box 13087,
Austin, Texas 78711-3087.

Sincerely,

Kristyn Campbell, Manager

Rule Registrations Section

Air Permits Division

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality
 
[Project Number: 350555]

P.O. Box 13087   *   Austin, Texas 78711-3087   *   512-239-1000   *   tceq.texas.gov

How is our customer service?       tceq.texas.gov/customersurvey

www.tceq.texas.gov/permitting/air/nav/numerical_index.html
http://www.tceq.texas.gov
http://www.tceq.texas.gov/customersurvey


Texas Commission on  
Environmental Quality

(Non-Transferable)
Notice of Storage Tank Registration

Date of Issuance

03-Sep-2021
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This hereby certifies that the storage tanks owned and located as indicated below are duly registered with the 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality. (See below for owners and operators responsibilities.)

This certificate verifies tank registration ONLY, and does NOT certify this facility’s compliance with other 
TCEQ requirements, such as UST financial responsibility (e.g., insurance), technical standards (e.g., 
release detection, spill/overfill prevention & corrosion protection) or payment of Registration Fees.

TCEQ LPS Form WC09B1 (01-15-1999)

For The Commission
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NUMBER OF USTs
NUMBER OF ASTs

Important Information

After 12/22/98, the state's petroleum storage tank remediation (PSTR) fund is no longer an acceptable 
UST financial responsibility mechanism for corrective action.  Owners & operators of regulated
petroleum USTs must now maintain required coverage for BOTH corrective action AND third-party 
bodily injury/property damage by other allowable mechanisms (e.g., insurance).

If a confirmed petroleum release from an eligible storage tank was first discovered and reported to the 
TCEQ after 12/22/98, none of the associated cleanup costs are eligible for reimbursement or payment
from the state's PSTR fund. [Water Code §26.3512(b)(5)]

0001239FACILITY NUMBER82954OWNER ID NUMBER

TEXAS STAR READY MIX, LLC
EYAD ALBELBAISI
4500 GREAT TRINITY FOREST WAY

DALLAS, TX 75216-5019

TEXAS STAR READY MIX
4500 GREAT TRINITY FOREST WAY
DALLAS, TX 75216-5019



 

 

The No Exposure Certification (NEC) for the facility listed below was received on May 26, 2023. The intent to obtain a conditional exclusion from
permit requirements by certifying that there is no exposure of industrial materials or activities to precipitation or runoff, as allowed in the Texas
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (TPDES) stormwater Multi-Sector General Permit (MSGP) TXR050000, is acknowledged. Your facility's unique
TPDES MSGP stormwater authorization number is:
 

 
TCEQ's stormwater MSGP requires that facilities authorized under this general permit based on having no exposure of industrial activities to ensure
that industrial activities and materials are isolated from stormwater and stormwater runoff by storm resistant shelters. As a facility authorized to
discharge under the stormwater MSGP, all applicable terms and conditions related to this conditional exclusion must be complied with to maintain
coverage and avoid possible penalties. If this facility changes operating or management practices so as to result in exposure of industrial activities
to stormwater, then the operator must obtain permit coverage to discharge storm water before implementing the changes that result in exposure of
industrial activities to stormwater runoff.
 

The MSGP and all authorizations expire on August 14, 2026, unless otherwise amended. If you have any questions related to your application,
you may contact the Stormwater Processing Center by email at SWPERMIT@tceq.texas.gov or by telephone at (512) 239-3700. For technical issues,
you may contact the stormwater technical staff by email at SWGP@tceq.texas.gov or by telephone at (512) 239-4671. Also, you may obtain
information on the TCEQ web site at https://www.tceq.texas.gov/goto/wq-dpa.
 

TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
Texas Pollutant Discharge Elimination System

Stormwater Multi-Sector General Permit

TXRNECC96
Coverage Effective: May 26, 2023

Sector: E      Primary SIC code: 3273

Facility/Site Information:
RN102390051
Texas Star Ready Mix
4500 Great Trinity Forest Way
Dallas, TX 75216
Dallas County

Operator:
CN605903574
Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC
4500 Great Trinity Forest Way
Dallas, TX 75216

Issued Date: May 26, 2023 FOR THE COMMISSION
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Order Type: 
1660 Agreed Order 
Findings Order Justification: 
N/A 
Media: 
AIR 
Small Business: 
Yes 
Location(s) Where Violation(s) Occurred: 
Texas Star Ready Mix, 4500 Great Trinity Forest Way, Dallas, Dallas County 
Type of Operation: 
Concrete batch plant 
Other Significant Matters: 

Additional Pending Enforcement Actions:  No 
Past-Due Penalties:  No 
Other:  N/A 
Interested Third-Parties:  The commenter has expressed an interest in this 
matter. 

Texas Register Publication Date:  December 8, 2023 
Comments Received:   Yes, a public comment was received by Legal Aid of NorthWest 
Texas on behalf of Joppa Freedmans Town Association 

Penalty Information 

Total Penalty Assessed:  $30,000 
Amount Deferred for Financial Inability to Pay:  $26,400 
 Confidential information, which may include financial or medical information, 
 has been provided to the Commission for their consideration. 
Total Paid to General Revenue:  $100 
Total Due to General Revenue:  $3,500 

Payment Plan:  35 payments of $100 each 
Compliance History Classifications: 

Person/CN - Unclassified 
Site/RN - Unclassified 

Major Source:  No 
Statutory Limit Adjustment: N/A 
Applicable Penalty Policy:  January 2021 

 
Investigation Information 

 
Complaint Date(s):  N/A 
Complaint Information: N/A 
Date(s) of Investigation:  September 12, 2022 and August 29, 2023 
Date(s) of NOE(s):  September 1, 2023 
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Violation Information 
 
Failed to obtain authorization prior to constructing or modifying a source of air 
contaminants.  Specifically, the Respondent operated a concrete batch plant prior to 
obtaining the proper authorization from September 12, 2022 until temporarily ceasing 
operation on August 9, 2023 [30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE § 116.110(a) and TEX. HEALTH & 

SAFETY CODE §§ 382.0518(a) and 382.085(b)]. 
 

Corrective Actions/Technical Requirements 
 
Corrective Action(s) Completed: 
 
The Respondent implemented the following corrective measures: 
 
a. On January 30, 2023, submitted a registration for Standard Permit Registration No. 
171636 to authorize the concrete batch plant and the associated emissions at the 
Plant; and 
 
b. On August 9, 2023, temporarily ceased operating the concrete batch plant. 
 
Technical Requirements: 
 
The Order will require the Respondent to: 
 
a. Immediately, cease operating until the proper authorization for the concrete batch 
plant has been obtained; 
 
b. Within 15 days, submit written certification demonstrating compliance with a.; 
 
c. Respond completely and adequately, as determined by the TCEQ, to all requests for 
information concerning the registration for Standard Permit Registration No. 171636 
within any deadlines specified in writing; and 
 
d. Within 180 days, submit written certification that either the authorization has been 
obtained or that operations of the concrete batch plant have permanently ceased to 
demonstrate compliance.   
 

Contact Information 
 
TCEQ Attorney:  N/A 
TCEQ Enforcement Coordinator: Yuliya Dunaway, Enforcement Division, Enforcement 
Team 2, MC R-13, (210) 403-4077; Michael Parrish, Enforcement Division, MC 219, 
(512) 239-2548 
Respondent:  Eyad Albelbaisi, Operations Manager, Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC, 25 
Lochleven, Richardson, Texas 75082 
Respondent's Attorney:  N/A
 



TCEQ Interoffice Memorandum 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

 

To: Commissioners  
 

Thru: Amy Settemeyer, Deputy Director, Enforcement Division 
 

From: Michael De La Cruz, Manager, Enforcement Division  
 

Date: April 22, 2024 

Subject: Response to Comment Received Concerning Proposed Agreed Enforcement Order 
 Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC  
 Dallas County; RN111648234; Enforcement Case No. 63326 

 Docket No. 2022-1557-AIR-E 
 

In response to a publication in the Texas Register on December 8, 2023, five comments have been 
received regarding a proposed agreed enforcement order requiring certain actions of Texas Star 
Ready Mix, LLC.  The comments were received within the comment period. 
 
The proposed agreed order includes two violations documented during on-site 
investigations conducted on September 12, 2022 and August 29, 2023.  For both of these 
violations, the Executive Director alleges that Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC failed to obtain 
authorization prior to constructing or modifying a source of air contaminants. The 
proposed order recognizes that Texas Star Ready Mix LLC temporarily ceased operating the 
concrete batch plant on August 9, 2023 and have not operated the concrete batch plant 
since that date.  The proposed order recognizes that Texas Star Ready Mix LLC temporarily 
ceased operating the concrete batch plant on August 9, 2023 and have not operated the 
concrete batch plant since that date.  The technical requirements in the proposed agreed 
order require Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC to cease operating until the proper authorization 
for the concrete batch plant has been obtained. 
 
Some of the comments received are not limited to the provisions of the proposed order 
addressing the violations.  Additionally, while 30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE § 70.10(c) allows for 
public comment on agreed orders, it does not grant the public standing to seek the relief 
that are requested in the comments.  No changes to the proposed agreed order were made 
in response to the comments.  Our responses to the comments are provided below:  
 

• Comment – The TCEQ denied JFTA and the public their right to meaningfully 
participate in the enforcement agreement by failing to collect and make Texas Star 
Ready Mix, LLC’s operational logs publicly available and by failing to make Texas 
Star Ready Mix, LLC’s Financial Inability to Pay assessment and related documents 
publicly available for review. 
 
Response – During the investigations conducted on September 12, 2022 and on 
August 29, 2023, the investigators did not obtain any operational logs from Texas 
Star Ready Mix, LLC.  TCEQ previously provided a copy of the September 12, 2022 
investigation report. At this stage of the enforcement process, operational records are 
not necessary. Should this matter go to litigation, TCEQ would seek to obtain 
necessary records through that process. 
 
Regarding the request to make Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC’s Financial Inability to Pay 
documentation publicly available for review; because these documents contain 
Personal Identifiable Information, they are confidential under the Texas Public 
Information Act and not available to the general public. 

 



TCEQ Interoffice Memorandum 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

• Comment – Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC’s will require significant structural and 
mechanical alterations and improvements in order to qualify for the requested 
standard permit including paving entrances to the site, constructing barriers that 
rise above the site’s stockpiles, constructing concrete fences taller than ten feet, and 
other upgrades to batching, mixing, and production equipment. 
 
Response – In the registration application for Standard Permit Registration No. 
171636, Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC demonstrated how they plan to comply with the 
conditions for the Air Quality Standard Permit for Concrete Batch Plants.  During the 
review process for Standard Permit Registration No. 171636, TCEQ staff will verify 
that Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC can comply with the terms and conditions with the Air 
Quality Standard Permit for Concrete Batch Plants. 
 

• Comment – The TCEQ failed to correctly assess Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC’s penalty 
by not requiring a fine of $10,000 per day for operating a concrete batch plant 
without an air operating permit and by not considering the hazards created for 
health and safety of the public; the impacts of continuing violations on air quality in 
the region; Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC’s history and extent of previous violations, 
degree of culpability and anticipation of the violation, or lack of good faith in 
rectifying the unauthorized action; Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC’s economic benefit 
gained through its violations; and the penalty’s ability to deter future violations.   
 
Response – The penalty assessed in the order was calculated in accordance with the 
Texas Water Code and TCEQ’s Penalty Policy.  The TCEQ staff did not assess a penalty 
of $10,000 each day that Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC continued to operate the concrete 
batch plant because during the development of the enforcement case, the TCEQ staff 
determined that Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC held another TCEQ permit; therefore, the 
TCEQ staff assessed a penalty in accordance with TEX. WATER CODE § 7.052(b-3) and in 
accordance with the TCEQ’s Penalty Policy that allows the Commission to exercise 
discretion whether to assess a penalty of $10,000 per day per violation if the facility 
holds another type of permit.  Since there were no documented human health or 
environmental impacts, the TCEQ staff assessed the penalty using the Programmatic 
Penalty Matrix in accordance with the TCEQ’s Penalty Policy.  The TCEQ staff assessed 
the penalty as monthly events because Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC continued to 
operate the concrete batch plant from September 12, 2022, through August 9, 2023.  
Based on Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC’s compliance history, Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC 
did not have any previous violations in the past five years; therefore, the TCEQ staff 
did not apply a Compliance History enhancement in accordance with the TCEQ’s 
Penalty Policy.  The TCEQ staff determined there was no documentation indicating 
that culpability existed; therefore, the TCEQ staff did not apply a Culpability 
enhancement in accordance with the TCEQ’s Penalty Policy.  The TCEQ staff 
determined that Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC did not resolve the violation; therefore, the 
TCEQ staff did not recognize compliance and did not apply a Good Faith Efforts to 
Comply reduction to the assessed penalty in accordance with the TCEQ’s Penalty 
Policy.  The TCEQ staff considered Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC’s economic benefit; 
however, the Economic Benefit enhancement was evaluated, and no adjustment was 
made in accordance with the TCEQ’s Penalty Policy.  The TCEQ staff assessed a 
penalty in accordance with the TCEQ’s Penalty Policy and the amount was determined 
to be necessary to deter future violations. 

 
• Comment – Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC’s site is still under review for a water quality 

enforcement action, Order Docket No. 2021-1518-WQ-E.   
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Response – The water quality violations addressed by Order Docket No. 2021-1518-
WQ-E are associated only to Pro-Crete Ready Mix, LLC and were referred to the TCEQ 
Litigation Division because settlement was not achieved.  Pro-Crete Ready Mix, LLC is 
no longer operating at this location and does not have a permit to operate. This 
enforcement action is on-going, and an Executive Director Preliminary Report and 
Petition was filed on April 8, 2024. 
 
Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC assumed the lease from Pro-Crete Ready Mix, LLC on 
January 14, 2021. Since Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC is not associated to the water 
quality violations addressed by Order Docket No. 2021-1518-WQ-E, the only pending 
enforcement action regarding Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC is for the air violations that 
were documented in the investigations conducted on September 12, 2022 and on 
August 29, 2023 and are associated to this proposed order. 

 
• Comment – The TCEQ failed to take into account the impact on the community from 

cumulative risks of other industrial activity in the area.   
 
Response – A concrete batch plant has been operated at this location since July 27, 
1980 and has experienced seven ownership changes over the last 40 years.  The 
proposed order addresses the violations that were documented at Texas Star Ready 
Mix, LLC’s concrete batch plant which Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC are liable for. Since 
there were no documented human health or environmental impacts, the TCEQ staff 
assessed the penalty using the Programmatic Penalty Matrix in accordance with the 
TCEQ’s Penalty Policy. TCEQ staff also took into account all appropriate factors to be 
considered in determining the administrative penalty, and the required technical 
requirements in the order are consistent with TCEQ’s rules and regulations.  During 
the review of the registration for Standard Permit Registration No. 171636, TCEQ 
staff will ensure that there are no air quality impacts to human health or the 
environment; otherwise, Standard Permit Registration No. 171636 may not be issued 
to Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC. 

 
• Comment – The TCEQ failed to consider the adverse impacts of the unpermitted 

operations to the surrounding environmental justice community in violation of 
Executive Order 12898.   
 
Response – During the investigations conducted on September 12, 2022, and August 
29, 2023, there were no documented impacts to human health or the environment.  
However, TCEQ staff confirmed that Texas Star Ready Mix LLC temporarily ceased 
operating the concrete batch plant on August 9, 2023 and has not operated the 
concrete batch plant since that date.  Also, Federal Executive Orders are not binding 
on states 
 

• Comment – The community should receive compensation for Texas Star Ready Mix, 
LLC’s unauthorized operations through the form of a supplemental environmental 
project. 

 
Response – A supplemental environmental project allows a respondent under 
enforcement to voluntarily participate in a project that enhances, protects, and 
improves the Texas environment.  Since supplemental environmental projects are not 
mandatory, Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC did not volunteer to participate in a 
supplemental environmental project.   
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In summary, the commenter expresses concerns that the TCEQ failed to properly regulate Texas 
Star Ready Mix, LLC, enforce required penalties, and facilitate meaningful public participation.   
Staff's position, as reflected in the response, is that the Penalty Policy was used to assess the 
penalty fairly.  Accordingly, the Enforcement Division recommends that you adopt this proposed 
order. 
 
Attachments 

 
cc: Manager, Air Section, Dallas/Fort Worth Regional Office, TCEQ 
 Yuliya Dunaway, Coordinator, Enforcement Division 
 Central Records, MC 213, Building E, 1st Floor 
 AIR CP_111648234_CP_20240422_Enforcement 



Via Facsimile 
Yuliya Dunaway 
Enforcement Division 
512-239-2550 
Regional Office 
2309 Gravel Drive 
Fort Worth, Texas 76118 

Via Hand Delivery 
Maggie Dennis 

400 S. Zang Blvd., Ste. 1420 
Dallas, Texas 75208 

January 11, 2024 

RECEIVE'D 
Air Section - Enforcement Division 
Regional Office 

JAN 11 2024 

DFW Region-4 2309 Gravel Drive 
Fort Worth, Texas 76118 

Re: Part 1 of 2, Public Comments, Pending Agreed Order and Enforcement Action 
-TCEQ Case Number 63326, Docket Number: 2022-1557-AIR-E, Texas Star 
Ready Mix, LLC located at 4500 Great Trinity Forest Way, Dallas, Texas 
75082 regarding Proposed Agreed Order. 

Dear Ms. Dunaway: 

On behalf of its client, Joppa Freedmans Town Association ("JFTA"), Legal Aid of North West 
Texas ("LANWT") submits in the above named and numbered matter the following public 
comment. 

All contact with JFTA and its members regarding this matter should be through its legal counsel: 

Michael Bates, Staff Attorney 
phone: ( 469) 917-5970 Ext. 8902 
email: batesm@lanwt.org 

Wendi Hammond, Staff Attorney 
phone: ( 469) 917-5970 Ext. 8903 
email: hammondw@lanwt.org 

Haley Varnadoe, Staff Attorney 
phone: (817) 882-1001 Ex. 8921 
email: varnadoeh@lanwt.org 

Legal Aid ofN011hWest Texas 
400 S. Zang Blvd., Ste. 1420 
Dallas, TX 75208 
Fax: (817) 736-1602 



I. The public's review of TCEQ's proposed Agreed Order demonstrates that TCEQ 
failed to properly regulate Texas Star Ready Mix, enforce required penalties, and 
facilitate meaningful public participation. 

The proposed Agreed Order fails to adequately protect the public due to Texas Star Ready Mix's 
("Respondent") failure to follow- and TCEQ's repeated failure to enforce- federal and state 
environmental permitting laws. Respondent operates a concrete batch facility located at 4500 Great 
Trinity Forest Way, Dallas, Texas 75082 (the "facility" or "site"). TCEQ investigated Respondent 
in September 2022 and found Respondent's facility lacked a proper air permit. 1 Instead of 
requiring the facility to immediately cease unpermitted concrete batch plant operations, TCEQ 
ignored the facility. Texas Star Ready Mix even admitted to operating without a permit and filling 
ten to fifteen trucks a day on site during a TCEQ public meeting.2 Despite continuous public 
outcry, Respondent continued to operate in bad faith, and TCEQ continued to ignore Respondent's 
illegal operation, until August 29, 2023.3 

State law allows, and in certain cases requires, TCEQ to fine concrete batch plants that operate 
without proper permits $10,000 per day of illegal operation.4 As part of TCEQ's attempt at 
enforcement against Respondent, TCEQ has promulgated a proposed agreed enforcement order 
that would require Respondent to pay a total fine of just $3,600 for the months Respondent illegally 
operated. 5 TCEQ's proposed decision to fine Respondent just a quarter of a fraction of the proper 
amount sends a bad message to the Joppa community: profitability from an industry's illegal 
operations matters more than community safety and well-being. TCEQ failed to properly, 
consistently, and adequately conduct oversight and enforcement actions within the requirements 
of federal and state clean air act statutes, regulations and policies. Unfortunately, TCEQ' s 
reluctance to enforce the laws it is trusted to enforce is no surprise to the Joppa community and 
other minority, industry-ridden communities like it. 

To add insult to the injuries the Joppa community already faces from TCEQ's stunning lack of 
regulatory oversight, TCEQ is also playing an active role in preventing the public from exercising 
their right to meaningful public participation. For example, TCEQ refuses to provide public 
information necessary for reviewing and evaluating its proposed Agreed Order. TCEQ failed to 
collect any operating records from Respondent, and thereby, blocked the public's right of access 
to review any operating records.6 Without operating records, the public is unable to determine the 
sufficiency of TCEQ's proposed penalty. The operating records, if they exist, would provide 
information on exactly how long Respondent illegally operated. Because the penalties are meant 

1 See Attachment 11. 
2 See, TCEQ Public Meeting - Pennit No. 171 636- Air NSR, August 17, 2023, Texas Star Ready Mix, Oral 
Comments, at 36:30 available at 
https://www 14.tceq.texas.gov/epic/eCID/index.cfm?fuseaction=main.MoreIPResults&StartRow= 11 &End Row= 15& 
Step=5&requesttimeout=5000. 
3 See Attachment 3. 
4 Tex. Water Code§ 7.052(b). 
5 See Attachments 6 and 9. 
6 See Attachments I, 8, 12, and 13. 
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to be established based on days of operation, the exact number of days of Respondent's illegal 
operation is critical to determining the sufficiency of TCEQ's penalty. 7 

These crucial documents would prove exactly how Respondent operated without a permit and 
directly influence the outcome of this enforcement action. In a distinct pattern, TCEQ also denied 
access to several other key documents including: 1) how TCEQ assessed the minimal penalty, and 
2) whether or not Respondent signed the document confirming they no longer operate. 8 

By blocking the public from accessing several key public documents in this case, TCEQ denies 
public oversight and hinders Joppa citizens from protecting their community from bad faith 
industries like Respondent. TCEQ has intentionally withheld public information undermining 
meaningful public participation and thwarting oversight of both TCEQ's and industry's action. 
This violates federal and state clean air act statutes, regulations, and policies. 

The following sections of this public comment will provide further information regarding how 
TCEQ improperly conducted this investigation and enforcement penalty assessment. These 
comments will disclose new facts and considerations that indicate this proposed agreement is 
improper, inadequate, and inconsistent with the requirements of the statues and rules within the 
Commission's jurisdiction.9 Joppa Freedmans Town Association requests the Commission to 
withdraw or withhold approval of the proposed Agreed Order. 

II. Summary of Public Concerns 

JFTA asserts that due to TCEQ's patterned failure to regulate Respondent and properly enforce 
the law, the Commissioners should reiect, or at the very least withhold, the proposed Agreed 
Order until a more stringent enforcement penalty has been assessed and an opportunity for 
meaningful public participation has been provided. 10 

Reasons for rejecting or withholding the proposed Agreed Order include the following: 

• TCEQ has denied JFT A and the public their right to meaningfully participate in the 
enforcement agreement by failing to disclose critical public documents directly related to 
this case. Therefore, the public cannot fully comment on the legitimacy of the proposed 
minimal fine and agreed order. Examples of this failure include: 

o TCEQ failing to collect and make public Respondent's operational logs; 11 and 
o TCEQ failing to make Respondent's Financial Inability to Pay assessment and 

related documents publicly available for review. 12 

7 Tex. Water Code§ 7.052(b). 
8 See Attachments I, 8, 12, and 13. 
9 Tex. Water Code§ 7.075(b). 
10 Tex. Water Code§ 7.075(b). 
11 See Attachments I, 8, 12, and 13. 
12 See Attachments I and 8. 
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Without access to the necessary public information, the public is unable to fully evaluate 
whether Respondent properly demonstrated its financial inability to pay, and whether 
TCEQ properly allowed an exemption which further lowered the already excessively low 
assessed fine of $30,000 to a mere $3,600. 13 

• TCEQ failed to correctly assess Respondent's penalty and the required $10,000 fine for 
each day Respondent operated a concrete batch plant without an air operating permit. 14 

Examples of this failure include TCEQ not properly assessing the excessively low 
proposed penalty in relation to: 

o The hazards created for health of safety of the public; 
o The impacts of the continuing violations on air quality in the region; 
o Respondent's history and extent of previous violations, degree of culpability and 

anticipation of the violation, or lack of good faith in rectifying the unauthorized 
action; 

o Respondent's economic benefit gained through its violations; and 
o The penalty's ability to deter future violations. 15 

• Applicant's site is still under review for a water quality enforcement action, 2021-1518-
WQ-E. 16 TCEQ should consider this additional high-level enforcement action in 
Respondent's penalty calculation. TCEQ cannot assess the penalty in the proposed Agreed 
Order correctly until TCEQ reviews this action, determines the entity responsible for the 
enforcement action, and determines if the site is currently in compliance. 

• 

TCEQ failed to take into account the impact on the community from cumulative risks of 
other industrial activity in the area. 17 

TCEQ failed to consider the adverse impacts of the unpermitted operations to the 
surrounding environmental justice community in violation of Executive Order 12898. 18 

Respondent's activities threatened the health and safety of nearby residents. Respondent 
knowingly operated without legal authority, proper oversight, and accountability. TCEQ allowed 
Respondent to operate without legal authority, proper oversight, and accountability. 

The proposed Agreed Order fails to protect the public health, welfare, property and the 
environment in compliance with applicable federal and state laws and regulations. Since it is 
TCEQ's failure to timely provide necessary public information, the Commission should reject, or 

13 30 Texas Administrative Code § 70.8, Attachments I, 2, 6, and 8. 
14 Tex. Water Code§ 7.052(b). 
15 Tex. Water Code§ 7.053. 
16 See Attachment 16. 
17 See Attachment 9. 
1s /d. 
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at the very least withhold, the proposed Agreed Order until a more stringent enforcement penalty 
has been assessed and an opportunity for meaningful public participation has been provided. 

III. Public Comments 

JFT A is a small nonprofit membership organization dedicated to enhancing the livability of its 
members and others located in the Joppa area. Since April 2023, JFTA has advocated against 
Respondent's application for a standard concrete batch plant air pe1mit ("Standard Permit") due to 
Respondent's history and practice of non-compliance. JFTA representatives and members have 
submitted public comments regarding Respondent's unauthorized operations and bad faith actions. 

JFTA is based directly n011h of Respondent's site in South Dallas. Joppa is a historic Freedman's 
Town. It is a low income, majority African-American community. Founded in 1872 by freed 
slaves, Joppa is one of Dallas' oldest neighborhoods. There are only two roads leading in and out 
of Joppa from Interstate 45. Surrounding the community is a railroad, Highway 310, and I-45 to 
the west, industry like Respondent to the north, the Trinity River to the east, and Joppa Preserve 
and McCommas Bluff Landfill to the south. 

JFTA members are already adversely impacted not only by the constant stream of air pollution 
from the surrounding heavily trafficked highways, but also by the other smTounding industrial 
sources. For example, within a 1.5 mile radius of Respondent's site, the following existing 
industries currently emit harmful air pollutants: Martin Marietta/Miller Yard, Union Pacific 
Railroad/Miller Yard, and TAMKO Building Products, Inc. (a roofing company). All of these 
sources cause and/or contribute to the degradation of air quality, human health, and safety in the 
Joppa community. Respondent's unauthorized and unregulated operation adds to the existing 
adverse health impacts in Joppa. 

JFT A requests the Commission reject or withhold the proposed Agreed Order and assess a more 
stringent penalty for the following reasons: 

A. TCEQ has denied JFTA and the public their right to meaningfully participate in the 
enforcement agreement by failing to disclose critical public documents directly 
related to this case. The public cannot fully comment on the legitimacy of the minimal 
fine and agreed order. 

a. TCEQfailed to collect and make public Respondent's operational logs. 

The public has no access to the operational logs or substantial info1mation concerning this matter 
because the TCEQ permit records online database do not contain these documents and TCEQ only 
requires permit-by-rule facilities to keep operational logs on site. 19 

19 Counsel conducted search records.tceq.texas.gov. 
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On July 14, 2023, LANWT submitted Public Information Requests to TCEQ for Respondent's 
operational logs covering the following dates upon which Respondent was observed illegally 
operating: June 15, July 6, July 12, and July 14, 2023.20 On July 19, 2023, TCEQ declined to 
release information pursuant to LANWT's request, stating that the agency was "unable to locate 
any responsive information in the possession of the TCEQ concerning the above referenced 
request."21 TCEQ refused to provide the requested operational logs on the basis that TCEQ did not 
have the operational logs in its possession and was thus not required under the Texas Public 
Information Act to provide the requested logs. If TCEQ's statement that it did not have the 
operational logs in its possession is to be believed, then the agency admitted that it did not 
review Respondent's operational logs when assessing the severity of Respondent's illegal 
operation. 

After LANWT requested TCEQ obtain the documents from Respondent and share them with the 
public through a public information request,22 TCEQ employee Patrick Yantis responded: "TCEQ 
does not have a process for members of the public to request third party documents that are not 
already within TCEQ's possession. If you are interested in accessing a company' s records, you 
may try contacting the facility directly."23 For good measure, LANWT contacted Respondent on 
August 16, 2023 to request these operational logs. To date, Respondent has not provided any 
documentation or correspondence containing these logs or stating their intention to provide these 
logs. 

On December 15, 2023, LA WNT submitted Public Information Requests to TCEQ for 
Respondent's operational logs covering from December 28, 2022 to December 15, 2023.24 TCEQ 
again denied LANWT's request and requested an opinion from the Office of Attorney General. 
TCEQ's position on this matter violates the Texas State Implementation Plan (SIP) and Texas 
Public Information Act.25 On January 9, 2023 LANWT representatives contacted Respondent's 
counsel to obtain the logs and has not received a reply. 

Under statute, the appropriate number of Respondent's violations is equivalent to the number of 
days of Respondent's illegal operation.26 TCEQ is authorized by statute to request operational logs 
from regulated entities like Respondent.27 Therefore, to determine an appropriate penalty, it would 
be critical for TCEQ to know exactly how many days Respondent illegally operated. However, 
based on TCEQ's statement that the agency did not have those logs in its possession, TCEQ did 
not review those logs and thus did not actually determine how many violations occurred at 
Respondent's facility. Instead, according to the penalty calculation worksheet for Respondent's 
enforcement action, it is our understanding TCEQ merely guessed how many days Respondent 

20 See Attachment 12 and 13. 
21 See Attachment 13. 
22 See Attachment 12 and 13. 
23 Id. 
24 See Attachment 8. 
25 See e.g., TEX. Gov'r CODE§ 552.002 (definition of public information). 
26 Tex. Water Code§ 7.052(b). 
27 30 Tex. Administrative Code§ 106.8(b)-(c). It is important to note that since Respondent incorrectly claimed that 
its past operations were conducted under a permit by rule, Respondent should have (at the very least) maintained the 
necessary documents required under the incorrectly claimed PBR. 
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operated despite having authority to request logs that would provide the exact number of days.28 

TCEQ's failure to obtain the operational logs that would provide exact information on how many 
times Respondent violated the law by operating without proper permitting is yet another abject 
failure of the agency to regulate industry in Joppa and the state of Texas. 

b. TCEQ failed to make Respondent 's Financial Inability to Pay assessment and 
related documents publicly available. 

TCEQ also failed to provide documentation of Respondent's purported financial inability to pay 
assessed penalties.29 In a letter dated October 23, 2023, counsel for Texas Star Ready Mix stated 
that the facility submitted information to TCEQ supporting the facility's claim of financial hardship 
after Texas Star Ready Mix representatives met with TCEQ staff on September 28, 2023.30 

LANWT submitted a public information request for these documents on December 15, 2023.31 

TCEQ refused to provide the requested information. 32 

TCEQ's failure to provide documentation of Respondent's financial hardship has two significant 
and detrimental impacts on Joppa and the public. First, without documentation of Respondent's 
inability to pay assessed penalties imposed for the facility's illegal operation, the public is unable 
to offer meaningful and informed comment on the appropriateness of TCEQ's proposed agreed 
enforcement order. As stated above, TCEQ must include public comments in consideration of 
enforcement related agreed orders. TCEQ's refusal to provide information upon which those 
comments may be made undercuts the public's ability to meaningfully comment. 

Further, Texas Star Ready Mix's financial inability to pay the penalties assessed for the facility's 
own bad behavior and noncompliance is indicative of the facility's ability or inability to comply 
with the terms of the Standard Permit it seeks. At this time, the facility does not meet the 
~equirements of the Standard Permit it seeks.33 As has been established by the factual record in this 
matter, Respondent has not only been operating without proper permits, but the facility will require 
significant structural and mechanical alterations and improvements in order to qualify for the 
requested Standard Permit. In order to comply with the terms of the Standard Permit, the facility 
will need to ensure the following improvements to the site, though this list likely does not cover 
all necessary improvements: 

28 See Attachment 9, page 44. 
29 See Attachments I and 8. 

• Paving entrances to the site; 
• Constructing concrete barriers that rise above the site's stockpiles; 
• Constructing concrete fences taller than ten feet; and 
• Other upgrades to batching, mixing, and production equipment.34 

30 See Attachment 15, Letter from Erich Birch, counsel for Texas Star Ready Mix, to Craig Pritzlaff, TCEQ Director 
of Office of Compliance and Enforcement at 2 (October 23, 2023). 
31 See Attachment 8. 
32 See Attachment I. 
33 See Attachments 3 and 14. 
34 Id 
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There is no doubt that the necessary upgrades to the facility will impose costs on Respondent. To 
date, TCEQ and Respondent have not offered any information indicating that Respondent is 
financially able to upgrade the facility to meet operational standards required under applicable state 
and federal laws and regulations. Instead, the only information available from Respondent is its 
own assertion that it cannot afford to pay the penalties it accrued from its own illegal operation.35 

The cost to ensure that Texas Star Ready Mix's facility complies with all applicable laws and 
regulations requires the facility to spend money that it claims it does not have. 

If Respondent does not have the financial ability to pay its penalties, then it also likely does not 
have the funds to upgrade its facility to comply with the Standard Permit it seeks. If Respondent 
does have funds to upgrade the facility, then it likely has the funds to pay the penalties it has 
accrued. However, without the requested financial documentation, there is no way for the Joppa 
community to know which conclusion holds true. 

Given the facility's historical inability to comply with applicable laws and regulations and the 
TCEQ's reluctance to enforce such laws and regulations, the Joppa community and the public have 
legitimate concerns and doubts as to whether Texas Star Ready Mix will be capable of complying 
with the terms of the Standard Permit (if it is granted) and whether TCEQ will actually enforce the 
terms of the Standard Permit should or when Texas Star Ready Mix fail to meet them. 

c. Synopsis 

TCEQ's combined failures are new facts and considerations that indicate the consent to this 
agreement is improper, inadequate, and inconsistent with the requirements of the statues and rules 
within the Commission's jurisdiction.36 In failing to provide the operating logs and financial 
inability to pay documents, TCEQ also impedes, without legal justification, the public's right to 
meaningfully comment on the proposed enforcement action.37 The public cannot exercise its right 
to comment on proposed agreed orders without proper information to do so, let alone without 
information that by statute should be public information. TCEQ's failure to release these 
documents is not surprising given the agency's complicity in Respondent's continuous illegal 
operation, however, TCEQ has taken that complicity one step fmiher by attempting to shield itself 
from public accountability for its failure to regulate Texas Star Ready Mix. The agency's attempt 
at hiding public information is just another illustration of the agency's unwillingness to properly 
regulate industry in the state of Texas, and it is communities like Joppa that face the consequences. 

Failing to make these documents public shields the agency from any oversight regarding how the 
agency calculated the penalty of the proposed Agreed Order. TCEQ's lack of disclosure also makes 
it impossible for the public to review if the Proposed Agreed Order meets the standards of the 
Texas Water Code.38 TCEQ must include public comments in consideration of enforcement related 

35 See Attachment 6. 
36 Tex. Water Code§ 7.075. 
31 Id. 
38 Tex. Water Code§ 7.053. 
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agreed orders and these actions functionally deny the public of their right to comment on this 
agreement.39 TCEQ's combined failures are new facts and considerations that indicate the consent 
to this agreement is improper, inadequate, and inconsistent with the requirements of the statues 
and rules within the Commission'sjurisdiction.40 

B. TCEQ failed to correctly assess Respondent's penalty and fine. 

TCEQ can and should fine Respondent $10,000 each day they operated an unauthorized concrete 
batch plant.41 In TCEQ's penalty calculation worksheet violations events section, they determined 
278 violation days. However, TCEQ stated "ten monthly events are recommended from November 
4, 2022 non-compliance date to the August 9, 2023 date the concrete batch plant temporarily 
ceased operations."42 TCEQ only assessing ten days of violations over a total 278 days timeframe 
without verifiable documentation being provided to the public for review is absurd.43 TCEQ still 
should at the very least use this calculation to penalize Respondent $100,000 at minimum.44 Also, 
TCEQ has shielded Respondent from fu11her penalties by failing to utilize Respondent's 
operational logs in determining the number of violations.45 These logs would provide evidence of 
Respondent's unauthorized operations. 

Respondent's abject history of non-compliance requires a higher fine.46 At a public meeting held 
on August 17, 2023, Respondent admitted, in front ofTCEQ staff and the Joppa community, that 
it operates ten to fifteen trucks per day from the unauthorized standard concrete batch plant.47 

Respondent's counsel admitted this site has potentially been in non-compliance for years, stating 
that Respondent "operated under the same apparent authorization as the previous owners[.]" JFTA 
representatives witnessed Respondent operating without a permit several times.48 Respondent and 
TCEQ are withholding from the public operational logs which would reveal the exact number of 
days Respondent operated without authorization and regulatory oversight.49 TCEQ's penalty of 
$3,600 fails to meet the requisite penalty of $10,000 per day for this type of violation. The minimal 
penalty does not deter operators like Respondent from illegally operating and harming the health 
and safety of residents in communities like Joppa. 

Additionally, TCEQ failed to follow the factors to be considered in determination of penalty 
amount. As described previously, TCEQ limited JFTA and the public from evaluating all pertinent 

39 Tex. Water Code§ 7.075. 
40 Id. 
41 Tex. Water Code§ 7.053. The Texas Water Code specifically contains a provision where the fine for illegally 
operating a standard concrete batch plant i.J. $10,000 per day, not up to $10,000 per day. 
42 See Attachment 9, page 42. 
43 See Attachments I and 8. 
44 See Attachment 9; Tex. Water Code§ 7.053. 
45 See Attachments I, 8, 12, and 13. 
46 See Attachments 3, 9, 11, 14, and 16; Tex. Water Code§ 7.053; Tex. Water Code§ 7.072. 
47 TCEQ Public Meeting - Penn it No. 171636- Air NSR, August 17, 2023, Texas Star Ready Mix, Oral Comments, 
at 36:30 available at 
https ://www 14.tceq.texas.gov/epic/eCI D/index.cfm? fuseaction=main.Morel PResults&StartRow= 11 &End Row= 15& 
Step=5&requesttimeout=5000. 
48 See Attachment 14. 
49 See Attachments I, 8, 12, and 13. 
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public information by denying access to Respondent's operational logs and TCEQ's financial 
inability to pay assessment. However, even with limited available documentation, JFT A still 
asserts that TCEQ still failed to conectly assess Respondent's penalty. 

a. TCEQ did not properly assess the penalty in relation to the hazard created for health of 
safety of the public. 

TCEQ failed to disclose any assessment of this factor. 50 Respondent adversely impacted Joppa 
community members through their unauthorized operations and increase of air pollutants from 
emissions which likely included, but may not be limited to: pai1iculate matter (PM), particulate 
matter with diameters of l O microns or less (PM10), and particulate matter of 2.5 microns of less 
(PM2.s). Particulate matter is a dangerous pollutant made up of microscopic solids or liquid 
droplets so small they can be inhaled and penetrate the lungs and even enter the bloodstream, 
causing serious and long-lasting health problems.51 The increase in unauthorized air pollution 
emissions endangered the health and safety of Joppa community members and impacted their use 
and enjoyment of their property and residential areas like Joppa Preserve trails. 

b. TCEQ did not properly assess the penalty in relation to the impact of the continuing 
violations on air quality in the region. 

TCEQ failed to disclose any assessment of this factor. 52 Respondent continually violated air 
quality regulations in the region and even requested to continue operating without a permit. 
The Environmental Protection Agency's ("EPA") concerns for air quality in this community led 
them to conduct a study related to concrete batching in Joppa.53 However, without proper permit 
authorization, it is cunently unclear whether facilities, like Respondent's, will be accurately 
analyzed within the study. By failing to regulate and deter illegally operating industries like 
Respondent through enforcement penalties, TCEQ harms communities like Joppa. 

c. TCEQ did not properly assess the penalty in relation to Respondent 's history and extent of 
previous violations, degree of culpability and anticipation of the violation, or lack of good 
faith in rectifying the unauthorized action. 

TCEQ failed to adjust any penalty calculation under the culpability criteria.54 Instead, despite 
Respondent's patterned non-compliance, TCEQ incorrectly provided an additional settlement 
deferral option of $6,000.55 Respondent continued to operate without a permit for months despite 
knowing they had no permit authorization.56 Respondent admitted to filling ten to fifteen trucks a 

50 See Attachment 9. 
5 1 U.S. EPA, Particulate Matter (PM) Basics, available at: https://www.epa.gov/pm-pollution/particulate-matter-pm­
basics#:- :text=PM%20stands%20for%20particulate%20matter,seen%20with%20the%20naked%20eye. 
52 See Attachment 9. 
53 U.S. EPA, Fact Sheet Dallas Cumulative Impacts Assessment, available at: https://www.dallascitynews.net/wp­
content/uploads/2023/ I I /Fact-Sheet-Dallas-CIA. pdf. 
54 See Attachment 9. 
55 Id. at page 40. 
56 See Attachments 3, 9, 11, and 14. 
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day on site without a permit during a TCEQ public meeting in August 2023.57 Even during the 
negotiations for this order, Respondent continued to request to operate without a permit while the 
application is pending. 58 Respondent's legal counsel stated that this site has operated this way far 
before Respondent's ownership, potentially into the previous decade. 59 The site also is under 
another high-level enforcement action for failing to disclose documents related to water quality.60 

TCEQ should have considered these levels of violations, culpability, and bad faith actions of 
Respondent.61 These examples should prove Respondent's high level of culpability and history of 
patterned non-compliance and TCEQ failed to include this in the penalty calculation. 62 

Finally, JFTA is not aware of any Respondent actions to rectify or compensate the community for 
these unauthorized operations. TCEQ also failed to provide any documentation for efforts to create 
a supplemental environmental project. The community should receive compensation for these 
unauthorized operations through the f01m of a supplemental environmental project. 

d. TCEQ did not properly assess the penalty in relation to Respondent's economic benefit 
gained through violation. 

TCEQ incorrectly assessed that Respondent's non-compliance resulted in a mere $334 of 
economic benefit.63 The previous sections highlight Respondent's unauthorized operations and 
TCEQ failed to assess how much financially Respondent made from these operations. Texas Star 
Ready Mix even admitted to operating without a permit and filling ten to fifteen trucks a day on 
site during a TCEQ public meeting.64 Despite extensive public health and environmental justice 
concerns in the Joppa area, the Respondent continually gained an immense economic benefit each 
day they knowingly operated without proper authorization and oversight. TCEQ's $3,600 fine fails 
to correctly weigh the enormous economic gain of Respondent's unauthorized actions at the 
public's expense. 

e. TCEQ did not properly assess the penalty in relation to the amount necessary to deter 
future violations. 

TCEQ's $3,600 fine paid at $100 a month does not deter future violations. In fact, this type of fine 
enables non-compliance by making it more financially beneficial to operate illegally. This fine 
assessment is a failure of TCEQ's requirement to assess a penalty that deters future violations. 

57 TCEQ Public Meeting - Permit No. 171636- Air NSR, August 17, 2023, Texas Star Ready Mix, Oral Comments, 
at 36:30 available at 
https://www 14.tceq.texas.gov/epic/eCID/index.cfin?fuseaction=main.MorelPResults&StartRow= 11 &End Row= 15& 
Step=5&requesttimeout=5000. 
58 See Attachment 15. 
59 Id. 
60 See Attachment 16. 
61 See Attachment 3, 9 and 11; 30 Tex. Water Code § 7.053; Tex. Health and Safety Code § 382.0518. 
62 Id. 
63 See Attachment 9 at page 40. 
64 See, TCEQ Public Meeting - Pennit No. 171636- Air NSR, August 17, 2023, Texas Star Ready Mix, Oral 
Comments, at 36:30 available at 
https://www 14.tceq.texas.gov/epic/eCID/index.cfin?fuseaction=main.MorelPResults&StartRow= 11 &End Row= 15& 
Step=5&requesttimeout=5000. 
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Considering Respondent's numerous examples of non-compliance, TCEQ should assess the 
$10,000 penalty per day of illegal operations to deter future violations. 65 

B. Applicant's site is still under review for a water quality enforcement action, 2021-
1518-WQ-E. TCEQ should consider this additional high-level enforcement action in 
Respondent's penalty calculation. TCEQ cannot assess the penalty in Proposed 
Agreed Order correctly until TCEQ reviews this action, determines the entity 
responsible for the enforcement action, and determines if the site is currently in 
compliance. 

TCEQ failed to provide 2021-1518-WQ-E current enforcement case regarding RN 102390051 as 
an additional issue in the Proposed Agreed Order.66 TCEQ should take additional high-level 
enforcement actions into consideration at Respondent's site in the Proposed Agreed Order. 

On August 13, 2021, Texas Star Ready Mix began as owner operator for RN102390051 and CN 
605903574.67 Over three weeks later on September 7, 2021, TCEQ investigated and found 
violations against previous owner, Pro-Crete, for several Texas Water Code issues.68 

On November 5, 2021, TCEQ submitted a letter to Pro-Crete regarding violations of Texas Water 
Code and Commission Rules and assessed an administrative penalty of$1 l ,250.69 On January 27, 
2023, TCEQ submitted a proposed agreed order to Pro-Crete.70 

On July 7, 2023, Harley Hobson, the TCEQ Water Quality enforcement official reviewing 2021-
1518-WQ-E, stated that the owner/operator did not sign the proposed agreed order. She also stated 
that she is still researching if Pro-Crete and Applicant are the same entity. 

Since the proposed agreed order is not signed and the enforcement case is still active, the public 
cannot be sure that Applicant or Pro-Crete have conducted any required, corrective action from 
2021-1518-WQ-E. 

65 See Attachments 3, 11, and 14; Tex. Water Code § 7 .052(b ). 
66 See TCEQ Pl-SI Standard Concrete Batch Plant Application, Texas Ready Mix, LLC, Page 8, Section V. Project 
Information B. Enforcement Projects. 
67 Counsel conducted search 
https://www 15.tceg.texas.gov/crpub/ index.cfm?fuseaction=affil.showSingleAffi l&affil id= I 0055835202 1173. 
68 See Attachment 16 - Proposed Agreed Order "During a record review conducted for the Plant on September 7, 
2021, an investigator documented that the Respondent failed to submit monitoring results at the intervals specified 
in the permit, in violation of 30 TEX. ADM IN. CODE §§ 305.125(1) and ( 17) and 3 I 9.7(d) and Texas Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination System ("TPDES") General Pennit No. TXG 112472, Part III, Section A, Permit 
Requirements Nos. I, 2, and 5; and Part IV, Standard Permit Conditions No. 7.f. Specifically, the monthly 
conventional pollutants discharge monitoring reports ("DMRs") were not submitted, for the monthly monitoring 
periods of April 2019, December 2020, and January 2021 by the 20th day of the following month. Additionally, the 
annual hazardous metals DMRs and whole effluent toxicity ("WET") testing for water flea and fathead minnow 
DMRs were not submitted for the annual monitoring period of 2020 by March 31st of the following year." 
69 See Attachment 16 - Proposed Agreed Order "An administrative penalty in the amount of $11,250 is assessed by 
the Commission in settlement of the violations alleged in Section II ("Allegations"). The Respondent paid $9,000 of 
the penalty and $2,250 is deferred contingent upon the Respondent's timely and satisfactory compliance with all the 
terms of this Order." 
70 See Attachment 16. 
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Fmthermore, the actual owner/operator responsible for this enforcement action remains unclear. 
TCEQ listed Applicant, Texas Star Ready Mix, as owner/operator about three weeks before the 
2021-1518-WQ-E site investigation. Texas Star Ready Mix also has matching names of three 
previous operator names on site of RN 102390051 at 4500 Great Trinity Forest Way, Dallas, TX 
including: Beall Concrete Enterprises, C-N-T Redi Mix, and Redi-Mix Dallas.71 

JFTA .requests an investigation into the owner/operator at the time of the 2021-1518-WQ-E and 
whether or not Applicant should be the responsible party. JFT A also requests TCEQ to investigate 
if the site is cmTently in compliance from the violations found in 2021-1518-WQ-E. Until these 
investigations are complete and made available for public review as pait of this Proposed Agreed 
Order and public participation process, JFT A requests the Commission withdraw or withhold the 
Proposed Agreed Order. 

C. In the Proposed Agreed Order, TCEQ fails to take into account the impact on the 
community from cumulative risks of other industrial activity in the area.72 

In Joppa, numerous industrial sites contribute to the cumulative air quality risks in the area 
including Martin Marietta/Miller Yard, Union Pacific Railroad/Miller Yard, and T AMKO 
Building Products, Inc. (a roofing company). The community recently dealt with the adverse 
impacts from a train derailment with delayed clean up. 73 Highways 310 and 1-35 and a landfill also 
border the neighborhood. Joppa shouldn' t have to also bear the additional heavy burden caused by 
willful industrial non-compliance like Respondent's. 

TCEQ has an affirmative duty to consider the cumulative emissions from all of the industrial 
operators in Joppa when considering the Proposed Agreed Order and how Respondent's 
unpermitted operations negatively impacted human health and the environment. 

In Joppa, there are numerous additional sources of particulate and other pollution in close 
proximity to Respondent's site; therefore, the TCEQ must consider the cumulative risks from those 
nearby industrial sources of air pollution in determining whether Respondent's unpermitted 
additional emissions had an even more negative impact on human health and the environment. 

71 Counsel conducted search 
https ://www I 5 .tceq. texas.gov/crpub/index.cfm ?fuseaction=priornames .priorN ameList&denormal ized id=543676 8920021 
50&name typ=REG ENT (last visited January 11 , 2024 ). 
72 See Attachment 9; "The commission shall: (I) develop and implement policies, by specific environmental media, 
to protect the public from cumulative risks in areas of concentrated operations; and (2) give priority to monitoring 
and enforcement in areas in which regulated facilities are concentrated." Tex. Water Code § 5.130. 
73 Dallas Morning News, July 25, 2022. https://www.dallasnews.com/news/environment/2022/07/25/union-pacific-begins­
cleanup- l l-days-after-train-derailment-in-joppa/. 
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D. In the Proposed Agreed Order, TCEQ fails to consider the adverse impacts of the 
unpermitted operations to the surrounding environmental justice community in 
violation of Executive Order 12898. 

Executive Order 12898 requires each federal agency to conduct its programs, policies and 
activities that substantially affect human health and the environment, in a manner that ensures that 
those programs, policies and activities do not have the effect of excluding persons from 
participation in, denying persons the benefit of, or subjecting persons to discrimination because of 
their race, color, national origin or income level. 74 

With respect to the approval of enforcement agreements, Executive Order 12898 requires federal 
agencies (or any local government or governmental agency in receipt of federal funding from 
source such as the EPA) to evaluate its actions for disproportionately high and adverse effects on 
minority or low-income populations and to find ways to avoid or minimize these adverse impacts 
where possible. 

To trigger Executive Order 12898, the effects of the project must be both adverse, and affect a 
low-income minority population more so than it would the general public. Adverse effects that 
appreciably put a minority or low-income population at an increase health risk or appreciably 
affect their physical or economic wellbeing will trigger Executive Order 12898. 

This proposed Agreed Order and Respondent's pending permit decision triggers Executive Order 
12898 because of the well-known adverse effects of particulate pollution on human health and 
safety and the siting of the facility in a predominately low-income and minority neighborhood. 
The Joppa community, especially the area immediately adjacent to and surrounding the 
Respondent's site, is comprised of mostly low-income, minority households. The population 
within a I-mile radius of the site is 96% people of color, 95% low-income and 59% linguistically 
isolated.75 The community has been historically disproportionately impacted by environmental 
injustices. As such, they have an acute and urgent interest in reducing harmful air pollutants in 
their neighborhoods that adversely impact respiratory health. 

The Joppa neighborhood to the north of Respondent's site is a predominantly low income, minority 
neighborhood compared to other neighborhoods in the City of Dallas and State of Texas. This 
status, combined with the concentration and proliferation of industrial sources of pollution, easily 
meets the definition of an environmental justice community. This is exactly the kind of community 
that Executive Order 12898 was designed to address. A decision to approve this Proposed Agreed 
Order furthers the TCEQ pattern of allowing companies to pollute in predominantly minority 
communities with minimal oversight, enforcement or penalty. Pollution in this neighborhood has 
adverse impacts on the health of the people living there, and further solidifies a broader history of 
environmental inequity that continues to threaten the environment and public health in low-income 
and minority communities across Texas. The TCEQ must, at the very least, examine those effects 
before making this decision. 

74 Exec. Order No. 12898, 59 Fed. Reg. 7629 ( 1994). 
75 U.S. EPA, EJSCREEN Demographic Indicators, available at: https ://ejscreen.epa.gov. 
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III. Conclusion 

JFT A's comment discloses facts and considerations that indicate that consent to this Proposed 
Agreed Order is inappropriate, improper, inadequate, and inconsistent with the requirements of 
the statutes and rules within the Commission's jurisdiction or the Commission's orders and permits 
issued in accordance with the Commission's regulatory authority. Therefore, JFTA urges the 
Commission to reject or withhold the approval of the Proposed Agreed Order and believes this is 
warranted based on the information already available. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Michael Bates Wendi Hammond Haley Varnadoe 

~ 
Counsel for JFT A - Joppa Freedmans Town Association (JFTA) 
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ATTACHMENT l 
24-89784 l ODAY REQUESTOR COPY 

Re: Part 2 of 2, Public Comments, Pending Agreed Order and Enforcement Action 
-TCEQ Case Number 63326, Docket Number: 2022-1557-AIR-E, Texas Star 
Ready Mix, LLC located at 4500 Great Trinity Forest Way, Dallas, Texas 
75082 regarding Proposed Agreed Order. 

On behalf ofits client, JoppaFreedmans Town Association (JFTA), Legal Aid of North West Texas 
(LANWT) submits in the above named and numbered matter the following: 

• public comments. 

All contact with JFT A and its members regarding this matter should be through its legal counsel: 

Michael Bates, Staff Attorney 
phone: (469) 917-5970 Ext. 8902 
email: batesm@lanwt.org 

Wendi Hammond, Staff Attorney 
phone; (469) 917-5970 Ext. 8903 
email; hammondw@lanwi.org 

Haley Varnadoe, Staff Attorney 
phone: (817) 882-1001 Ex. 8921 
email: vamadoeh@lanwt.org 

Legal Aid ofNorthWest Texas 
400 S. Zang Blvd., Ste. 1420 
Dallas, TX 75208 
Fax: (817) 736-1602 



Jon Niennann, Chainnan 

Emily Llndlcy, Commissioner 

Bobby Janecka, Commissioner 

Kelly Keel, fa(!('Utive Director 

'TExAs COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUAUTY 
Protectfng Texas hy Redudng and Preventfng Pollution 

January 3, 2024 

The Honorable Ken Paxton 
Office of the Attorney General 
Open Records Division 
Price Daniel Sr. Building, 6th Floor 
209 W. 14th Street 
Austin, Texas 78701 

Attention: Tamara Smith, Division Chief, Open Records Division 

Re: Request for Attorney General Decision 
Public Information Act Request Regarding Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC 
TCEQ Pill. No. 24-89784 

Dear Attorney General Paxton: 

The Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) received a Public Information Act (PIA) 
request for information regarding Texas Star Ready Mix, UC (Attachment A). This PIA request 
(Pill.) was made by Michael Bates on December l 5, 2023, and was received by TCEQ the same 
day. TCEQ was closed on December 25, 2023, and December 26, 2023, in observance of the 
Christmas holiday. TCEQ was dosed on January 1, 2024, in observance of New Year's Day. 
Therefore, the tenth business day after receipt of the request is January 3, 2024. 

TCEQ has provided the requestor with information TCEQ believes to be public. Other 
information, which TCEQ believes to be excepted from disclosure under the PIA, has not been 
released to the reque.stor. TCEQ has identified responsive information that involves the privacy 
or property interests of a third party, which TCEQ has declined to release for the purpose of 
requesting an attorney general decision. Pursuant tci Texas Government Code§ 552.30l(d)(l), 
the requestor was notified on this day by copy of this letter that TCEQ has withheld a portion 
of the requested information and requested an attorney general decision about whether the 
information is excepted from public disclosure (see courtesy copies listed in closing). in 
accordance with Tex. Gov't Code§§ 552.301 and 552.305, TCEQ requests a formal opinion on 
this matter. 

TCEQ claims the following exceptions to disclosure: Tex. Gov't Code§§ 552.101-552.162. 

The fifteenth business day from the date of receipt of the request is January 10, 2024. In 
accordance with Tex. Gov't Code§§ 552.30l(e) and 552.305(d), TCEQ will submit to the Office 
of the Attorney General by January I 0, 2024, a packet of information containing the following: 
(1) written comments stating the reasons why the exceptions stated in this letter apply; (2) a 
copy of the written request for informationi and (3) copies or representative samples of the 
specific information requested, labeled to indicate which exceptions apply to which parts of the 
copy, 

In accordance with Tex. Gov't Code § 552.305(d), on January 3, 2024, TCEQ notified Texas Star 
Ready Mix, LLC of this request for an attorney general decision and made available the third 
party documents that TCEQ will submit to the Office of the Attorney General (See Attachment 
B). 

P.O. Box 13087 • Austin, Texas 78711-3087 • 512-239-1000 • tr.eq.texas.gov 

How is our customer service'! tceq.texas.gov/customersurvey 
prln!,dllllr"'!·df<lpaprr 

2 



The Honorable Ken Paxton 
Request of Michael Bates 
TCEQ PIR No. 24-89784 
January 3, 2024 
page2 

I appreciate your response to thls request. If you have any questions about this matter, please 
contact Casey Kurnath, Staff Attorney, Litigation Division, Office of Legal Services, at 
Casey.Kurnath@tccq.tcxas.gov. 

Sin~ 

Elizabeth Cater, Public Information Counsel 
General Law Division, Office of Legal Services 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
Elizabeth.Cater@ltcegtexas.gov 

Enclosures 

cc: Michael Hates, via e-mail (without attachments) 
Erich Burch, via email (without attachments) 
Hana Alsarabi, via email (without attachments) 
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ATTACHMENT 2 
FOLLOW-UP: TEXAS STAR READY MIX, LLC; CASE NO. 63326; DOCKET NO. 

2022-1557-AIR-E 9.29.2023 REDACTED 

From: 
To: 

°'' Sl.lbject: 
Date: 

Attachments: 

Importance: 

AmrSetternMc 

=l1101JZ'ul@PUMwaY'~ 
Follow-up: Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC; Case No. 63326; Docket No. 2022-1557-AIR·E 
Friday, September 29, 2023 1:29:43 PM 
IRS form 8821 Qdf 
[nstwctlans for JBS fnrm Bfl?l Pdf 
IRS Eorm 4505 ndf 
TCEO 1mtn1ctloru; for lfl,$ FQCID'i RR21 anrt 45Q6.odf 
Sdledule of Indebtfdn@ Qdf 
DMosrn:e Form ndf 
imaaeOOJ nna 
High 

Good afternoon Mr. Albelbaisi, 

During our meeting yesterday, the financial inabilit)' to pay process was discussed and I 
committed to providing you the information necessary for the TCEQ to conduct an analysis 
regarding your ability to pay the administrative penalties. If you choose to do so, please provide 
the following information so that TCEQ staff can perform the analysis. 

By October 13, 2023, please provide directly to this office the information for the corporation: 

1. Completed disclosure fonns, 1RS Forms 8821 and 4506 (enclosed). The tax form numbers 
and tax periods requested on Form 4506 must correspond with the returns submitted in 
Item 2 below. A cover page is attached with instructions on how to complete for TCEQ 
purposes; 

2. Completed and signed federal corporate income tax returns, Including all schedules, 
forms, and attachments, for the last three (3) filing years. If the returns are copies 
without signature(s), please sign them; 

3. Financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
for the last three (3) years and most current monthly or quarterly period. The financial 
statements should include balance sheets, income statements, cash flow statements, and 
notes to the financial statements. Provide audited statements if they have been prepared; 

4. Completed copies of quarterly reports filed with the Texas Workforce Commission for the 
four (4) quarters of the most recently completed fiscal year and the completed quaners­
to-date for the current year; 

5. Completed Schedule of Indebtedness (enclosed) for all presently outstanding loans; 

6. Copies of the note agreements for each outstanding loan; 

7. Completed "Disclosure Form· Corporate/Partnership" (enclosed) for each financial 
institution with which the company has a loan(s) or deposit account(s); 

8. Copies of the most recent three (3) months bank statements for each account; 

9. A written schedule identifying corporate officers and each officer's total annual 
remuneration for the last three (3) years. Remuneration includes, but is not limited to, 
salary, wages, dividends, loans, vehicle allowances, bonuses, deferred compensation, 
stock options, life insurance, profit-sharing, and retirement account contributions; 

10. A lVri.tten schedule identifying shareholders of the company's voting stock. list the 
number of shares held, by shareholder, and the dollar value~ 

11. A written schedule identifying corporate affiliates that the company has an ownership 
interest in or that have an ownership interest in the company; 

12. Copies of all signed lease agreements to which the company is a party as lessor or lessee; 
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13. A list of company vehicles, including make, model, year, purchase date, purchase price, 
vehicle use, and primary driver; and 

14. A written statement explaining the financial reasons for the corporation's claim of 
inability to pay the full amount of the penalty, and an explanation of the amount that can 
be paid. The statement should consider but is not limited to the following: cash flow 
ability, short-term deferral of capital expenditures, ability to reduce expenses, borrowing 
capacity, existing liquid assets, and liquidation of or borrowing against non-essential 
assets. 

This request may not represent an all-tnclusive document request as review of the information 
above may necessitate a request for additional documents. 

Failure to submit the requested documents by October 13, 2023 will forfeit your 
opportunity for financial review. Consequently, financial impairment will not be 
considered for settlement purposes. Partial or incomplete submissions of information will 
be treated as nonresponsive. 

The documentation specified above should be submitted to: 

Ms. Yuliya Dunaway, Enforcement Coordinator 

Air Enforcement Section, MC R13 

Enforcement Division 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

14250 Judson Road 

San Antonio, Texas 78233-4480 

Additionally, you inquired whether payment plans were available should you 
choose to settle the case. We do have payment plans available. The overall 
length of the payment plan can vary but pursuant to 30 Texas Administrative 
Code §70.9, they can be no more than 36 months. If you were to decide to settle 
with a 36-month payment plan, your initial payment would be $690 and the 
payment for the remaining 35-months would be $666. 

Although it is our desire to resolve this matter sooner, the official settlement 
deadline is November 7, 2023. If we do not receive settlement, or you .do not 
timely submit your financial inability to pay documentation, we may forward 
your case to the TCEQ's litigation Division and the origtnal settlement offer, 
including the penalty deferral, will no longer be available. 

If you have any other questions or concerns regarding the information in this email, please do 
not hesitate to call me at (512) 239-2588 or send me an email at 

Sincerely, 

Amy Settemeyer 
(512) 239-2588 
Deputy Director 
Enforcement Division 

Thank you for your prompt attention to this matter. 
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ATTACHMENT 3 
PIRI R4 89784 

AIR CP _111648234_CP _20230829_Investigation_1924559_ 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
Investigation Report 

The TCEQ is committed to accessibilil}'. Ir you need assistance in accessing this document, please contact oce@tccq.texas.gov 

Customer: Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC 
Customer Number: CN605903574 

Regulated Entity Name: TEXAS Sl'AR READY MIX CBP SN 78043 

Regulated Entity Number: RN111648234 

Investigation # 1924559 Incident Numbers 
Investigator: ADAM MASON 

C'.onducted: 08/29/2023-- 08/29/2023 

Program(s): AIR NEW SOURCE PERMITS 

Investigation Type: Compliance Investigation 

Additional 1D(s): 171636 

Site Classification MINOR SOURCE 

SIC Code: 3273 

Location: 

Address: 4500 GREJ\T TRINllY FOREST 
WAY, 

Weal Unit: REGION 04 - DFW MKTROPLl::X 

DALLAS, TX , 75216 
Activity Typc(s): AIRPIOS - AIR AIRFIOS - ONSITE 

FOLi.OW UP INV 

Principa)W..: 
Role 
IlliSl10NDENT 

Contactlsl: 

Role 
REGULATED 
F.NTITY 
CONTACT 

Title 

OWNER 

Name 

TEXAS STAR READY MIX LLC 

Name 

EYAD ALBELBAISI 

NOECONTACT MANAGER MS Hana Alsarahi 

Qlhcr StaffMember{s): 
Role 
QA Reviewer 
Investigator 
Supervisor 
Investigator 

Cha:klist Name 

Name 
ELIZAI!ETH SMITH 
ANSLEY HAMID 
KIMllEKLJ FOWLER 
ASHLEIGH HADDOCK 

Associated Check List 

AIR GENERIC INVESTIGATION (10 ITEMS) 
J.!niUl!mru., 
AIRFI 

lnvestigatiou Comments; 
Introduction: 

Phone 
Cell 
Phone 

Cell 

OCT O 5 2023 

!!475·5U95 

-

On August 29, 2023, Mr. Atlam Mason, Ms. Ansley Hamid, and Ms. Ashleigh Haddock1 Envirn11mental 
lmcstigalors (Jnve.stigalors) of the Tcxa:s Commission 011 Environmental Quality (TCEQ), Dallas/Fort Worth 
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TEXAS STARREADYMIXCBP SN 78043 • DALLAS 

8/29/2023 Inv. # • 1924559 

Pagezof ~------------------------------------­
(DFW) Region Office, Air Section, Compliance Team conducted an Air Quality Onsite Follow Up Investigation 
(AlRFIOS) at Texas Star Ready Mix (Facility) located at 4500 Great Trinity Forest Way, Dallas, Dallas County, 
Texas. 

This investigation reviewed cu1Tent activities at the facility following an investigation conducted by the Dallas 
Local Air Program (LAP) on August 9, 2023, Investigation Number 1924451, and statements made by company 
representatives during a Public Meeting held on August 17, 2023, where representatives stated that the facility 
was still operating without authorization. The facility ope.rates under Registration number 39039 which is for 
Pennit by Rule (PBR) 30 Texas Administration Code (TAC) 106.144 for Bulle Mineral Handling. The current 
registration for bulk mineral handling does not authorize a concrete batch plant. A Notice of Enforcement Letter 
was sent to the facility on October 12, 2022, and the order is pending. 

Mr. EyadAlbelbaisi is the Regulated Entity (RE) mail contact and participated in this investigation. 

Daily Narrative 
On August 29, 2023, the investigators arrived near the site at approximately 11:44 AM and took weather readings. 
The temperature was approximately 83.6 degrees Fahrenheit with 51.8% humidity. The wind was approximately 
0.9 to 2 Miles per Hour (MPH) from the west southwest and a partly cloudy sky. While off site the investigators 
noted that the facility appeared to be shut down. The investigators obseived the batch plant for approximately 20 
minutes and did not note any equipment in operation. Activities were ongoing onsite such as truck maintenance, 
but the concrete batch plant was not operating. 

After arriving on site, the investigators spoke to Mr. Albelbaisi about the scope and purpose of the investigation. 
The investigator asked when the last time the concrete batch plant was in operation. Mr, Albelbaisi stated that he 
stopped operating the facility approximately two weeks ago on August 9, 2023, folJowingthe investigation by the 
Dallas LAP. 

Tbe investigator provided an exit interview fonn documenting an alleged ongoing violation for unauthorized 
operation up to August 9, 2023. Mr. Mason also explained that this continuing violation will be referred to 
enforcement. This violation is considered Category A2.d in accordance with the EIC, Revision 17, and classified as 
major. The investigators left the site at approximately 12:55 PM. 

EKit Interview: 
Mr. Mason informed Mr .A1belbaisi of the results of the investigation on August 29, 2023, and provided him an 
exit intetview form while onsite. 

GENERALFACILI1Y AND PROCESS INFORMATION, 
Process Description 
The facility operates as a concrete batch plant and performs batch mixing. Concrete trucks are loaded onsite and 
mixes on site prior to leaving the facility property line. 

BACKGROUND, 
Compliance History: 
REName, TEXASSTARREADYMIX RN,m648234 
Classification: UNCLASSIFIED Rating: o Publication Date: Aug 29, 2023 
Customer Name TEXAS STAR READY MIX LLC CN: 605903574 
Classification: UNCLASSIFJEO Rating: o PubJication Date: Aug 29, 2023 

Agreed Orders, Court Orders, and Other Compliance .Agreements: 
A Notice of Enforcement dated October 12, 2022, was sent to the facility for failure to obtain authorization prior 
to the operation of the concrete batch plant. Order 2022-1557-AIR-E is pending, 

Prior Enforcement Issues: 
A Notice of Enforcement dated October 12, 2022, was sent to the facility for failure to obtain authorization prior 
to the operation of the concrete batch plant. 

Complaints: 
None in the last two years. 
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TEXAS STAR READY MIX CBP SN 78043 • DALLAS 

8/29/2023 Inv. # - 1924559 

Page3of4 

Conclusions, Recommendations and Current Enforcement Actions: 
One violation was noted during this investigation for continued operation without authorization. A Notice of 
Enforcement Letter will be sent. 

Additional Issues: 
None. 

NOE. Date: 9/112023 

Track Number: 856144 Compliance Due Date: To Be Determined 

Violation Start Date: 11/4/2022 

30 TAC Chapter 116.uo(a) 
5C THSC Chapter 382.0518(a) 
sC THSC Chapter 382.085(b) 

Alleged Violation: 

Investigation: 1924559 Comment Date: 08/31/2023 
Failure to obtain authorization prior to the construction and operation of a concrete batch plant. Specifically, 
during an investigation conducted on August 29, 2023, it was noted that the facility constructed and operated 
a concrete batch plant without authorization up to August 9, 2023, 

Recommended Corrective Action: Obtain authorization prior to the construction and operation of a 
concrete batch plant. 

Signed 

Environmental Investigator 

Signed Date _9/1/2023 __ 

Supervisor 
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TEXAS STAR READY MIX CBP SN 78043 - DALLAS 

8/29/2023 Inv.# - 1924559 

Attachments: (in order of final report submittal) 

_§.Jlforcement Action Request (EAR!~~ 

_/_J.L~etter to Facility (specify type):-'-~'--''-"'--­

Investigation Report 

_Sample Analysis Results 

_Manifests 

_Notice of Registration 

9 

_Maps, Plans, Sketches 

_Photographs 

~5Prrespondence from the facility 

_Lother (specify): 

'f,,y,,'f Jr,f-c,/;cw 



TCEQ 
DFWRegion 

Attachment 1 
Exit Interview 

TEXAS STAR READY MIX CBP SN 78043 -RNl 11648234 
Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC - CN605903574 

Investigation No.: I 924559 
Investigation Date: August 29, 2023 

Investigator: Adam Mason 
Pages: 2 

10 



TCEQ EXIT INTERVIEW FORM: Potenllal Violations and/or Records Rtq■ested 

Rtplated Eatlt)/Slle N- -

Rtplated Eatlt)' CHlact 

lltlr 

\ O fl( F: O.•mt, nlffl>lrotn r rm ld: bnl)' I 1<Mio<.1ha1bl-.11n«11~lli• _,.. 
n..._l,r,:, l.fflJ1,,,._t1, l , inbhti(h d t .m'l'f\'d afl«d.} m1c:nn•i bwl•illbc-
NU,'11\ ~•m -~ · h11ot, 10ft. lh('luif1RA .WLi1tKW-I viobti°'" i<tpowtttial,iolMinnfdilCOV • 

u, ...... 
IAdniclultn ....... 

::a_~-.:,--...,----
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See note: VI/ho Fills out ttm EAR? u 

Enforcement 
Action 
Referral 

Rev. 3/1812002 

Inv.# 

Enf Casa 

Media 
Code: 

ID CN605903574 

1924559 

AQ 

Initiated by: Region, LP, Central: Region 

Name of Initiating Office: REGION 04 • DFW 
METROPLEX 

Section 1: Respondent 

I Role I RESP PARTY 

Name TEXAS STAR READY MIX LLC 

Mailing StreeUPO Box 4500 GREAT TRINITY FOREST WAY 
Address Clty/State/Zi p DALLAS. TX 75216-5019 

Phone (214) 475-5095 I Fax 

Primary Contact (NOE Contact) 
Name HANA ALSARABI I OrganizaUon TEXAS STAR READY MIX LLC 

Title MANAGER I Phone (214) 475-5095 I Fax 

Section 2: Respondent's Facility/Operation (F/0) 

FIOID 

F/0 Name 

F/0 Physical Address 

-- Location City 

Location County 

Primary Business Activity 

SNCorHPV? 

Potentially Affected Area 

List any NOVs?Orders for same 
or slmllar violations at this F/0 

In the past 5 years. 

Addltlonal IDs 

RN111648234 

TEXAS STAR READY MIX CBP SN 78043 

4500 GREAT TRINITY FOREST WAY 

DALLAS Location Zip 75216 

DALLAS Operatlonal Status Active 

Concrete Batch Plant 1ype of Small Entity Small Business 

N/A SIC Code 3273 

NIA Complaints Closed 0 

VTN 825200 -ORDER 2022-1557-AIR-E 

171636 

Section 3: Summary of Violations See note: lndusUon of Resolved or 
Verbal Vlolatlons u 
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Viol Requirements Cited Violation Dates Investigation/ Date of ... CAT 
Num Vi01Stii:iii b8SCrlJ)ti0ri Start End File Review NOV NOE 

856144 30 TAC Chapter 116.110(8) 11/412022 819/2023 08/29/2023 u111u1/2023 A 
5C THSC Chapter 382.0518(a) 11/412022 819/2023 08/29/2023 09/01/2023 A 
-~~. T.':l~.c;:-~.~~J?~r .~~~:~~-~(~). 11/4/2022 8/9/2023 08/29/2023 09/01/2023 A 

Failure to obtain authorization prior to the construction and operation of a concrete batch plant. 

Section 4: Additional Discussion 

VTN 856144: Failure to obtain authorization prior to the construction and operation of a concrete batch 
plant, in violation of 30 TAC §116.110(a). The facility consbucted and operated a concrete batch plant without 
authorization as documented during the investigation conducted on August 29, 2023. The concrete batch plant 
was in operation up to August 9, 2023. This violation is considered Category A2.d in accordance with the EiC, 
Revision 17, and classified as major. The violation warrants formal enforcement. 

N/A 

Name 

Signature 

Phone 

Section 5: Additional Issues 

Section 6: Information About Initiating Office 

Adam Mason 
Date September 1, 2023 

E-Mail Adam.Mason@tceq.texas.gov 

(817)588-5889 

Date CJ 

E-Mail Kimberli.Fowler@tceq.texas.gov 
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Jon Niermann, Chairman 

Emily Lindler, Commissioner 
Bobb}' Janecka, Commts,toner 
Toby Baker, faecutive Direc1or 

TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

Prolecting Texas by Reducing and Preventing Polrution 

September 1, 2023 

E·CERTIFIED CONFIRMATION #917196900935 0298 5387 01 

Ms. Hana Alsarabi, Manager 
Texas Star Ready Mix, UC 
4500 Great Trinity Forest Way 
Dallas, TX 75216-5019 

Re: Notice of Enforcement for Compliance Evaluation Investigation at: 
Texas Star Ready Mix CBP SN78043, 4500 Great Trinity Forest Way, Dallas, Dallas County, 
Texas 
RN111648234,CN605903574 

Dear Ms. Alsarabi: 

On August 29, 2023, Mr. Adam Mason of the Texas Commission on Envirorunental Quality (TCEQ) 
DFW Region Office conducted an investigation of the above-referenced regulated entity to 
evaluate compliance with applicable requirements for air quality. During this investigation, 
certain outstanding alleged violations were documented. Enclosed is a summary which lists the 
investigation findings. 

In the listing of the alleged violations, we have cited applicable requirements, including TCEQ 
rules. Please note that both the rules themselves and the agency brochure entitled Obtaining 
TCEQ Rules (GI 032) are located on our agency website at http://www.tceg.state.tx.us for your 
reference. If you would like a hard copy of this brochure mailed to you, you may call and request 
one from either the DFW Region Office at 817/588-5800 or the Central Office Publications 
Ordering Team at 512/239-0028. 

Also, please be advised that the Legislature has granted enforcement powers to the TCEQ to carry 
out its mission to protect human health and the environment. Due to the apparent seriousness 
of the alleged violations, formal enforcement action has been initiated, and additional violations 
may be cited upon further review. We encourage you to immediately begin taking actions to 
address the outstanding alleged violations. 

In responding with prompt corrective action, the administrative penalty to be assessed may 
be limited. 

The Commission recognizes that the great majority of the regulated community wants to prevent 
pollution and to comply with environmental laws. We dedicate considerable resources toward 
making voluntary compliance achievable. But where compliance has not been met it is our duty 
to protect the public and the environment by enforcing the state's environmental laws, 
regulations, and permits. 

TCEQ Region -l·Dallas/Fort Worlh • 2309 Gra\·el Dr. • Fort IYorlh, Texas 761JH951 • 817-588-5800 • Fax 817-588·5700 

Austin Headquarters: 512-239· lO00 • f(eq.texas.gov • How is our customer service? tteq.texas.go,·/customersun'er 
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Ms. Hana Alsarabl, Manager 
Page 2 
September 1, 2023 

Also, if you believe the violations documented in this notice have been cited in error, and you 
have additional information that we are unaware of, you may request a meeting to discuss this 
enforcement matter. To request meeting, send a letter describing the additional information to 
the address shown below. 

Manager,. Air Section 
Enforcement Division, MC 219 
Re: Enforcement Meeting Request 
Texas Commission on En.Vironm.ental Quality 
P.O. Box 13087 
Austin, Texas 78711-3087 

If you or members of your staff have any questions, please feel free to contact Mr. Mason in the 
Air Section in the DFW Region Office at (817) 588-5889. 

,-~~~~ ~i!0
worth Region Office 

Texas Com.mission on Environmental Quality 

KSF/amm 

Enclosures: Summary of Investigation Findings 
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4500 GREAT TRINITY FOREST WAY 

DALLAS, DALLAS COUNTY, TX 75216 

nvest1gaUon 

investl~~gate: 08/29/2023 

Additional ID(s): 171636 

Compliance Due Date: To Be Determined 
30 TAC Chapter 116.110(a) 
SC THSC Chapter 382.0618(a) 
SC THSC Chapter 382.085(b) 

Alleged Violation: 

Investigation: 1924559 Comment Date: 09/0112023 

Failure to obtain authorization prior to the construction and operation of a concrete batch 
plant. Specifically, during an investigation conducted on August 29, 2023, it was noted that 
the facility constructed and operated a concrete batch plant without authorization up to August 
9, 2023. 

Recommended Corrective Action: Obtain authorization prior to the construction and 
operation of a concrete batch plant. 

Summary of Investigation Findings 
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ATTACHMENT 4 
RE: PROPOSED ORDER DOCKET 2022-1557-AIR-E 

From1 
To; 
c:., 
Subject: 
Date; 
Attllchm11nt::II: 

""'-""'l!lt 

Amv f£ruc AL Jessica Barnlrm: 
RE; Proposed order Docket 2022-1557-ATR·E 
ThW'Sday, september 14, 2023 4:ts:oo PM 
Texas Star BPiJdY Mix 11 C ndf -Mr. Albelbaisi, 

I am the Director of the Office of Compliance and Enforcement at the Texas 
Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ). I understand you received the 
attached proposed offer of settlement to resolve this enforcement matte1·. A 
proposed agreed 01·der was included for yolll' signature. This matter concerns 
operation of a facility without a proper authorization (from September 12,2022-
August 9, 2023). I also understand you are the representative of and are 
authorized to act on behalf of Texas Ready Mix, LLC. 

You1· below correspondence appears to indicate a general denial of all the TCEQ's 
allegations, which could be construed as an outright 1·ejection of our settlement 
offer and an unwillingness to settle. As noted in the letter, such an outright 
rejection would terminate settlement discussions, and immediately move this 
matter into either administrative or civil litigation to resolve the State's claims. 
However, before I refer this matter to litigation, I want to offer you an 
opportunity to reconsider your cw-rent posture. Therefore, I request your 
attendance at a meeting with me and the Deputy Director for the Enforcement 
Division, Amy Settemeyer, at my office in TCEQ's headquarters in Austin, Texas. 
Days/times available for this meeting include: 

• Thlll'sday, September 21 at 10:30; 
Wednesday, September 27, at 1:30; or 

• Thursday, September 28, at 1:30. 

Please let us know which day/time works for you, and we will send you location 
instructions. If you are represented by counsel, please let me know so that your 
counsel may be properly included. 

Sincerely, 

Craig Pritzlaff 
Director I Office of Compliance and Enforcement 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
(01512.239.5160 I (Cl 512.695.3719 
craig pritzJaff@tcea texas goy 

From: 
Sent: Tuesday, September 12, 2023 12:55 PM 

To: Yuliya Dunaway<yuliya.dunaway@tceq.texas.gov> 

Subject: RE: Proposed order Docket 2022-1557-AIR-E 
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Hello Yuliya, 

I will be sharing files with you showing proper authorization prior to construction and information 

about standard exemptions. Please forward them to the department who issued the proposed 

order. Further we never received a proper notice and the cited violation does not apply to us. 

Ed 

From: Yuliya Dunaway <vuliya.dunawav@tceg te)ca<i gov> 

Sent: Friday, September 8, 2023 7:54 AM 

To: 
Subject: Proposed order Docket 2022-1557-AIR-E 

Good morning Mr. Albelbaisi, 

The proposed order we were discussing earlier, was approved and mailed out from Austin. 

I am including a copy of the proposed order for your convenience. 

Please let me know if you have any questions/concerns. 

Thank you, 

Yuliya Dunaway, P.G. 

Enforcement Coordinator 

Enforcement Division 

Office: 210-490-3096 

Direct:210-403-4077 

Fax: 210-403-4069 

1-
1 lfJJ 
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ATTACHMENT 5 
RE: TCEQ ENFORCEMENT INVESTIGATION 1846525 

g,;gg,g 
IE!laQEttlc.u.u.;.*~d46525 
flbtda!rt. ~ 12, 202215:3):32 FM 
IMl,:rQ'.l;!cqjl 

Goad Afternoon Yuliya., 

As we spoke,. the current permit should be .sufficient.. 

• Aine cam:iu 
Office of Air I Air Pennits Division I NSR Mechanical Section 
{512) 23!H362 

■ StevenStump 

Thanks, 
Ed 

Ext6107 

STEVEN.STUMP@TCEQ.TEXA.S.GOV 

{214) 47S-S09S 

fl'Om: Vlliliy;a Oun away <y-uliya..dunaway@tceq.texas.gov> 

Sent: Friday., November 18., 2022 10::13 AM 

Tac 

Subjea: TCEQ Enfon:ement Investigation 1846525 

Good afternoon Mr. Albelbai:si, 

This is a courtesy email notifying you 'dlat ( am tihe TCEQ Enforcement Coordinato!r assigned to the 
Texas Star Reacly Mix case relating to lnve~ion No.1846525. 

If you !have any questions, would like to submit any documents, orineecl anvadditional information., 
please liet me ikll"low. 

Thank you, 

Yutliya Dunaway, GJ.T. 

Enfon:ement Coordin.atm 
Enfon::ement DMSion 

Office; 210-490-3096 
Direct:210-403-4077 

Fax: 210-403-4069 

0 
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ATTACHMENT 6 
REVISED PAO 11-10-23 TEXAS STAR READY MIX 2022-1557-AIR-E 

Jon Niermann, .Chairman 

Emily Lindley, ~ommLl'stoner 

Bobby Janecka; Commissioner 

Kelly Keel, Interim Executrve Director 

TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENv!RONMENTAL QUALITY 
Protecting Texas by Reducing and Preventing Pollurton 

' 

November IO, 2023 

Mr. Eyad Albclbaisi, Owner 
Te~as Star Ready Mix, LLC 
25 Lochleven 
Richardson, Texas 75082 

Re: Revised Proposed Agreed Order 
Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC 
RNI 11648234; Docket No. 2022-1557-AIR-E; Enforcement Case No. 63326 
FOR SETnEMENT PURPOSES ONLY 

Dear Mr. Albe]baisi: 

This letter is to inform you that the TCEQ's Financial Administration Division completed its 
review of Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC's financial documents. Based on this, the following 
revision has been··made: Section I Ourlsdiction and Stipulations): Paragraph No. 4 has been 
modified to incorporate a revised penalty amount of $3,600 and penalty payment schedule. 
Please note that the first payment is for $100. The remaining amount of $3,500 of the 
undeferred penalty shall be paid in 35 month1y payments of $100 each. 

Although this revised order replaces the proposed order endosed in the Texas Commission on 
Environmental Quality ("TCEQ") Jetter dated September 7, 2023, the terms and conditions noted 
in the September 7, 2023 letter still apply. If you agree with the revised order as proposed, 
please sign and return this order with an original signature and the first penalty payment of 
SIOO no later than Friday, November 171 2023, (chedc payable to 'TCEQ" and referencing 
Texas Star Ready Mix, Ll.C, Docket Na. 2022-1557-AIR-E) to: 

Financial Administration Division, Revenue Operations Section 
Cashier's Office, MC 214 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
P.O. Bax 13088 
Austin, Texas 78711-3088 

r.o. Box 13087 • Austin, Te,,.-as 78711·3087 • 512-239-1000 • tceq.1cxas,gov 

How Is our customer snrvlcn? tceg.te.'(as.gov/customer6Ul"Vey 
p~nl<d oo nq'tltd 9'1'<' 

20 



Mr. Eyad Albelbaisi 
Page 2 
November 10, 2Q23 

Enclosed for youi- convenience is a rctui-n envelope, Please noie that any agreements: we reach 
are subject to firial approval by the Commission. For any questions or comments about this 
matter, please contact Ms. Yuliya Dunaway of my staff at (210} 403-4077 or at 
yuliya.dunaway@:tceq.texas.gov. 

Sincerely, 

'hJrD.:-,.~ 
Michael De La Cruz, Manager 
Enforcement Division 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

MD/yd 

Enclosures: Revised Proposed Agreed Order, Return Envelope 

cc: Mr. Joseph Vu1 P.G., Manager, City of Dallas, Office of Environmental Quality & 
Sustainability, 1500 Marilla Street, 7AN, Dallas, Texas 75201 

Mr. Erich Birch, Attorney at Law, Birch Becker & Moorman LLP, via e-mail 
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TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

IN THE MATIER OF AN 
ENFORCEMENT ACTION 
CONCERNING 
TEXAS ST AR READY MIX, LLC 
RNlll648234 

§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 

BEFORE THE 

TEXAS COMMISSION ON 

ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

AGREED ORDER 
DOCKET NO. 2022·1557·AIR·E 

I. JURISDICTION AND STIPULATIONS 

On---------~ the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality ("the 
Commission" or 'TCEQ") considered this agreement of the parties, resolving an enforcement 
action regarding Texas Star Ready Mi~, LLC (the "Respondent") under the authority of TEX. 
HEALTH & SAFE1Y CODE ch, 382 and TEx, WATER CODE ch, 7. The Executive Director of the TCEQ, 
through the Enforcement Division, and the Respondent together stipulate that: 

I. The Respondent owns and operates a concrete batch plant located at 4500 Great Trinity 
Forest Way in Dallas, Dallas County, Texas (the "Plant"). The Plant consists or consisted 
of one or more sources as defined in TEX. HEALTII & SAFETY CODE§ 382.003(12). 

2. The Executive Director and the Respondent agree that the TCEQ has jurisdiction to enter 
this Order pursuant to TEx. WATER CODE§§ 7.002, 7.0511 and 7.073, and that the 
Respondent is subject to TCEQ's jurisdiction. The TCEQ has Jurisdiction in this matter 
pursuant to TEX. WATER CODE§ 5.013 because it alleges violations of TEX. HEALTII & SAFEIT 
CODE ch. 382 and the rules of the TCEQ. 

3. The occurrence of any violation is in dispute and the entry of this Order shall not 
constitute an admission by the Respondent of any violation alleged in Section II 
("Allegations"), nor of any statute or rule. 

4. An administrative penalty in the amount of $30,000 is assessed by the Commission in 
settlement of the violations alleged in Section II ("Allegations"). The Revenue Operations 
Section of TCEQ's Financial Administration Division reviewed financial documentation 
submitted by the Respondent and determined that the Respondent is unable to pay all 
or part of the penalty. Therefore, $26,400 of the penalty is deferred contingent upon 
the Respondent's compliance with all the terms of this Order and shall be waived only 
upon full compliance With this Order. If the Respondent fails to comply with any 
requirement of this Order, including any payment schedule, the E.'(ecutiVe Director may 
require the Respondent to pay all or part of the deferred penalty. 

The Respondent paid $100 of the undeferred penalty. The remaining amount of $3,500 
of the undeferred penalty shall be paid in 35 monthly payments of $100 each. The first 
monthly payment shall be paid within 30 days after the effective date of this Order. The 
subsequent payments shall each be paid not later than 30 days following the due date of 
the previous payment until the penalty is paid in full. If the Respondent fails to comply 
with the payment reqUirements of this Order, including the payment schedule, the 
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Texas Siar Ready Mix, LLC 
DOCKET NO. 2022-1557-AIR·E· 
Page 2 

Executive Director may·accelerate the maturity of the remaining fnstallments, in which 
event the unpaid balance shall become immediately due and payable 'without demand or 
notice. The Respondent's failure to meet the payment schedule of this Order and/or the 
&cceleration of any rem.aining balance constit~tes the failure by the ~espondent to 
timely and satisfactorily comply with all the terms of this Order and the Executive 
Director may demand payment of all or part of the deferred penalty. 

5. The Executive Director and the Respondent agree on a settlement of the matters alleged 
in this enforcement action, subject to final approval in accordance with 30 TEX. ADMIN. 
CODE.§ 70.IO(a). Any notice and procedures, which might otherwise be authorized or 
required in this action, are waived 1n the interest of a more timely resolution of the 
matter. 

6. The Executive Director may, without further notice or hearing, refer this matter to the 
Office of the Attorney General of the State of Texas ("OAG") for further enforcement 
proceedings if the E."ecutive Director determines that the Respondent has not complied 
with one or more of the terms or conditions in this Order. 

7. This Order represents the complete and fully integrated agreement of the parties. The 
provisions of this Order are deemed severable and, if a court of competent jurisdiction 
or other appropriate authority deems any provision of this Order unenforceable, the 
remaining provisions shall be valid and enforceable. 

8. This Order shall terminate five years from its effective date or upon compliance with all 
the terms tmd conditions set forth in this Order, whichever is later. 

9. The Executive Director recognizes that the Respondent implemented the following 
corrective measures at the Plant: 

a. On January 30, 2023, submitted a registration for Standard Permit RegistratJon 
No. 171636 to authorize the concrete batch plant and the associated emissions 
at the Plant; and 

b. On August 9, 2023, temporarily ceased operating the concrete batch plant. 

II. ALLEGATIONS 

During investigations at the Plant conducted on September 12, 2022 and August 29, 2023, 
Investigators documented that the Respondent failed to obtain authorization prior to 
constructing or modifying a source of air contaminants, in violation of 30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE 
§ 116.llO(a) and TEX. HEALTH & SAFETY CODE§§ 382.0518(a) and 382.0SS(b). Specifically, the 
Respondent operated a concrete batch plant prior to obtaining the proper authorization from 
September 12, 2022 until temporarily ceasing operation on August 9, 2023. 

ID.DENIALS 

The Respondent generally denies each allegation in Section II ("Allegations"). 

IV. ORDERING PROVISIONS 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENT AL QUALITY ORDERS that: 
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Texas Star Ready ~ix, LLC 
DOCKET NO. 2022-1557-AIR·E 
Page 3 

l. The Respolldent is assessed a perialty as set forth in Section I, Paragraph No. 4.-' The 
payment of this penalty and the Respondent's compliance with all of the requirements 
set forth in_ this Order resolve only the allegations in Section H. The Commission shall 
not be constrained in any manner from requiring corrective action or penalties for 
violations Which are not raised hefe. Penalty payments ~hall be made payable U> "TCEQ" 
and shall be sent with the notation "Re: Texas Star Ready Mix, I.LC, Docket No. 2022· 
1557-AIR-E" to: 

Financial Administration Division, Revenue Operations Section 
Attention: Cashier's Office, MC 214 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
P.O. Box 13088 
Austin, Texas 78711-3088 

2. The Respondent shall undertake the following techn1cal requirements at the Plant: 

a. Immediately upon the effective date of this Order, cease operating until the 
proper authorization for the concrete batch plant has been obtained in 
accordance with 30 Tue. ADMIN. CODE§ llG.ll0(a). 

b. Within 15 days after the effective date of this Order, submit written certification 
demonstrating compliance with Ordering Provision No. 2.a., as described in 
Ordering Provision No. 2.d. 

c. Respond completely and adequately, as determined by the TCEQ, to all requests 
for information concerning the registration for Standard Pcirmit Registration No. 
171636 within any deadlines specified in writing. 

d. Within 180 days after the effective date of this Order, submlt written 
certification that either the authorization has been obtained or that operations 
of the concrete batch plant have permanently ceased, and include detailed 
supporting documentation including photographs, receipts, and/or other 
records to demonstrate compliance. The certification shall be signed by the 
Respondent and shall include the foUowing certification language: 

"I certify under pena1ty of law that I have personally e.'Xam.ined 
and am familiar with the information submitted and all attached 
documents, and that based on my inquiry of those individuals 
immediately responsible for obtaining the information, I believe 
that the submitted information is true, accurate and complete. I 
am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false 
information, including the possibility of fines and imprisonment 
for lmowing violations." 

The certification shall be submitted to: 

Enforcement Division, MC I 49A 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
P.O. Box 13087 
Austin, Texas 78711-3087 
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Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC 
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with ~ copy to: 

Air Section Manager 
Dallas/Fort Worth Regional Office . 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
2309 Gravel Drive 
Fort Worth, Texas 76118-6951 

and a copy to: 

Air Program Manager 
City of Dallas 
Office of Envtromental Quality & Sustainability 
1500 Marilla Street, 7 AN 
Dallas, Texas 75201 

3. All relief not expressly granted in this Order is denied. 

4. The duties and provisions imposed by this Order shall apply to and be binding upon the 
Respondent. The Respondent is ordered to give notice of this Order to personnel who 
maintain day-to-day control over the Plant operations referenced in this Order. 

5. If the Respondent fails to comply with any of the Ordering Provisions in this Order 
within the prescribed schedules, and that failure is caused solely by an act of God, war, 
strike, riot, or other catastrophe, the Respondent's failure to comply is not a violation of 
this Order. The Respondent shall have the burden of establishing to the Executive 
Director's satisfaction that such an event has occurred. The Respondent shall notify the 
Executive Director within seven days after the Respondent becomes aware of a delaying 
event and shall take all reasonable measures to mitigate and minimize any delay. 

6. The Executive Director may grant an extension of any deadline in this Order or in any 
plan, report, or other document submitted pursuant to this Order, upon a written and 
substantiated showing of good cause. All requests for extensions by the Respondent 
shall be made in writing to the F.xecutive Director. Extensions are not effective until the 
Respondent receives Mitten approval from the Executive Director. The determination 
of what constitutes good cause rests solely with the Executive Director. £.\'.tension 
requests shall be sent to the Enforcement Division at the address listed above. 

7. This Order, issued by the Commission, shall not be admissible against the Respondent 
in a civil proceeding, unless the proceeding is brought by the DAG to: (1) enforce the 
terms of this Order; or (2) pursue Violations of a statute within the Commission's 
jurisdiction, or of a rule adopted or nn order or permit issued by the Commission under 
such a statute. 

8. This Order may be executed in separate and multiple counterparts, which together shall 
constitute a single instrument. Any page of this Order may be copied, scanned, 
digitized, converted to electronic portable document format ("pdf'), or otherwise 
reproduced and may be transmitted by digital or electronic transmission, including but 
not limited to facsimile transmission and electronic man. Any signature affixed to this 
Order shall constitute an original signature for all purposes and may be used, filed, 
substituted, or issued for any purpose for which an original signature could be used. 
The term "signature" shall include manual signatures and true and accurate 
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DOCKET NO. 2022·1557-AIR-E 
Page~ • 

reproductions of maitual signatures created; executed, endorsed, adopted, or authorized 
by the person or persons to whom the signatures are attributab]e. ,Signatures may be 
copied or reproduced digitally, electronically, by photocopying, engraving, imprinting, 
lithographing, electronic mail, facsimile trarismission, stamping, or any other means or 
process which the Executive Director deems: acceptable. In this paragraph e."Cclusively, 
the terms: e1ectronktransmission, owner, Person, writing, and written, shall have the 
meanings assigned to them under TFJC. Bus, ORG, CODE§ 1.002. 

9. The effective date of this Order is the date it is signed by the Commission. A copy of 
this fully executed Order shall be provided to each of the partil'!s. 
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Texas Star Ready Mix,:uc 
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SIGNATURE PAGE 

TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENT AL QUALITY 

For the Commission Date 

For the Executive Director Date 

I, the undersigned, have read and understand the attached Order. I am authorized to agree to 
the attached Order, and I do agree to the terms and conditions specified therein. I further 
acknowledge that the TCEQ, in accepting payment for the penalty amount, is materially relying 
on such representation. 

I also understand that failure to comply with the Ordering Provisions, if any, in this Order 
and/or failure to timely pay the penalty amount, may result in: 

A negative impact on compliance history; 
Greater scrutiny of any permit applications submitted; 
Referral of this case to the OAG for contempt, injunctive relief, additional penalties, 
and/or attorney fees, or to a collection agency; 
Increased penalties in any future enforcement actions; 
Automatic referral to the OAG of any future enforcement actions; and 
TCEQ seeking other relief as authorized by law. 

In addition, any falsification of any compliance documents may result in criminal prosecution. 

Signature 

Name (Printed or typed) 
Authorized Representative of 
Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC 

Date 

Title 

□ If malling address has changed, please check this box and provide the new address below: 

Instructions: Send the original, signed Order with penalty payment to the Financial Administration 
Division, Revenue Operations Section at the address fn Ordering Provision I of this Order. 
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ATTACHMENT 7 
TEXAS STAR 10.30.2023 REDACTED 

..... , 
To: 
ca -...... -

AmY5ebfne'ler 
~ CJii9 PribWf 
Casev Kurna.\h; Ovsal &Iden, Mjchae/ Qrlaquz 
RE1Teiras.!ila' 
Mcmday, Octnber 30, 2023 1:13:14 llM 
!rntmi!ll rPDP 

Good afternoon Erich -

We have reviewed your requested language revisions to the draft proposed order. Al this 
time, we are unable to make the requested changes. We cannot grant permission for the 
faciily lo continue operating an unauthorized concrete batch plant in our agreed orders. At 
this time, the Financial Inability to Pay (FIP) review is still ongoing; however, Texas star 
Ready Mix, LLC should respond to the TCEQ no later than the original 60-<lay deadline of 
November 7, 2023 with a decision on whether a settlement can be reached on the terms of 
the order as written with the stipulation that the payable penalty amount could be adjusted 
based on the completion of the FIP review. If the Respondent does not provide a response 
by November 7, 2023, or indicates an unwillingness to settle with the current terms of the 
order, the case will be forwarded lo the Litigation Division and this settlement offer will no 
longer be available. 

We appreciate your prompt attention lo this matter. 

Thankyau. 

Amy Settemeyer 
(512) 239-2588 
Deputy Director 
Enforcement Division 

.......... How is our customer service? Fm out our online customer seNice suNey here: 
~t~J~S,g!>_j/JJ;!,l.filQ!J)!lfliY!ll!'.Y. 

f..,m, Erich Birch 

Sent: Monday, October 23, 202310:44AM 
To: Craig Pritzlaff 

; casey Kurnath 

Subject: Texas Star 

Good morning Craig, 

Please see the attached request concerning Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC. Also, thank 
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you for asking Amy Settemeyer to reply to the messages I left for you, and I spoke to 
her this morning. 

Erich 

Birch. Becker & Moonnan, LIP 
1000 Heritage Center Circle, Suite 146 

lifliiiii4 
(512) 349-9303 - lax 
WWW b;icchbecker COW 

E-MAIL CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: 
This ttansmission may be: (!) subject to the Attomey--Client Privilege, (2) an attorney worlc 
product. or (3) strictly confidential. If yon are not the intended recipient of this message. yon 
may not disclose, print, copy or disseminate this infomiation. H you have received this in 
error. please reply and notify the sender (only) and delete the message. Unanthorized 
intetteption of this ermail is a violation of a federal criminal law. 
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PIR Request submitted on 12/15/2023 12:25 PM 

PIR Code: 24-89784-PIR 
Due Date: O 1/03/2024 

Page One 

Name Prefix: 
Name: Michael Bates 

ATTACHMENT 8 
24-89784 PIR 

Company/Organization: Legal Aid OfNorthWest Texas 
Requestor Type: Attorney 
Mailing Address I: 
Mailing Address 2: 
City: 
State/Province/Region: 
Zip/Postal Code: 
Country: 
E-mail Address: batesm@lanwt.org 
Phone Number: 
FAX Number: 

Page Two 

Sites/Facilities: 

II RN 

i RN! l 1648234 

II Facility 

TEXAS STAR READY MIX 
CBPSN 78043 

IBEJB 
□□DI 

.. 

Additional 
ID 

Area Description: TEXAS STAR READY MIX LLC 4500 GREAT TRINITY FOREST WAY 
DALLAS, TX 75216-5019 

Page Three 

Date Range: 
Agency Programs: Air - Operating Permits (OA), Air- Complaints (OCE), Air - Investigations 
(OCE) and Enforcement (OCE) 
Addition Record Search: I hereby request the operational logs, or any additional written records of 
production or operation, for Texas Star Ready Mix LLC from December 28, 2022 through 
December 15, 2023. This request is to include everything and is not limited to documents created 
since our previous request on July 14, 2023. I also request the following documents related to 
TCEQ case number 63326: I) Proposed Agreed Order, 2) Penalty Calculation Worksheet, 3) Any 
and aU documents related to Texas Star Ready Mix's Financial Inability to Pay requests 4) Texas 
Star Ready Mix's written certification demonstrating compliance, and 5) all correspondence from 
TCEQ to Texas Star Ready Mix. The Texas Public lnfonnation Act requires that you "promptly 
produce" the requested records. lfyou believe any information requested herein is subject to a 
disclosure exemption and wish to deny I redact, or otherwise withhold the information, you must 
request an opinion from the Attorney General's office within 10 days of the date of this letter. Any 
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information for which an Attorney General opinion is not sought must be promptly produced. Please 
be advised that pursuant to Section 552.302 of the Texas Government Code, if you do not seek an 
Attorney General opinion within 10 days of the date of this letter, the information requested herein is 
presumed to be subject to disclosure and must be released. Legal Aid ofNorthWest Texas is a 
nonprofit Texas corporation representing low~income Texans free of charge for the public interest. 
Any information received from this request will be shared without charge. Therefore, I ask that all 
fees for producing this material be waived pursuant to Section 552.267 of the Texas Government 
Code. Please contact me at 214-243-2582 or by email at batesm@lanwt.org should you have any 
questions. Thank you for your time and attention to this matter. 
Data Only: No 
Confidential Information: Yes 
Certified Information: No 
Request Documents: No data found 
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Mr. Eyad Albelbaisi 
Page 2 
September 7, 2023 

ATTACHMENT 9 
IPAO 9-7-2023 TEXAS STAR READY MIX 

Should you believe you are unable to pay the proposed administrative penalty, you may claim 
financial inabillty to pay part or all or the penalty amount. In order to qualiry for financial 
inability to pay, the penalty must exceed .$3,600 and be greater than 1% of annual gross 
revenues. If this Is the case, please contact us immediately to obtain a list of financial 
disclosure documents that must be submitted within 30 days of the receipt of this letter. These 
documents, once properly completed and submitted, will be thoroughly reviewed to determine 
if we agree with the claim of financial inability. Please be aware that if financial inability is 
proven to the satisfaction of staff, discussions pertaining to the penalty amount adjustment 
will focus only on deferral and not on waiver of the penalty amount. 

You may be able to perform or contribute to a Supplemental Environmental Project ("SEP"), 
which is a project that benefits the environment, to offset a portion of your penalty. If you are 
interested in performing an SEP, you must agree to the penalty amount and submit an SEP 
proposal within 30 days of receipt of this proposed order. 

For additional information about the types of SEPs available and eligibility criteria. please go 
to the TCEQ's web site link at httos:/Jwww,tceg,texas.gov/compliance/enforcement/sep or 
contact the Enforcement Coordinator listed below. 

Please note that any agreements we reach are subject to final approval in accordance with 
30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE§ 70.!0(a). 

If we cannot reach a settlement of this enforcement action or you do not wish to participate 
in this expedited process, we wtU proceed with enforcement under the Commission's 
Enforcement Rules, 30 Tex. Admin. Code ch. 70. Specifically, if the signed order and 
penalty are not mailed and postmarked within 60 days from the date of this letter, your 
case will be forwarded to the Litigation Division and this settlement offer, including the 
penalty deferral, will no longer be available. The enforcem~nt process described in 30 TEX. 
ADMIN. CODE ch. 70 requires the staff to prepare and issue an Executive Director's Preliminary 
Report and Petition to the Commission. If you would like to obtain a copy of 30 TIDC. ADMIN. 
CooE ch. 70, or any other TCEQrules, the rules themselves and the agency brochure entitled 
Obtaining TCEQRules (Gl-032) are located on our agency website at http·//www.rceg.texas.gov 
for your reference. If you would like a hard copy of this brochure mailed to you, you may call 
and request one from the Central Office Publications Ordering Team at (5 l2} 239-0028. 
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Mr. Eyad Albelba!si 
Page 3 
September 7, 2023 

For any questions or comments about this matter or to arrange a meeting, please contact Ms. 
Yuliya Dunaway of my staff at (210) 403-4077 or at yullya.dunaway@tceq.texas.gov. 

:;dj~ 
Michael De La Cruz, Manager 
Enforcement Division 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

MD/yd 

Enclosures: Proposed Agreed Order, Return Envelope, Penalty Calculation Worksheet, Site 
Compliance History 

cc: Mr. Joseph Vu, P.G., Manager, City of Dallas, Office of Environmental Quality & 
Sustainability, !S00 Marilla Street, 7AN, Dallas, Texas 7S201 
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TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENv!RONMENTAL QUALITY 

IN THE MATIER OF AN 
ENFORCEMENT ACTION 
CONCERNING 
TEXAS ST AR READY MIX, LLC 
RN111648234 

§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 

BEFORE THE 

TEXAS COMMISSION ON 

ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

AGREED ORDER 
DOCKET NO. 2022-1557-AIR•E 

L JURISDICTION AND STIPULATIONS 

On--,--,-~~==~---,, the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality ("the 
Commission" or 11TCEQ'1) considered this agreement of the parties, resolving an enforcement 
action regarding Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC (the "Respondent"} under the authority ofTEx. 
HEAI.ra&SAFETYC0DE ch. 382 and TEx. WATER CODE ch. 7, The Executive Director of the TCEQ. 
through the Enforcement Division, and the Respondent together stipulate that: 

1. The Respondent owns and operates a concrete batch plant located at 4500 Great Trinity 
Forest Way in Dallas, Dallas County, Texas (the "Plant"). The Plant consists or consisted 
of one or more sources as defined in TEX, HEALTH &SAFETY CODE§ 382.003(12). 

2, The Executive Director and the Respondent agree that the TCEQ has jurisdiction to enter 
this Order pursuant to Tox. WATER CODE§§ 7.002, 7.051, and 7.073, and that the 
Respondent is subject to TCEQ's jurisdiction. The TCEQ has jurisdiction in this matter 
pursuant to TEX. WATER CODE§ 5.013 because it alleges violations of TEX. HEALTH &SAFETY 
CODE ch. 382 and the rules of the TCEQ. 

3. The occurrence of any violation ts in dispute and the entry of this Order shall not 
constitute an admission by the Respondent of any violation alleged in Section II 
("Allegationsn), nor of any statute or rule. 

4. An administrative penalty in the amount of S30,000 is assessed by the Commission in 
settlement of the violations alleged in Section II ("Allegations"). The Respondent paid 
$24,000 of the penalty and $6,000 is deferred contingent upon the Respondent's timely 
and satisfactory compliance with all the terms of this Order. The deferred amount shall 
be waived only upon full compliance with all the terms and conditions contained in tWs 
Order. If the Respondent fails to timely and satisfactorily comply with any of the terms 
or requirements contained in this Order, the Executive Director may demand payment of 
all or part of the deferred penalty amount. 

5. The Executive Director and the Respondent agree on a settlement of the matters alleged 
in this enforcement action, subject to final approval in accordance with 30 TEX. ADMIN. 
CODE§ 70.IO(a). Any notice and procedures, which might otherwise be authorized or 
required in this action, are waived in the interest of a more timely resolution of the 
matter. 
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6. The Executive Director may, without further notice or hearing, refer this matter to the 
Office of the Attorney General of the State of Texas {"OAG") for further enforcement 
proceedings if the E.xecutive Director determines that the Respondent has not complied 
With one or more of the terms or conditions in this Order. 

7. This Order represents the complete and fully integrated agreement of the parties. The 
provisions of this Order are deemed severable and, if a court of competent jurisdiction 
or other appropriate authority deems any provision of this Order unenforceable, the 
remaining provisions shall be valid and enforceable. 

8. This Order shall terminate five years from its effective date or upon compliance with all 
the terms and conditions set forth in this Order, whichever is later. 

9. The Executive Director recognizes that the Respondent implemented the folloWing 
corrective measures at the Plant: 

a. On January 30, 2023, submitted a registration for Standard Permit Registration 
No. 171636 to authorize the concrete batch plant and the associated emissions 
at the Plant; and 

b. On August 9, 2023, temporarily ceased operating the concrete batch plant. 

II. ALLEGATIONS 

During investigations at the Plant conducted on September 12, 2022 and August 29, 2023, 
investigators documented that the Respondent failed to obtuin authorization prior to 
constructing or modifying a source of air contaminants, in violation of 30 TEX. ADMIN. Coor:; 
§ 116.l lO(a) and TEX. HEALTH & SAFETY CODE §§ 382.05 l8(u) and 382.083(b). Specifically, the 
Respondent operated a concrete batch plant prior to obtaining the proper authorization from 
September 12, 2022 until temporarily ceasing operafion on August 9, 2023. 

IIL DENIALS 

The Respondent generally denies ea.ch allegation in Section II ("Allegations"). 

IV. ORDERING PROVISIONS 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ORDERS that: 

1. The Respondent is assessed a penalty as set forth in Section J, Paragraph No. 4. The 
payment of thls penalty and the Respondent's compliance with all of the requirements 
set forth Jn this Order resolve only the allegations in Section II. The Commission shall 
not be constrained in any manner from requiring corrective action or penalties for 
violations which arc not raised here. Penalty payments shall be made payable to "TCEQ'.' 
and shall be sent with the notation "Re: Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC, Docket No. 2022· 
1557-AIR·E" to: 
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Financial Administration Division, Revenue Operations Section 
Attention: Cashier's Office, MC 214 
Texas Commission on EnVironmental Quality 
P.O. Box 13088 
Austin, Texas 78711-3088 

2. The Respondent shall undertake the following tec:hnical requirements at the Plant: 

a. Immediately upon the effective date of this Order, cease operating until the 
proper authorization for the concrete batch plant has been obtained in 
accordance With 30 TEX, ADMIN, CODE§ 116.llO(a). 

b. Within 15 days after the effective date of thi.s Order I submit written certification 
demonstrating compliance with Ordering Provision No. 2.a., as described in 
Ordering ProVislon No. 2.d. 

c. Respond completely and adequately, as determined by the TCEQ, to all requests 
for information concerning the registration for Standard Permit Registration No. 
171636 Within any deadlines specified In writing. 

d. Within 180 days after the effective date of this Order, submit written 
certification that either the authorization has been obtained or that operations 
of the concrete batch plant have permanently ceased, and include detailed 
supporting documentation including photographs, receipts, and/or other 
records to demonstrate compliance. The certification shall be signed by the 
Respondent and shall Include the folloWing certification language: 

"I certify under penalty of law that I have personally examined 
and am familiar With the lnformation submitted and all attached 
documents, and that based on my inquiry of those lnd!Viduals 
immediateJy responsible for obtaining the information, I believe 
that the submitted information is trUe, accurate and complete. I 
am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false 
Information, including the possibility of fines and imprisonment 
for knowing Violations." 

The certification shall be submitted to: 

Enforcement Division, MC 149A 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
P.O. BOK 13087 
Austin, Texas 78711-3087 

With a copy to: 

Air Section Manager 
Dallas/Fort Worth Regional Office 
Te.~as Commission on Environmental Quality 
2309 Gravel Drive 
fort Worth, Texas 76118-6951 
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3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

and a copy to: 

Air Program Manager 
City of Dallas 
Office of Enviromental Quality & Sustainability 
1500 Marilla Street, ?AN 
Dallas, Texas 75201 

AH relief not expressly granted in this Order is denied. 

The duties and provisions impo6'd by this Order shall apply to and be binding upon the 
Respondent. The Respondent ts ordered to give notice of this Order to personnel who 
maintain day-to-day control over the Plant operations referenced in this Order. 

If the Respondent fails to comply with any of the Ordering Provisions in this Order 
within the prescribed schedules, and that failure is caused solely by an act of God, war, 
strike, riot, or other catastrophe, the Respondent's failure to comply is not a Violation of 
this Order. The Respondent shall have the burden of establishing to the E.xecutive 
Director's satisfaction that such an event has oc<:urred. The Respondent shall notify the 
Executive Director within seven days after the Respondent becomes aware of a delaying 
event and shall take all reasonable measures to mitigate and minimize any delay. 

The Executive Director may grant an extension of any deadline in this Order or ln any 
plan, report, or other document submitted pursuant to this Order, upon a written and 
substantiated showing of good cause. All requests for extensions by the Respondent 
shall be made in writing to the Executive Direcror. Extensions are not effective until the 
Respondent receives written approval frnm the E.xecutive Director. The determination 
of what constitutes good cause rests solely with the Executive Director. Extension 
requests shall be sent to the Enforcement Divislon at th!:' address listed above. 

This Order I issued by the Commission, shall not be admissible against the Respondent 
in a civil proceedtng, unless the proceeding is brought by the OAG ro: (1) enforce the 
terms of this Order; or (2) pursue violations of a statute within the Commission's 
Jurlsdiction, or of a rule adopted or an order or permit issued by the Commission under 
such a statute. 

This Order rnay be executed in separate and multiple counterparts, which together shall 
constitute a single instrument. Any page of this Order may be copted, scanned, 
digitized, converted to electronic portable document format ("pdr'), or otherwise 
reproduced and may be transmitted by digital or electronic transmission, including but 
not limited to facsimile transmission and electroni<: mail. Any signature affl"<ed to this 
Order shall constitute an original signature for all purposes and may be used, filed, 
substttuted, or issued for any purpose for which an original signature could be used. 
The term "signature" shall include manual signatures and true and accurate 
reproductions of manual signatures created, executed, endorsed, adopted, or authorized 
by the person or persons to whom the signatures are attributable. Signatures may be 
copied or reproduced digi.tally1 electronkally, by photocopying, engravtng, imprinting, 
lithographing, electronic mail, facsimile transmission, stamping, or any other means or 
process which the E."Cecutive Director deems acceptable. In this paragraph ex.elusively, 
the terms: electronic transmission, owner, person, writing, and written, shall have the 
meanings assigned to them under TEX. Bus. ORG. CoDE § 1.002. 
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9. The effective date of this Order is the date it is signed by the Commission. A copy of 
this fully executed Order shall be provided to each of the parties. 
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SIGNATURE PAGE 

TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

For the Commission Date 

For the Executive Director Date 

I, the undersigned, have read and understand the attached. Order. I am authorized to agree to 
the attached Order, and l do agree to the. terms and conditions specified therein. I further 
acknowledge that the. TCEQ, in accepting payment for the penalty amount, is materially relying 
on such representation. 

l also understand that failure to comply with the Ordering Provisions, if any, in this Order 
and/or failure to timely pay the penalty amount, may result in: 

A negative impact on compliance history; 
Greater scrutiny of any permlt applications submitted; 
Referral of this case to the OAG for contempt, injunctive relief, additional penalties, 
and/or attorney fets, or to a collection agency; 
Increased penalties In any future enforcement actions; 
Automatic: referral to the OAG of any future enforcement actions; and 
TCEQ seeking other relief as authorized by law. 

In addition, uny folsification of any compliance document!;; may result in criminal pro.se-rulion. 

Signature 

Name (Printed or typed) 
Authorized Representative of 
Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC 

Date 

Title 

□ If mailing address has changed, please check this box and provide the new address below: 

Instructions: Send the original. signed Order with penalty payment to the financial Administration 
Division, Revenue Operartons Section ac the address in Ordering Provision l of th.ls Order. 
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Penalty Calculation Worksheet (PCW) 
POJ/r:y R~lslon s (January 28, 2021) PCW Re-.1/s/on Ftbnary 11, 202J 

DATES Assigned 28-0ct-2022 
PCW 6-Se -2023 Screeninp I 3-Nov-2022 I EPA Due'-----' 

RESPONDENT /PACIUTY INfORMATJON 
Respondent r Re I 

Reg, Ent. Ref. No,µRA;1~1~1~4~8~2~3~4------------~------~----------1 
fac:lllty/,S~t.e Regl_o_n 04~·~D~•l~l•,.,,F~•~rt~W~•~rt~h"-.. _______ J Major/Minor ~urc~"M~l~n•~r ______ .J 

CASE INfdRMATIDN 
Enf,/Case ID No."o~,~,~,.~-----------­

Docket No, 2022·1557-AIR·E 
No, of Vlolatlons~2,,,, ______ ---I 

OrderType01"•~•~'------.J 
Govemment/Non•Proflt0N~• ... ------.J 

Enf. Coordinator Yullva ounawa" 
Media Program(s) ~•~lrc.._ ____________ ....j 

Multl-Medla'-------------....1 
EC's Team Enforcement Team 2 

~min, P~~al_tv $ U~lt M~~l~um,1 _ _.$~0_...JjMaxlmun:-. --,-,-s-.o-o-,-
Pena1ty Calculation Section 

TOTAL BASE PENALTY {Sum of violation base penalties) 

ADJUSTMENTS(+/-) TD SUBTOTAL 1 

Subtotal 1 LI __ ....,$c:•c:•"••c:•=,ol 

SubtDtalt: :l-'7 are abl:ilned lly multiplying the Total Base Pcnaltv (Subtlltal 1) by the Indicated peruntage. 
Compliance Hlsto o. 0/o Ad iutrnent Subtotals 2, 3, a 7 L'-----~$:,Oj 

Notes No adjustment for Compliance History. 

No ••• l!flhancmient Subtotal 4 ,I -----~•,oo! Culpablllty 

Notes The Respondent does not meet the culpablllty criteria, 

Good Faith Effort to Comply Total AdJuatmant& 

Economic Benefit 
Total EB Amounts I 

Estlmat~d Cost of C:Omptlance 

SUM OF SUBTOTALS 1-7 

OTHER FACTORS AS JUSTICE MAY REQUIRE 
'""" """•::,:•""I'"'""' by tho..,,~ .. ,.....,.,,,, 

STATUTORY LIMIT ADJUSTMENT 

DEFERRAL 
Reduces the Flnal AS5e5Sed Pen J 

Subtotal S LI ____ __.$,.oj 

0.011/a Enha~ent• 
•c1pped at the Total EB $ Amount 

Subtotal & ,I -----~$,eDf 

Fln•I subtotal LI __ ....,•c:•c:•"••c:•=,o I 

D,011/al Adjustment LI ____ ....:,$::oDI 

I 
Final Penalty Amount LI ---•~•:•~•~•:::o,.o( 

Final AIINss•d PenaltY LI __ .....,$:::3:::0,::,0::D::oOI 

20,DO/ol 11..:duttlon Adjustment LI ----·•~•~•:::•c:•=,ol 

Notes Deferral offered for expedited settlement. 

PIIYAB.LE PENALTY $24,0DDI 
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Screening Date J~Nov~2022 Docket No. Z02:Z·1SS7·A(R.-E 
ResPondent Te.11.is Star Ready MlK, LLC 
Case ID No. 63326 

Reg. Ent. Reference No. RNU1648:ZJ4 
Media Air 

Enf. Coordinator Yunva Ourmwav 

Compliance Historv Worksheet 
>> Compliance Hlstoty SJht Enhancement (Subtotal 2} 

Comoo-nent Number o( ... 
Written notices of violatlon ("NOVs•) with same ar slrnilar v!o.!at!ons as those ln 

NOVs the. cummt enfo«:ement action (number of NOVs meeting criteria) 

Other written NOVs 
An'/ agreed final enforcement orders containing a denial of Hablllty (numher of 
orders meet/no criteria J 

Orders Any adjudicated final enforcement orders, agreed fina! enforcement orders 
without a. den!al at l!abmtv, or default orders oP thls state or the federal 
government, or any fin.ii prohibitory emergency orders Issued b'I the co-mmlss!Gn 

Any no1NMIJudlcated final court judgments or consent decrees containing a denlal 
of l!abil!ty of this state or the federal gavemment {number of judgments or 

Judgments consent decrees meeting criteria) 
am! Consent 

Any adjudicated fina! caurt judgmet1ts and default judgments, or non~adjudicate.d De-crees 
flnal court J11d9ments or eonsent decrees Without a dental of Uabi!!ty, of this. state 
or the federal gotJernment 

Convictions 
Any crlmtoat convictions of this stilte or the federal government (number of 
counts) 

Emissions Qmmit excessive emissions e-.,ents (1tumber of e11ent5 ) 

Letters notlfylllg t~ executi11e director of an Intended audit cortducted under the 
Texti:s envlronmentn!, Hea!th, and Safety Audit PrM/ege Act, 14th Leg!slature, 

Autfits 
l 995 (number of uudits for which notices were suhm/lted) 

Disdosure-s of vio!at!ons under the Texas Erwironmenta!, Healtt,, Md sarety Al1tlit 
Privilege: Act, 74th legislature, 19~5 (number of audits for whicl, viah1tior1s Wl!TE' 

disclosed) 

Envtronmcnti.11 m;m;igem1mt systems hl place for on<! year or mof1:! 

Voluntary on-site: comp!I/J.nci: assessments condu~tcd by the exetutivQ d!rc-ctor 

Other 
under a spcda! <1ssistance program 

Partlctoatton irt a votuntury pQHutton reduction program 
Early comp!!ance With, or offer of a product u,at meets future state or federal 
government environmental requirements 

PCW 

PCW Re.v&.lo!I Ff!bru11y ll, Wll 

Number Adiust 

D 0% 

0 0% 

0 0% 

0 0% 

0 0% 

0 0% 

0 0% 

D 0% 

0 0% 

0 0% 

No 0% 

No 0% 

No 0% 

No 0% 

Adjustment Pet'(;entage (Subtotal 2) ~ 

>> Repeat VIOiator (Subtotal 3) 

No 

>> Compliance History Person Classification (Subtotal 7) 

Unci11ssll!ed 

>> Compliance History summaTy 

Adjustment Percentage {Subtotal 3) c:::KJ 

Adjustment Percentage (Subtotal 7) c:::KJ 

No adjustment fo( Compliance History, 
Compliance I 

History 
Notes '-------------------------' 

Total Compliance History Adjustment Percentage (Subtotals 2, 3 1 & 7) ~ 
>> final Compliance tUstorv Adju$trnent 

f!inal Adjustment Percentage ,.capped at 100% ~ 
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Docket No, 2022-1ss1-AiR-e PCW screening Date 3-Nov-2022 
Respondent Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC 
Case ID No. 63326 

/.'oh-;i P.~""'~" S (J~r1uJ1y .?tl, Jr):! I) 

PCW 11.ev/$/On Febru.rrr JJ, 20.21 

Reg. Ent. Refere.nce No. RN11164B234 
Media Air 

Enf, Coordinator Yul111a Dunawav 
Violation Numberlf---'b-~"'-=---------=======--===, 

Rule Clte(s) 30 Tex, Admln, Code § 116.ll0{a) and Tex, Health&. Safety Code§§ 
382,0518(a} and 382.0SS(b) 

Falled to obtain authorization prior to constructing or modifying a sour'Ce of air 
Vlolatlon Description contaminants. Spedflcally, the Respondent operated a concrete batch plant prior 

to obtaining the proper authorization from September 12, 2022 through 
November 3, 2022. 

Base Penaltvj 

>> Envlronmf!ntal, Property and Human Health Matrix 

OR 
Release 

Actualll 
Potentlal 

>>Programmatic Matrix 
Falsification 

Matrix 
Notes 

ll ii 

Violation Events 

M5Jor 

M9lor 

' 

Harm 
Moderate 

Moderate 

Minor 

Minor 

Percent~ 

Percent I 10.0%) 

100% of the rule requirements were not met. 

Adjustmentcl ___ _.12~•~-•~•~•ol 

Number of Violation Events.II==''====' 52 ijNumber of violatlon days 

s2s,aooj 

$2,sooj 

dally 
weekly 

monthly 
quarterly 

semlannual 
' Violation Base Penaltvl _____ ~l='~••=o.,oj 

annual 
slngle event 

TWO monthly events are recommended from the September 12, 2022 Investigation date to the 
November 3, 2022 screening date, 

Good Paith Efforts to Comply I o.o'Vol Reduction cl _____ _,$eoOI 
Before NOE/NOV NOE/NOV to EDPAP/Slllttlement Offer 

EKtraordlnary 11 11 

Ordinary II II 
N/A .., 11 

Noto, 
The Respondent does not meet the good faith crlterl.i, II 

for this vlolatlon. ~ 

Economic Benefit (EB) for this violation 

Estimated EB Amount1L--------"S9~2,I 

Violation Subtotal j 

Statutory Limit Test 

Violation Pinal Penaltv Total I 

ss,oooj 

ss,oooJ 

This violation Final Assessed Penalty (adjusted for limits) cl ----~l~•~·•~•~•,I 
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Economic Benefit Worksheet 
Respondent Te1ms Star Ready Mix, LLC 
Case ID No. 63326 

Reg. Ent. Reference No. RN11164B2J4 
Media Air 

Violation No, 1 

lttlm Description 

Delayed Costs 
l!qulpmut 

Dulldln111 
Other {IS ru1ad11d) 

6ngl11eertng/Con1truetian ..... 
Record Kaiiplng svstcm 

THlnln1/Samptlft9 
Reinedlatlon/Dlsposa1 

ParmltCoJtll 
Other (H needed) 

xtem Cost Date Required Final Date 

Years of 
Percent Interest Depreciation 

s.ol 1s 
Yrs lnterest Saved Costs Saved l!B Amount 

o.oo 0 
0,00 0 0 

·'" 0 
. 0 0 0 0 
.00 "' 0 
.00 
.00 • 0 
. oo 
.05 ' " 

Actual cost to ot>taln Standard Perm!t Registration No. 171636 to authorize the toncreta batch plant and 
Notes tor DELAYED W1h 

Avoided Costs 
Dl1posal 

Personnel 
Inspecl!on/Report1n11/Sampll119 

Suppllu/!,aulpment 
Fln1ncf•I Assurance 

ON!•TlMli avoided coats 
Othu (U nccdodJ 

Notes !Or !\VOIDED cD!lt5 

the associated emissions at the Plant. The Date Required !s the investigation date and the Fin.ii Date is the 
estimated date or 0:1mp/lance. 

ANNU ZE avo ded caats uefore entering item 111111ce11tforone-t me avo CIISts 

0,00 0 0 
0 

o.oo 0 
.oo 
.oo 0 

o.o 0 

TOTAL~---------'"'=' 
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Screening Date 3-Nov-2022 Docket No, 202i-1SS7•AIR·E PCW 
Respondent Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC >,11,-;~ ;o,1,..-,.,,, s ,:., ,:1r1 21. ::o:::, 
Case ID No, 63326 ,cw Revision Fobn,a,y H. ZOZl 

Reg. Ent. Reference No, RN111648234 
Media Air 

Enf. Coordinator Yullva ounawav 
Violation Numb•r1--..t.'--L"----------------------, 

Rule Cltll(.1) 30 Tex, Adm!n. COde § 116.llO{a) and Tex. Health & Safety Code §§ 382,DSlB{a) 
and 382,08S(b) 

Failed to obtain authorization prior to constructing or modifying a source of air 
Violation Description contaminants. Speclflcally, the_R.espondent operated a contrete batch plant prior to 

obtaining the proper authorfzet1on from November 4, 2022 until temporarily ceasing 
operation on August 9, 2023. 

Ba■e Penalty 0j -----'•'•'••0060o0j 
>> Environmental, Property and Human Health Matrix 

H■rm 

OR 
Rele■se;,.. .... •.•a!a" .... .,,.M .. oda•."•"'=..-•"•'•"'•'-, 

Actua1H 
Potent1a1,u:::::::::1::::::::t:::::::l 

>>Programmatic Matrix 
Farsmcat1gn Moderate Minor 

Percent~ 

Percent j 10.0%j 

Matrix 
Notes 

100% or the rule reQulrements were not met. 

Adjustment I $22,soof 

Vlolatfon Events 

Number of Vlolatlon events Isl =•1•0..__, 278 jNumber ofVlolatlon days 

weekly 

n,sooj 

'"'' ~ monthly x 
quarterly 

semlannuar 
Vlolatlon Basa Pen•ttvlL---~'•'•'••'e'o',j 

annual 
single event 

Ten monthly events are recommended from the November 4, 2022 non-compliance date to the 
August 9, 2023 date the concrete batch p(ant temporarily ceased operating. 

Good Faith Effo•,..:=~,.-:c~.-m-p:,,----;:::=,:.,;..,:;-, ==--=-------==.,=,~,-""'.'."'""~'~------''""oj 
Before NOE/NOV NOl:INOV to El»'RP/Stl:tlemenl O,rer 

Extraord(nary ■ 11 

Ordinary I II 
N/A II I 

t 
The Respondent does not meet the good faith criteria for I 

No es this violation. 

Violation Subtotal) ns,ooot 

Economic Banaflt (EB) for this violation Statutory Limit Test 

Estimated EB Amountj[::::::::::::::1~o~j Vlolatlon Final Penalty" Total j'-----~'•'•'••'•'•'•' 
This ll'lolatlon Final Assessed Penaltv (adjusted for llmH:s> ''----~'•'•'••'•'•'"' 
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Economic Benefit Worksheet 
Respondent Texa$ Star Ready MiK, LLC 
Case ID No. 63326 

Reg. Ent. Reference No. RNl116482l4 
Media Air 

Violation No, 2 

Item D,u1crlptlon 

Delayed Costs 
EQulpment 

8ulldll\lll 
Othar (as noaded) 

En11lne11dng/C11nstn1ctl11n 
Land 

Record Keopl119 5Yt"tcn, 
Tralnlng/Sampllna 

RemedletlCM1/0l11111HI 
Permit costs 

Olhar (as nuded) 

Item cost Date Required Final Date 

Years of 
P11rcent Interest Deprec:lallon 

s,ol 1s 
Yrs Interest Saved Costs Saved EB Amount 

0 0 
o.oo 
0.00 0 0 
n.oo 0 0 
o.oo "' 0 
0.00 " 0 
0.00 
0.00 • 0 
o. 0 0 

N<>«!s r11r DELAVED Cllltt Sae the Economic Benefit in Violation No. 1. 

Avoided Costs 
Dllposal 

Parsonnel 
1nspectlon/Roportlng/$;1mpllng 

Sup11llu/l!qur11ment 
fln•nclal Auurane11 

DNE•llME avoided aists 
DIiier (ns nli!ilded) 

Notns r<ir AVOlDEO costs 

Air1>rot, c,at M Cnmpll.,.,c., 

ANNU A• rzE avo ded costs uefure entering item 1exceut for one-time avoided c:ost9) 
o.oo 0 0 0 
0.00 0 0 0 
o.o 0 0 0 
0.00 0 0 
o.oo 0 0 0 
o.oo 0 0 0 

" TOTALI " 
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The TCEQ Is committed to accesslblllty. 
To request a more accessible version of this report, please contact the TCEQ Help Desk at (512) 239-4357. 

Compliance History Report 
Compliance History Report fer CN605903574, RN111648234, Rating Year 2022 whkh Includes Compliance History (CH) 
components from September 1, 2017, through August 31, 2022. 

Customer, Respondent, CN605903574, Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC Classlflcatlon: UNCLASSIFIED 
or owner/Operator: 

Regulated Entity, RN111648234, TI:XAS STAR READY MIX Classification: UNCLASSIFIED 
CBP SN 78043 

Complexity Points: 
CH Group: 

Location: 

TCEQ Region: 

ID Number(s): 

2 Repeat Violator: NO 

10 - Cement and Concrete Product Manufacturing 

4500 GREAT TRINITY FOREST WAY, DALLAS, DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS 

_REGION 04 - OFW METROPLEX 

Rating: ----­

Rating: -----

AIR NEW SOURCE PERMITS REGISTRATION 39039 AIR NEW SOURCE PERMn& REGISTRATION 171636 

Compliance History Period: September 01, 2017 to August 31, 2022 Rating Year: 2022 Rating Date: 09/01/2022 

Date Compliance History Report Prepared: August 28, 2023 

Agency Decision Requiring Compliance History: Enforcement 

Component Period Selected: August 28, 2018 to August 28, 2023 

TCEQ Staff Member to Contact tor Addltlonal Information Regarding This Compliance History. 

Name: Yullya Dunaway Phone: {210) 403-4077 

Site and Owner/OP@tatoc History; 
1) Has the site been in existence and/or operation for the run five year compliance period? YES 
2) Has there been a (known) change In ownership/operator or the site during the compliance period? YES 

3) Who Is the current owner/operator? Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC OWNER OPERATOR since 6/22/2021 
4) Who wa~/were the prior owner(s)/operator(s)? Pro-Crete Ready Mix, LLC, OWNER OPERATOR, 3/4/2019 to 6/21/2021 

C·N-T REDI MIX, LLC, OWNER, 4/1/2015 to 3/3/2019 

Components CMultlmedial for the Site Ara Llst•d •n Section, A - J 

A, Final Orders, court judgments, and consent decreea: 
N/A 

B. Criminal convictions: 
N/A 

C, Chronic excessive emissions events: 
N/A 

D. The approval dates of Investigations (CCEDS Inv. Track. No,): 
N/A 

E. Written notices of violations (NOV) (CCEOS Inv. Track. No,): 
A notice of violation represents a written allegation of a violation of a 5pecific regulatory requirement from the commission to a 
regulated entity. A notice of v!olatlon Is not a final enforcement action, nor proof that a vlo!atlon has actually occurred. 

N/A 

Page 1 
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F, Environmental audits: 
N/A 

G. Type of environmental management systems (EMSs): 
N/A 

H, Voluntary on-site compliance assessment dates: 
N/A 

I. Participation In a voluntary pollution reduction program: 
N/A 

J, Early compliance: 
N/A 

Sites Outside of Texas: 
N/A 

Page 2 
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ATTACHMENT 10 
TEXAS STAR READY MIX, LLC 

From: Michael Bates 
Sent: Tuesday, January 9, 2024 4:41 PM 
To: ebirch@birchbecker.com 
Subject: Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC 

Erich Birch, 

My name is Michael Bates and I am a staff attorney for Legal Aid of North West Texas. 
We represent Joppa Freedmans Town Association in the matters regarding Texas Star 
Ready Mix's standard concrete batch plant permit application and proposed agreed order 
with TCEQ. On behalf of our client, we are requesting Texas Star Ready Mix's 
operational logs, and/or any additional written records of production or operation from 
December 28, 2022 to December 15, 2023. Please let me know if you questions regarding 
this matter. 

Sincerely, 

Michael Bates 
Staff Attorney 
Community Revitalization Project 
Legal Aid of North West Texas 
400 S. Zang Blvd., Suite 1420 
Dallas, Texas 75208 
Office: 214-243-2582 Ext. 8902 
Fax: 817-736-1602 

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS MESSAGE MAY BE PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL 
AND PROTECTED FROM DISCLOSURE. IFTHE READER OF THIS MESSAGE IS NOT THE INTENDED 

RECIPIENT, OR AN EMPLOYEE OR AGENT RESPONSIBLE FOR DELIVERING THIS MESSAGE TO 

THE INTENDED RECIPIENT, YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT ANY REPRODUCTION, 
DISSEMINATION OR DISTRIBUTION OF THIS COMMUNICATION IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED. IF YOU 

HAVE RECEIVED THIS COMMUNICATION IN ERROR, PLEASE NOTIFY US IMMEDIATELY BY 

REPLYING TO THE MESSAGE AND DELETING IT FROM YOUR COMPUTER. 
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ATTACHMENT 11 

City of Dallas Notice of Enforcement for Compliance Investigation 

City of Dallas 

October 13, 2022 

CERTIFIED MAIL# 7021 0950 0000 5480 0272 

Mr. Eyad Albelbaisi, Owner/Manager 
Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC 
25 Lochleven 
Richardson, Texas 75062 

Re: Notice of Enforcement for Compliance Investigation at: 
TEXAS STAR READY MIX 
4500 Great Trinity Forest Way, Dallas, Dallas County, Texas 
Regulated Entity No.: RN102390051, TCEQ ID No.: 39039 

Dear Mr. Albelbaisi, 

On September 12, 2022, Mr. Joseph Vu with the City of Dallas Local Air Program acting 
on behalf of the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) conducted an 
investigation of the above-referenced regulated entity to evaluate compliance with 
applicable requirements for air quality. Certain outstanding alleged violations were 
documented. Enclosed Is a summary which lists the investigation findings and 
recommended corrective actions. Additional recommended corrective actions may be 
provided by the Enforcement Division. 

In the listing of the alleged violations, we have cited applicable requirements, including 
TCEQ rules. Please note that both the rules themselves and the agency brochure entitled 
Obtaining TCEQ Rules (GI 032) are located on our agency website at 
https://www.tceg.texas.gov for your reference. If you would like a hard copy of this 
brochure mailed to you, you may call and request one from either City of Dallas Local Air 
Program at 214-946-4435 or the Central Office Publications Ordering Team at 512-239-
0028. 

Als_o, please be advised that the Legislature has granted enforcement powers to the 
TCEQ to carry out its mission lo protect human health and the environment. Due to the 
apparent seriousness of the alleged violations, formal enforcement action has been 
initiated, and additional violations may be cited upon further review. We encourage you 
to immediately begin taking actions to address the outstanding alleged violations. 

City of Dallas Office of Environmental Quality & Sustainablllty 
11500 Marilla Street 7AN I Dallas, TX 75201 ( 214-670-1200 
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City of Dallas 

In responding wllh prompt corrective action, the administrative penalty to be 
assessed may be limited. 

The Commission recognizes that the great majority of the regulated community wants to 
prevent pollution and to comply with environmental laws. We dedicate considerable 
resources toward making voluntary compliance achievable. But where compliance has 
not been met It is our duty to protect the public and the environment by enforcing the 
state's environmental laws, regulations, and permits. 

Also, if you believe the violations documented In this notice have been cited in error, and 
you have additional information that we are unaware of, you may request a meeting to 
discuss this enforcement matter. To request a meeting, send a letter describing the 
additional information to the address shown below. 

Manager, Air Section 

Enforcement Division, MC 219 

Re: Enforcement Meeting Request 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

P.O. Box 13087 

Austin, Texas 78711-3087 

If you or members of your staff have any questions, please feel free to contact Mr. Vu 
with the City of Dallas Local Air Program at Phone# 214-670-4059. 

Sincerely, 

Joseph Vu, P.G. Manager 
City of Dallas Local Air Program 
Acting on behalf of TCEQ 

PWW/JHV 

Enclosure: Summary of Investigation Findings 

City of Dallas Office of Environmental Quality & Sustainability 
11500 Marilla Street 7AN I Dallas, TX 75201 j 214-670-1200 

so 



Summary of lnvestlgatio,n Fl_riijil'lgf ··• 

4500 GREAT TRINITY FOREST WAY 
DALLAS, DALLAS COUNTY, TX 76216 

AddHional ID(s): 39039 

nvest gat on 

lnves11!\fll,l/?~ate: 09/12/2022 

Track No: 825195 Compliance Due Date; To Be Determined 
30 TAC Chapter 106.144(1) 
SC THSC Chapter 382.0BS(b) 

Alleged Violation: 
Investigation: 1846525 Comment Date: 09/2212022 

The facility failetl to comply with requirements under Permit by Rule 30 TAC 106.144 
regarding bulk mineral handling requirements. Specifically condition (1), the sand and 
aggregate are transported on en open conveyor system which is not vented through a fabric 
filter. During the tour and interview, Mr. Albelbaisi stated the conveyor system is open and not 
enclosed and does not transport cement/ffyash but sand and aggregate. Because this 
investigation includes alleged violations being referred lo the TCEQ Enforcement Division, 
this alleged violation will also be referred to the TCEQ Enforcement Division. 

Track No: 825197 Compliance Due Date: To Be Determined 
30 TAC Chapter 108.144(3) 
5C THSC Chapter 382.0BS(b) 

Alleged Violation: 
Investigation: 1846525 Comment Date: 09/22/2022 

The facllity failed to comply with requirements under Permit by Rule 30 TAC 106.144 
regarding bulk mineral handling requirements. Specifically condition (3), the facility's 
stationary equipment and aggregate stockpiles are not located at least 300 feet from a 
structure not used solely by the owner of the property upon the facility is located. The 
stationary equipment and aggregate stockpiles on the southern portion of the facility are also 
located within 300 feet of another structure not owned or operated by the facility per a Google 
Earth distance review. Because this investigation contains alleged violations that will be 
referred to the TCEQ Enforcement Division, this alleged violation will also be referred. 

Track No: 825200 Compliance Due Date: To Be Determined 
30 TAC Chapter 116.110(a) 
SC THSC Chapter 382.0B5(b) 

Alleged Violation: 
Investigation: 1846525 Comment Date: 09/22/2022 

The facility failed to compry with the requirements under 30 TAC 116.110 which requires a 
facility to obtain authorization prior to construction or operations. Specifically, the facility failed 
to obtain the correct authorization for concrete batching operations. The facility is currently 
registered under Permit by Rule 30 TAC 106.144 for bulk mineral handling but does not meet 
the conditions of the Permit by Rule; and in addition, the facility operates as a concrete batch 
plant and requires authorization under the 6004 concrete batch plant standard pennit. This 
alleged vlolation to be referred to the TCEQ Enforcement Division. 

Summary of Investigation Findings Page101'1 

51 



See nole: Who FIiis out lhe EAR? u 

Enforcement 
Action 

Referral 
Rev. 311812002 

Inv.# 

EnfCase 

Media 
Code: 

ID CN605903574 

1846525 

AQ 

Initiated by: Region, LP, Central: Region 

Name of Initiating Office: REGION 04 - OFW 
METROPLEX 

Section 1: Respondent 

I Role I RESP PARTY 

Name TEXAS STAR READY MIX LLC 

Mailing StreeUPO Box 4500 GREAT TRINITY FOREST WAY 
Address City/State/Zip DALLAS, TX 75216 

Phone I Fax 

Primary Contact (NOE Contact) 
Name I Hana Alsarabf l Organization Texas Ster Ready Mix LLC 

TIiie I Manager I Phone (214) 475-5095 I Fax 

Section 2: Respondenrs Facility/Operation (F/0) 

F/OID 

FIOName 

.. F/0 Physical Address 

Location City 

Location County 

Primary Business Activity 

SNCorHPV? 

Potentially Affected Area 

List any NOVs?Ordars for same 
or similar violations at this FJO 

In the past 5 years. 

Additional IDs 

RN102390051 

TEXAS STAR READY MIX 

4500 GREAT TRINITY FOREST WAY 

DALLAS Location Zip 75216 

DALLAS Operational Status Active 

Concrete Batch ?lant lype of Small Entity Small Business 

NIA SIC Code 3271 

Air Quality Complaints Cloaed 0 

825195 
825197 
825200 

39039 

Section 3: Summary of Vlolatlons See note: lnclustlon of Resolved or 
Verbal V101at1ons u 
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Viol 
Num 

B2 19 

Requirements Cited Violation Oates lnvestigat!on/ Date of... CAT 
Violation Description Start End File Review NOV NOE 
30 TAC Chapler 106.144(1) 911 Unknown 09/1212022 a 
50 THSC Chapter 362.085(b} 9112/2022 Unk11own 09/12/2022 10/12/2022 8 

The facmty utilizes an open conveyor system whieh is notenolosed nor vented through a fabric filter. Ouring the 
tour of the facility, the investigatOf& obseNea the oanv8)'or syatem and noted it was not enclosed. Mr. A!belbals! 
confirmed It was not enclosed and is used to transport sand and aggregatEt to the bulk storage sUos. This 
non~compHsne& results. In an alleged Notice ofVio!atlon. The facility fai!ed to comply with requrrementt under 
Permitb Ru!e'30TAC 105.14 

1 7 30 TAC Cheirter 106.144(3) 9112/2022 Unknown 09!1212022 8 
SC THSC Choptor 382.0BS(b) 9/1212022 Unknown 0911212022 10/1212022 8 

The fae!Uty"s statlonary equipmeflt and aggregate piles were observed to be !ooated we!/ with!n 300 feet from 
th& adjacent p(Operty'& bt.lllding. Curing the Interview portion, the investigators queslioned if the neighboring 
properties were owned or operated b)' the facility. Mr. A~baisi slated tlte adjacent pal'c&ls of !and sre owned 
by an !ndlvldual and tn.e tracts of land are leased out to se,os.rete bualnesses. Thia confirms the adjacent 

ro ertles are not owned oc o erated the facili . 
0 30 TAC Chapter 116, 10(a Q.112/2022 Unknown 09/1212022 A 

SC THSC Chapter 382.085(b} 9/1212.022 Unknown 08/12/2022 10/12/2.022 A 

The faclffty faUed to comJ:IIV with the re~ult'emeots under SO TAC 11a 110 wh!ch requires a facl!ity to obtain 
authorization priOt to construction or ope.rations. SpecltlcaUy, the fac!llty fa!led to obtain the correct authorizatfon 
for OOllcr&te batching operations. 

Section 4: Additional Discussion 

The facility tailed to comply with conditions for their regislration as well as failing to comply with obtaining the 
appropriate permit authorization for their activities. More information cen be found in Investigation 1846525 

Section 5: Addltlonal Issues 

NIA 

Seetion 6: Information About Initiating Office 

Name Joseph Vu Date 10/1212022 

Signature { I J'f't,,.---' E-Mail Joseph.Vu@t,:eq.texas.gov 
I , -

Phone 214-670-4059 

Name PauJ'1'e Date 10/1212022 
Signature ~JJJ;,,..,_ E-Mail Paul.White@tceq.texas,gov 

Phona 
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Summary of lnvestlgati<>n .Fil'lcJigg~ • 

nve 

4500 GREAT TRINITY FOREST WAY 
DALLAS, DALLAS COUNTY, TX 75216 

lnvesti&\ffi.'1,21iate: 09/1212022 

AddHionallD(s): 39039 

Track No: 825195 Compliance Due Date; To Ba Determined 
30 TAC Chapter 106.144(1) 
5C THSC Chapter 3B2.0BS(b) 

Alleged Violation~ 
Investigation: 1846525 Comment Date: 09/2212022 

The facility failed to comply with requirementB under Permit by Rule 30 TAC 106.144 
regarding bulk mineral handling requirements. Specifically condition (1}, the sand and 
aggregate are transported on an open conveyor system which is not vented through a fabric 
filter. During the tour and interview, Mr. AlbelbaJsi stated the conveyor system is open and not 
enclosed and does·not transport cement/ffyash but sand and aggregate. Because this 
investigation includes alleged violaUons being referred to the TCEQ Enforcement Division, 
this alleged violation will also be referred to the 'TCEO Enforcement Division. 

Track No: 825197 Compliance Due Date: To Be Determined 
30 TAC Chapter 106.144(3) 
5C THSC Chapter 382.085(b) 

Alleged Violation: 
Investigation: 1846525 Comment Date: 09122/2022 

The facility failed to comply with requirements under Permit by Rule 30 TAC 106.144 
regarding bulk mineral handling requirements. Specifically condition (3), the facility's 
stationary equipment and aggregate stockpiles are not located at least 300 feet from a 
structure not used solely by the owner of the property upon the facility Is located. The 
stationary equipment and aggregate stockpiles on the southern portion of the facility are also 
located within 300 feet of another structure not owned or operated by the facility per a Google 
Earth distance review. Because this investigation contains alleged violations that will be 
referred to the TCEQ Enforcement Division, this alleged violation will also be referred. 

Track No: 825200 Compliance Due Date: To Be Determined 
30 TAC Chapter 116.110(a) 
5C THSC Chapter 382.085(b) 

Alleged Violation: 
Investigation: 1846525 Comment Date: 09/22/2022 

The facility failed to comply with the requirements under 30 TAC 116.110 which requires a 
facility to obtain authorization prior to construction or operations. Specifically, the facility failed 
to obtain the correct authorization for concrete batching operations. The facillty is currently 
registered under Permit by Rule 30 TAC 106.144 for bulk mineral handling but does not meet 
the conditions of the Permit by Rule; and in addition, the facility operates as a concrete batch 
plant and requires authorization under the 6004 com::rete batch plant standard pen-nit. This 
alleged violation to be referred to the TCEQ Enforcement Division. 

Summaiy of lnVHUgaUDn Findings Page1of1 
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AIR CP _102390051_CP _20220912_Investigation_1846525_ 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
Investigation Report 

The TCEQ is committed to accessibility. Ifyo11 need assistance in accessing tbis document, please contact oce@tceq.texas.gov 

Customer: Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC 
Customer Number: CN605903574 

Regulated Entity Name: TEXAS STAR READY MIX 

Regulated Entity Number: RN102390051 

Investigation # 1846525 

Investigator: JOSEPH VU 

Conducted: 09/12/2022 - 09/12/2022 

Program(s): AIR NEW SOURCE PERMITS 

Investigation Type: Compliance Investigation 

Additional ID(s): 39039 

Incident Numbers 

SJte Classlftcation MINOR SOURCE 

NAIC Code: 32732 
NAIC Code: 327320 
SIC Code: 3273 
SIC Code: 3271 

Location: 

Address: 4500 GREAT TRINITY FOREST 
WAY, 

Local Unit: CITY OF DALLAS LOCAL PROGRAM 

DALLAS, TX, 75216 
Activlcy Type(s): NMNC -AIR NMNC • NON-MAJOR 

NON-CHECKLISTED 

Principal(s); 
Role 
RESPONDENT 

Contactfs): 

Name 

TEXAS STAR READY MIX LLC 

Role 

REGULATED 
ENTITY MAIL 
CONTACT 

Title 

OWNER/MANAGER 

Nwne 

EYAD ALBELBAISI 

Other Staff Memhl!rC,): 
Role 
Supervisor 
QA Reviewer 
Investigator 
Investigator 

Checklist Name 

Name 
PAUL WHITE 
ADRIANNE JOHNSON 
MICHAEL LEWIS 
CANDICE TESCHNER 

Associated Check List 

AIR GENERIC INVESTIGATION (10 ITEMS) 
UnitName 
39039 

Investigation Comments: 

Introduction: 

Phone 

Cell (214) 475-5095 

On September 12, 2022 Mr. Joseph Vu (investigator), Ms. Candice Teschner, and Mr. Michael Lewis, 
environmental investigators with the City of Dallas Local Air Program (LAP), conducted a Non-Major 
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TEXAS STAR READY MIX• DALLAS 

9/12/2oaa Inv.# - 1846525 

Page 2of6 

Non-checldistcd (NMNC) Investigation at Texas Star Ready Mix which is owned by Texas Star Ready Mix LLC 
(CN605903574). Texas Star Ready Mix is located at 4500 Great Trinity Forest Way Dallas, Dallas County, Texas 
75216 (the facility). 

The purpose of this investigation was to determine the compliance status of the facility with all the applicable 
State and Federal air quality rules. Mr. Eyad Albelbaisi, owner, was contacted by phone on September 7, 2022 to 
schedule the investigation. At that time, the environmental investigator conveyed to the facility representative the 
reason for the investigation. The operates under Registration #39039 which is for Permit by Rule (PBR) 30 Texas 
Administration Code (TAC) 106.144 for Bulk Mineral Handling. The registration was last altered on June 22, 2021 
for an ownership change. The registration was initially registered on August 31, 1998. Mr. Albelbaisi is the 
Regulated Entity (RE) mail contact and the contact on site. 

Daily Narrative: 
The investigators arrived at the facility on September 12, 2022 at approximately 8:55AM. The weather conditions 
upon arrival were as follows: 71 degrees Fahrenheit, 73% relative humidity, scattered clouds with three mile per 
hour winds from the north. 

A perimeter evaluation to determine if there were any significant odors, dust, or visible emissions leaving the 
property line was conducted prior to entry. Visible emissions in the form of dust were observed for approximately 
seven seconds originating from a vehicle traveling on plant roads at the facility, The visible emissions did not leave 
the property line. No odors were detected by the investigators. At the time of the investigation, the facility 
appeared to be in of operation. The investigators observed one concrete mixing truck being loaded with aggregate 
from the bulk storage silo and then water was added. During the entire process, the concrete mixing truck was in 
operation and appeared to be mixing as the truck received materials. 

The investigator then entered the facility and made contact with Mr. Albelbaisi. Prior to the facility tour, a 
pre,-tour interview was petformed and the conditions of registration # 39039 were discussed. The investigator 
evaluated the facility based on each condition of the PBR. and the compliance status of each condition is detailed 
as follows; 

1) Non-Compliance (NC): The facility utilires an open conveyor system which is not enclosed nor vented through 
a fabric filter. During the tour of the facility, the investigators observed the conveyor system and noted it was not 
enclosed. Mr. Albelbaisi confirmed it was not enclosed and is used to transport sand and aggregate to the bulk 
storage silos. This non-compliance results in an alleged Notice of Violation. The facility failed to comply with 
requirements under Permit by Rule 30 TAC 106.144 regarding bulk mineral handling requirements. Specifically 
condition (1), the sand and aggregate are transported on an open conveyor system which is not vented through a 
fabric filter. During the tour and interview, Mr. Albelbaisi stated the conveyor system is open and not enclosed 
and does not transport cement/flyash but sand and aggregate. According to the Enforcement Initiation Criteria 
(EiC) version 17, this violation is categorized Category B(18)(g)(1) non-clerical violation. 

2) In-Compliance (IC): At the time of the investigation,. a watertruek was located onsite but not in use due to 
mechanical issues. The facility currently utilizes water hoses and a street sweeper to maintain in-plant roads to 
control dust emissions. 

3) NC: The facility's stationary equipment and aggregate piles were observed to be located well within 300 feet 
from the adjacent property's building. During the interview portion, the investigators questioned if the 
neighboring properties were owned or operated by the facility. Mr. Albelbaisi stated the adjacent parcels of land 
are owned by an individual and the tracts ofland are leased out to separate businesses. This confirms the adjacent 
properties are not owned or operated by the facility. The investigator had performed desktop research utilizing 
Google Earth prior to the on site portion of the investigation to determine an approximate distance from the 
aggregate piles and stationary equipment. The figures depicting the failed distance limitations is attached. 
(Attachment 1 - Distance Limits), This non-compliance results in an alleged Notice of Violation. The facility failed 
to comply with requirements under Permit by Rule 30 TAC 106.144 regarding bulk mineral handling 
requirements. Specifically condition (3), the facility's stationary equipment and aggregate stockpiles are not 
located at least 300 feet from a structure not used solely by the owner of the property upon the facility is located. 
The stationary equipment and aggregate stockpiles on the southern portion of the facility are also located within 
300 feet of another structure not owned or operated by the facility per a Google Earth distance review. According 
to the EiC version 17, this violation is catcgorb:cd Category B(18)(g)(1) non-clerical violation, 
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TEXAS STAR READY MIX- DALLAS 

9/12/2022 Inv. # - 1846525 

Pageaof6 

4) IC: The facility was registered with the TCEQ using a PI-7 form in August of 1998, 

After the conditions of the PBR were discussed, the investigators continued the interview and inquired what 
activities were conducted at the facility. Mr. Albelbaisi stated the facility stores aggregate for the eventual batching 
and mixing of concrete. No chemical additives containing volatile organic compounds are used during the process. 
Mr, Albelbaisi did not deny the facility batches and mixes concrete onsite. The investigators informed Mr. 
Albelbaisi at that point in the investigation the registration for the facility was in the incorrect authorization and 
that the facility would be required to obtain a New Source Review Concrete Batch Plant Standard Permit 6oo4. 
Mr. Albelsaisi stated the facility was purchased from the prior owners in June of 2021 and all the appropriate 
transferred permits and registrations were completed and transferred. Mr. Albelbaisi claimed to not know or 
understand why the PBR was not the same authorization as the standard permit. The investigators explained to 
Mr . .Albelbaisi why the PBR could not be claimed to operate a concrete batch plant and recommended Mr. 
Albelbaisi contact the TCEQ's Small Business and Local Government Assistance Program. Based on the 
statements from Mr . .Albelbaisi and what the investigators had observed prior to making entry onto the facility, 
the facility performs concrete batching and mixing operations and requires authorization under the New Source 
Review Concrete Batch Plant Standard Pennit 6004. The facility is operating without a permit/authorization as a 
concrete batch plant that performs wet batching, dry batching, or central mixing. This non-compliance results in 
an alleged Notice of Violation. The facility failed to comply with the requirements under 30 TAC 116.110 (a) which 
requires a facility to obtain authorization prior to construction or operations. Specifically, the facility failed to 
obtain the correct authorization for concrete batching operations, The facility is currently registered under Permit 
by Rule 30 TAC 106.144 for bu]k mineral handling but does not meet the conditions of the Permit by Rule; and in 
addition, the facility operates as a concrete batch plant and requires authorization under the 6004 concrete batch 
plant standard permit. According to the EiC Version 17, this violation is categorized as a Category .A2.d for 
operating without a permit/authorization, Specifically, a concrete batch plant that petforms wet batching, dry 
batching or central mixing. 

On September 15, 2022, the investigator contacted the TCEQ Air Permits Di.vision (APD) to discws the 30 TAC 
106.144 and the concrete batch plant standard permit. The conversation with TCEQ APD led the investigator to 
detennine the facility has an incolTect/improper authorization to operate as a concrete batch plant. 

The violations identified and issued as a result of this investigation will be referred to the TCEQ Enforcement 
Division. 

Exit interview: 
On September 12, 2022, the investigators informed Mr. Albelbaisi that alleged violations were identified and a 
TCEQ Exit Interview Form will be emailed to his attention. The investigator also informed Mr, Albelbaisi that a 
Notice of Enforcement Letter will be mailed to his attention as we11. On September 15, 2022, the investigator 
emailed a copy of the TCEQ Exit Intel'\11.ew Form with three alleged violations. (Attachment 2), The Notice of 
Violations will be referred to the TCF.Q Enforcement division for assessment. 

GENERAL FAC!Ll1Y AND PROCESS INFORMATION: 
Process Description 
The facility operates as a concrete batch plant and performs batch mixing. Concrete trucks are loaded onsite and 
mixes onsite prior to leaving the facility property line. 

BACKGROUND: 
Comp1iance History: 
Texas star Ready Mix 
RN102390051 
Classification - Unclassified and Rating - Not Available (N/A) 

Texas Star Ready Mix LLC 
CN605903574 
Classification- Unclassified and Rating - N/A 
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Agreed Orders, Court Orders, and Other Compliance Agreements: 
This investigation resulted in three violations; two for failing to meet PBR conditions 1 and 3 of 30 TAC 106.144, 
and for failing to obtain the proper permit/authorization to operate a concrete batch pJant prior to construction or 
operations under 30 TAC 116.no(a). These violations will be referred to the TCEQ Enforcement Division. 

Prior Enforcement Issues: 
There are no known prior enforcement issues in the last two years. 

Complaints: 
None in the last two years. 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: 
Conclusions, Recommendations and Current Enforcement Actions: 
On September 15, 2022, the investigator emailed Mr. Albelbaisi the TCF.Q E1F documenting three alleged 
violations. The facility is currently operating as a concrete batch plant which performs concrete batching onsite. 
The current registration for bulk mineral handling is not the correct autho1faation and the facility should have 
obtained a concrete batch plant standard permit. The facility will be mailed a Notice of Enforcement Letter. 

Additional Issues: 
None. 

Attachments: 
1) Distance Limits 
2) TCEQ Exit Interview- Notice of Violations 

NOE Date: 10/12/2022 

Track Number: 825195 

OUTSTANDING ALLHGl!DVIOLATION(S) 

ASSOCIATED TO A NOTICE OF l!NFORCl!Ml!NT 

Compliance Due Date: To Be Determined 

Violation Start Date: 9/12/2022 

30 TAC Chapter 106.144(1) 
SC THSC Chapter 382,085(b) 

Alleged Violation: 

Investigation: 1846525 Comment Date: 09/22/2022 
The facility failed to comply with requirements under Permit by Rule 30 TAC 106.144 regarding bulk mineral 
handling requirements. Specifically condition (1), the sand and aggregate are transported on an open conveyor 
system which is not vented through a fabric filter. During the tour and inteivicw, Mr. Albelbaisi stated the 
conveyor system is open and not enclosed and does not transport cement/flyash but sand and aggregate. 
Because this investigation includes aUeged violations being referred to the TCEQ Enforcement Division, this 
alleged violation will also be referred to the TCEQ Enforcement Division. 

Track Number: 825197 

30 TAC Chapter 106.144(3) 

Compliance Due Date: To Be Determined 

Violation Start Date: 9/12/2022 
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5C THSC Chapter 382,085(b) 

Alleged Violation: 

Investigation: 1846525 Comment Date: 09/22/2022 
The facility failed to comply with requirements under Permit by Rule 30 TAC 106.144 regarding bulk mineral 
handling requirements. Specifically condition (3), the facility's stationary equipment and aggregate stockpiles 
are not located at least 300 feet from a structure not used solely by the owner of the property upon the facility is 
located. The stationazy equipment and aggregate stockpiles on the southern portion of the facility are also 
located within 300 feet of another structure not owned or operated by the facility per a Google Earth distance 
review. Because this investigation contains alleged violations that will be refelTed to the TCEQ Enforcement 
Division, this alleged violation will also be refeITed. 

Track Number: 825200 Compliance Due Date: To Be Determined 

Violation Start.Date: 9/12/2022 

30 TAC Chapter 116.uO{a) 
5C THSC Chapter 382,085(b) 

Alleged Violation: 

Investigation: 1846525 Comment Date: 09/22/2022 
The facility failed to comply with the requirements under 30 TAC 116.110 which requires a facility to obtain 
authorization prior to construction or operations. Specifically, the facility failed to obtain the con-ect 
authorization for concrete batching operations, The facility is currently registered under Pennit by Rule 30 TAC 
106.144 for bulk mineral handling but does not meet the oonditions of the Permit by Rule; and in addition, the 
facility operates as a concrete batch plant and requires authorization under the 6004 concrete batch plant 
standard permit. This alleged violation to be referred to the TCEQ Enforcement Division. 

Signed Date 10/12/2022 

Environmental Investigator 

Signed Date 10/12/2022 

Supervisor 
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Attachments: (in order of final re Port submittal) 

LEnforcementAction Request (EAR) 

.K_Letterto Facility(specifytype): NOE I etter 
Investigation Report 

_Sample .Analysis Results 

_Manifests 

_Notice of Registration 

60 

_Maps, Plans, Sketches 

_Photographs 

_Correspondence from the facility 

Lother (specify): 

1) Distance Limits Figures 

2} TCEQ Exit Interview - Notice of Enforcement 



Inv 1846525 

Attachment 1 

Distance Limit Figures 

Total Pages 2 

CN605903574 

RN102390051 

Texas Star Ready Mix LLC 

Texas Star Ready Mix 

9/12/2022 
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TCEQ EXIT INTERVIEW FORM: Potential Violations and/or Records Request 
Regulated Entity/Site NH1e Texas Star Ready Mix TCEQ Add. ID No. RN102390051 

RN No (optional) 

hlvestigation Type Comp \ Contact Made ln•House (YIN) Iv Purpose of la'l'estigatlOD Compliance Invcslig!Ulon 

Regulated Entity C1mtac:t Mr. Eyad Albelbaisi Telephone No. 214 475 5095 Date 09/15/2022 

Centacted 

Tttlo FAX #/Email address FAX/Email 09/15/2022 Owner wooncretes@gmail.com .... 
- -

~ NOflCE: Toe illfulllllltion J)«lvided in !his fonn is irnemkd 10 prDVide dartiy to iS5UCS that have 8lisml dllliffg the inveuigation ptOceff between lhc TCEQ and the lll&Ulatcd entity .itamw above and dot:31161 ,eprat:l#fl""' TC'.t"Qfindi"&'f 
rdat~ ,o violatiais. Any P!?~~ Ol" _alleged violmion_s -~vaed ~r !he dlfl: 511t llris romi ~m be com'!'l!fli~ IO the~ ~I)' ~~ J!rlor to ~ issuance of a notice ofvioliition or Cffloi=neftl. C<lni:hc.ions drawn frum this .. - on. lllCIWJ aamuonai wo1311ons or llJII VIOlalllJDSOISQ)VCl'CQIU mlVJ me course OI IDIS Ill 'Mil lie CHk:U!llelllC4 ID a IU1DI lnvi:sl""""Dn---

Issue For Records Request, identify the neeessary records, the company contact and date due to the a1eaey. For Alleged and Poteatial Violation Issues, inclade the 
role in aaestioa wida the clearl" described .. ..+antial arublem., Other fvne of Issacs: r"11v describe. 

No. --· Rule Citafioa flf' known) Descrintion oflssue 
The facility failed to comply with requirements under Permit by Rule 30 TAC 106.144 regarding bulk 
mineral handling requirements. Specifically, the sand and aggregate are transported on an open 

1 AV 30 TAC 106.144(1) conveyor system which is not vented through a fabric filter. During the tour and interview, Mr. 
Albelbaisi stated the conveyor system is open and not enclosed and does not transport cement/flyash 
but sand and aggregate. 
The facility failed to comply with requirements under Permit by Rule 30 TAC 106.144 regarding bulk 
mineral handling requirements. Specifically, the facility's aggregate stockpiles are not located at least 

2 AV 30 TAC 106.144(3) 300 feet from a structure not used solely by the owner of the property upon the facility is located. The 
stockpiles on the southern portion are located within 300 feet of another structure not owned or 
operated by the facility per a Google Earth distance review. 
The facility failed to comply with the requirements under 30 TAC 116.110 which requires a facility to 

3 AV 30 TAC 116.llO(a) 

obtain authorization prior to construction or operations. Specifically, the facility fruled to obtain the 
correct authorl7.ation for concrete batching operations. The facility is currently registered under 
Permit by Rule 106.144 for bulk mineral handling but does not meet the conditions of the Permit by 
Rule; and in addition, the facility activities as a concrete batch plant requires authorization under the 
6004 standard permiL 

~otc J: bs•e e Can Bt One or Mott of: AV •AR-td Viola1ioa , PV IPorcntial VIOiation\ 0 lOtbtrl, or KR lRttords """ Did the TCEQ document the regulated entity named above operating without proper authorization? I 0 Yes ~ No 

Did the investigator advise the regulated entity representative 'that continued operation is not authori7.ed? I 0Yes ~ No 

Document Aeknowledgment. Signature on Ibis document establishes only 1ha1 the regulated ent.ily (RE) tep1CSCDtative received a copy of this document and associated c.ontiouation pages on lhc date noted. If 
contact was made b_!_ ~cphom:, the docwnent will be sent via FAX or Email to RE; therefore, lhc RE signalurc is not rcq11ircd.. 

IC you llave questions about any infnrmatinn on this fnnn, please ceataelyoqr local TCEQ Regional OIiier. 
Please contact the agency's public informmion officer with any requests, questioos, or comments on aceess to records« information at 512-239-0800. 

White Copy: Rtgoh1kd Ealily Repraeotatin Yellow Copy: TCEQ (Note: UR adcUdonal pages as.11ecesury) Page I on 
~EQ 200S5 (01/2019) 
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Mr. Joseph Vu 9/15/2022 Mr. Eyad (Ed) Albelbaisi (emailed) 09/15/2022 

lnves'1Name {~~~ted) Date Regulated Entity Representative Name (Signed & Printed) Date 

I 
--, 

Iryoa bllVC q,aesliom about any infonm.tioa. oa this Conn, pleue CDbblct you local TCEQ Regional omu. 
PICll!ll contact the agency's public infonnation officer with any requests, questions, or comments on~ to records or infonnation at 512-239-0800. 

WhiteCopy:ltegulatMEali1yRe..-nlativc YellmvCopy: TCEQ (Note: use addidoaal pl:fe5 as necessary) Page 2 ofl 
TCEQ 20085 (01/2019) 



ffflm: 
To, 
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SUbject, 
Date: 
Attachments: 

""'1llOl.oh 

&ndrre ;z. 1Ss MldJael 
RN10239CI051 Texas Star Ready MIX - Exit Interview Rinn 
Monday, Sep~ 12, 2022 12:22;31 PM 
RNID2390ll51 Icwts Slj!c Rudr Mb! flf NOE Ddf 
lmi!Ae9Pt PDQ 
IOOW002 PDQ 
lmitQe00] PDQ 
kDiNePIJ4 ODO 
Com:rere MT P/int-922? J odf 

Good morning Mr. A!belbaisi, 

Thank you again for allowing us to visit your facility this morning at 4500 Great Trinity Forest Way. To 

document our discussion and issuance of Notice of Violation/Notice of Enforcement. Please see the 
attached Exit Interview form with the allegations. 

As discussed onsite, there are two violations being issued, one for the failing to meet the PBR 

distance requirements of 300 feet from near structure not owned or operated by your facility, and 

the second being failing to register your concrete batch plant operations with the correct air permit. 
I've attached the 6004 standard concrete batch plant permit for your reference. 

I received a phone call from Small Business assistance Ms. Kayla this morning and discussed your 

situation. She should be contacting you regarding your next steps. I will continue with my 
investigation and report writing unless otherwise notified there is some other documentation 
needed to review for your case. 

The Exit Interview Form: Potential Vlolatlons Is being provided as an attachment to this email to 
ensure that the Issues were communicated clearly during our in person meeting on 09/12/2022. 
If there are questions about the information contained In the form, or if a meeting: at the TCEQ 
regional office Is requested to discuss the contents of the Exit Interview Form, contact me as 
soon as possible, Please reply to this email, with the attachment, to Indicate your receipt. 

Kind regards, 

Joseph Vu MS, P.G. 
Manager- Environmental Quality, 

Air Compliance Program 

City of Dallas I DallasCltyNews.net 
Envtronmental Quality & Sustainability 

1500 Marilla Street, 7AN 

Dallas, TX 75201 

o: 214 670-4059 I 
losenh v11@dallasGitvball cam 

000 
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**OPEN RECORDS NOTICE: This email and responses may be subject to the Texas Open Records Act 
and may be disclosed to the public upon request. Please respond accordingly.•• 

***For your information, my email address wilt be changing to jovmh vu@dallas gov rm Thursday 
05/19/2022 @ 8pm. You may continue directing you remails to ioseob vtl@dul/qsdtvhall mm for the 
time being. In the future please begin using the@dallas.gov address. Thank yaul*** 

68 



Redaction Log 
Redaction Date: 6/13/20231:29:06 PM 

Total Number of R(..'<lactions in Document: 1 

Redaction Reasons by Page 

Page Reason Description Occurrences 

19 Email 552.137 -Confidentiality of Certain E-mail 
Addresses 1 
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Redaction Date: 6/13/20231:29:06 PM 

Redaction Log 

Redaction Reasons by Exemption 

Reason Description Pages 
(Count) 

Email 552.137 - Confidentiality of Certain E-mail 19(1) 
Addresses 
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ATTACHMENT 12 
TCEQ PIR 85613 OFFICIAL RESPONSE CORRESPONDENCE 

Michael Bates 

From: 
Sent: 

Patrick Yantis <Patrick.Yantis@tceq.texas.gov> 
Friday, July 28, 2023 4:04 PM 

To: Michael Bates 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Savannah Sembera; Jill Dickey; Elizabeth Cater 
RE: PIR 85613 Official Response Letter 

Hi Michael 

TCEQdoes not have a process for members of the public to reqt.iest third party documents that are not already 
within TCEQ's possession. If you are interested in accessing a company's records, you may try contacting the 
facility directly. 

If you have any other questions, please let me know 

Thanks 
Patrick 

Patrick Yantis I Emlulons Asse5$ment Section J Air Quality Division I TCEQ 

9 (512) 239-1462 b!Fax: (512) 239-15151 ta: patrick.yantis@tr:..,q.texas.gov 

point Source Emissions Inventory Home Page 

How ls our customer service? FIii out our onllne customer satisfaction survey at www.tceq.texas.gov/customersurvey. 

From: Michael Bates <batesm@lanwt.org> 
Sent: Thursday, July 27, 2023 12:54 PM 
To: Patrick Yantis <Patrick. Yantis@tceq.texas.gov> 

CC: Savannah Sembera <Savannah.Sembera@tceq.texas.gov>; Jill Dickey <jill.dickey@tceq.texas.gov>; Elizabeth Cater 
<Elizabeth .Cater@tceq.texas.gov> 
Subject: RE: PIR 85613 Official Response Letter 

Good Afternoon Patrick, 

Thank you for your response regarding PIR 23-85613. It is our understanding that Texas Star Ready Mix is 
required to keep operational logs on site that and must .. make records avai1able in a reviewable fonnat at the 
request of personnel from the commission or any air pollution control program having jurisdiction." 30 Tex. 
Admin. Code§ 106.8(c)(2). 

Your email indicates that TCEQ1s position is that these operational logs are not subject to public information 
request. If that is TCEQ's position, what is the process for the public to request that TCEQ gather these 
compliance records and make them publicly available? 

Sincerely, 

Mlchael Bates 

1 
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Staff Attorney 
Community Revitalization Project 
Legal Aid of North West Texas 
400 S. Zang Blvd., Suite 1420 
Dallas, Texas 75208 
Office: 214-243-2582 Ext. 8902 
Fax: 817-736-1602 

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS MESSAGE MAY BE PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL AND PROTECTED FROM 

DISCLOSURE. IF THE READER OF THIS MESSAGE IS NOT THE INTENDED RECIPIENT, OR AN EMPLOYEE OR AGENT 
RESPONSIBLE FOR DELIVERING THIS MESSAGE TO THE INTENDED RECIPIENT, YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT ANY 
REPRODUCTION, DISSEMINATION OR DISTRIBUTION OF THIS COMMUNICATION IS STRICTLY PROHIBITED. IFYOU HAVE 

RECEIVED THIS COMMUNICATION JN ERROR, PLEASE NOTIFY US IMMEDIATELY BY REPLYING TO THE MESSAGE AND 
DELETING IT FROM YOUR COMPUTER. 

From: Patrick Yantis <Patrick.Yantis@tceg.texas.gov> 
Sent: Thursday, July 27, 2023 9:28 AM 
To: Michael Bates <batesm@lanwt.org> 

Cc: Savannah Sembera <Savannah.Sembera@tceg.texas.gov>; Jill Dickey <jill.dickey@tceg.texas.gov>; Elizabeth Cater 
<Elizabeth.Cater@tceg.texas.gov> 
Subject: RE: PIR 85613 Official Response Letter 

Good Morning Michael1 

While TCEQ has a right of access to the requested information in accordance with 30 Tex. Adm in. Code§ 
106.8{c), TCEQ was not In possession of the informatfon at the time PIR 23-85613 was received. A Public 
Information Act request can only encompass public information in existence at the time the request was made, 
and governmental bodies are not obligated to prepare new information in response to a request. Private third­
party records are only considered public information if they are "created by, transmitted to1 received by, or 
maintained by ... a person or entity performing official business or a governmental function on behalf of a 
governmental body .. . . 11 Tex. Go\ft Code§ 552.002(a-1). Regulated entities that are required to maintain certain 
records to demonstrate permitting compliance are not performing TCEQ business or governmental functions 
when doing so. See Open Records Decision No. 462 (1987). 

As Texas Star Ready Mix does not maintain the requested information in the role.of an agent acting on behalf of 
TCEQ, and TCEQ has not requested that Texas Star Ready Mix provide the information to TCEQ in accordance 
with 30 Tex. Adm in. Code§ 106.S(c:), TCEQ has no information to provide that is responsive to your request. 

If you have any questions, please let me know 

Thanks 
Patrick 

Patrick Yantis I Eml$$lons AsHssment Section I Air Quality Division I TCEQ 

S (512) 239-1462 b!Fax: (512) 239·15151 t·!J: patrick.yantis@tceg.texas.gov 

Point Source Emissions Inventory Home Page 

How is our customer service? FIii out our onllne customer satisfaction survey at www.tceq.te~as.gov/customersurvey. 

2 
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From: Michael Bates <batesm@lanwt.org> 
Sent: Monday, July 24, 2023 4:50 PM 
To: Patrick Yantis <Patrlck.Yantis@tceg.texas.gov> 
CC: Savannah Sembera <Savannah.Sembera@tceg.texas.gov>; Jill Dickey <iill.dickey@tceg.texas.gov> 
Subject: RE: PIR 85613 Official Response Letter 

Good afternoon, 

We would like to clarify whether or not TCEQrequested the documents in PIR 85613 directly from Texas Star Ready Mix, 
LLC. Texas Star Ready Mix is required to keep the documents requested in PIR 85613 on site. 

The requested information entails records maintained by Texas Star Ready Mix under the order of TCEQ and for review 
by TCEQ. TCEQ requires facilities operating under a permit by rule ("PBR") to maintain records containing sufficient 
information to demonstrate compliance with all applicable general requirements and all applicable PBR requirements. 
30 Tex. Adm in, Code§ 106.8 (b). TCEQ requires a PBR facility to keep the record at the facility site and make the records 
available for review at the request of personnel from the commission or any air pollution control program having 
jurisdiction. 30 Tex. Adm in. Code§ 106.8 (c), 

We understand that TCEQ may not directly possess the requested information. Nonetheless, under the Texas Public 
Information Act (TPIA), the characterization of certain requested information as "public information11 does not depend 
on whether the requested information is in the actual possession of the governmental body. See Tex. Gov't Code§ 
552.002{a); see Open Records Decision No. 462 {1987). 

The requested Information is "public information" under the TPIA because (1) it is written, produced, collected, 
assembled, and maintained pursuant to TCEQ requirements to demonstrate that the facility does not make a significant 
contribution of air contaminants to the atmosphere (2) for review by TCEQ, and (3) TCEQ has a right of access to the 
records. See Tex. Gov't Code§ 552.002. 

We request that TCEQ obtain the above-mentioned documents from Texas Star Ready Mix as part of our public 
information request. If you will not seek these documents from Texas Star Ready Mix or will not share these documents, 
please let us know what exception to the Public Information Act you believe is operable, and if you will seek an Attorney 
General's opinion. Thank you for your time and attention to this matter. Please reach out If you need further clarification 
about our request. 

Sincerely, 

Michael Bates 
Staff Attorney 
Community Revitalfzation Project 
Legal Aid of NorthWest Texas 
400 s. Zang Blvd., Suite 1420 
Dallas, Texas 75208 
Office: 214-243-2582 Ext. 8902 
Fax: 817-736-1602 

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS MESSAGE MAY BE PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL AND PROTECTED FROM 

DISCLOSURE. IF THE READER OF THIS MESSAGE IS NOT THE INTENDED RECIPIENT, OR AN EMPLOYEE OR AGENT 
RESPONSIBLE FOR DELIVERING THIS MESSAGE TO THE INTENDED RECIPIENT, YOU ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT ANY 
REPRODUCTION, DISSEMINATION OR DISTRIBUTION OF THIS COMMUNICATION rs STRICTLY PROHIBITED. IF YOU HAVE 

RECEIVED THIS COMMUNICATION IN ERROR, PLEASE NOTIFY US IMMEDIATELY BY REPLYING TO THE MESSAGE AND 
DELETING IT FROM YOUR COMPUTER. 

3 
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From: Patrick Yantis <Patrick.Yantis@tceg.texas.gov> 
Sent: Wednesday, July 19, 202310:35 AM 
To: Michael Bates <batesm@lanwt.org> 

Cc: Savannah Sembera <Savannah.Sembera@tceg.texas.gov>; Jill Dickey <jill.dickey@tceg.texas.gov> 
Subject: PIR 85613 Official Response Letter 

Good Morning, 

Please see the attached official response letter. 

The Texas Commission on Envfronmental Quality (TCEQ) received your request for information under the Texas Public 
Information Act. After reviewing the appropriate resources of the TCEQ, we were unable to locate any responsive 
information in the possession of the TCEQconcerning Public Information Request number 85613. 

If you have any questions1 please let me know 

Thanks, 

Patrick 

Patrick Yantls. I TCEQ I Emissions Assessment Section 
~ .J (512) 239-1462 Fax: {512) 239-1515 

if:::: Patr(c!(.Vantjs@t99q.taxas.gov 
12100 Park 35 Circle, Bldg.EI Austin, Texas 787531 Mail: MC-164, P.O. Box 13087. Austin TX 78711-3087 

Point Source Emissions Inventory Home Page 
Air Emissions and Air Inspection Fees Home Page 

How is our customer service? Fill out our online customer satisfaction survey at www.tceg.texas.gov/customersurvey. 

4 
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ATTACHMENT 13 
TCEQ RESPONSE TO OPEN RECORDS REQUEST 

Jon Niermann, Chulrmun 
Emily Undley, Commissioner 
Bobby Janecka, Commissioner 
Kelly Keel, Interim Execulive Dire.t'lor 

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

Via E-Mail 

Michael Bates 
Legal Aid Of NorthWest Texas 

Protecfi11g Texas l1y ReduchJB and Preventing Pollufion 

July 19, 2023 

Re: TCEQ Public Information Request number 85613 

Dear Michael Bates: 

The Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) received your request for information under 
the Texas Public Information Act. After reviewing the appropriate resources of the TCEQ, we were 
unable to locate any responsive information in the possession of the TCEQ concerning the above 
referenced request. 

If you have any questions concerning this matter, you may contact me ut 512-239-1462 or by e-mail at 
Patrick.Yantis@tceq.texas.gov. 

Sincerely, 

Patrick Yantis 
Natural Resources Spec 
Air Qua1ity Division 

P.O. Box 13087 • Austin, Texas 78711-3087 • 512-239-1000 • lccq.Lcxas.gov 
llow is our customer service'/ tceq.texas.gov/customersurvey 

prln1edDuneeyeJedpaP<r 
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ATTACHMENT 14 

AFFIDAVITS - FRANKLIN ORTEGA 

STATE OF TEXAS § 
§ 

COUNTY OF DALLAS § 

AFFIDAVIT 

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeai·ed 

FRANKLIN ORTEGA, who swo,·e or affirmed to tell the truth, and stated as follows: 

1. My name is FRANKLIN ORTEGA. I am of sound mind and capable of 

making this sworn statement. I have personal knowledge of the facts written in this 

statement. I am over the age of twenty-one years old and am competent to testify to 

the matters set forth in this Affidavit. I swea,• that the testimony and evidence as 

follows is true and correct to the best of my knowledge. 

2. I am a paralegal for Legal Aid of North West Texas at the address 400 S 

Zang Blvd Suite 1420, Dallas, Texas 75208. 

3. I hereby certify I took the attached photos and videos appearing within 

the submitted USB drive for July 12, 2023, July 14, 2023, and Augnst 15, 2023 

(referred to as Attachment 14 in Joppa Fl'eedman's Town Association's Supplemental 

Public Comment for Air Permit No. 171636 submitted on Augnst 17, 2023). I hereby 

certify I also took the attached photos and videos from Joppa Freedman's Town 

Association's Supplemental Public Comment• Attachments 1, 3, and 7 for Air Permit 

No. 171636. 

4. I hereby certify that I took the attached photos and videos on July 12, 

2023 at or around the property operated by Texas Stai· Ready Mix, LLC at 4600 Great 

Trinity Forest Way, Dallas, Texas. I witnessed site operntions including a concrete 
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mixer truck unde1· the facility's drop point and multiple concrete mixing trucks 

operating on site. 

5. I hereby certify that I took the attached photos and videos on July 14, 

2023 at or around the property operated by Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC at 4500 Great 

Trinity Forest Way, Dallas, Texas. At the site on this date, I witnessed and 

documented through photos and video site operations including a wheel loader 

moving what I understood to be gravel to the back of the site and a concrete mixer 

driving on an unpaved area. 

6. I hereby certify that I took the attached photos and videos on July 19, 

2023 at or around the property operated by Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC at 4500 Great 

Trinity Fo1·est Way, Dallas, Texas. At the site on this date, I witnessed and 

documented through photos and video no public notice signs at or around the site's 

main entrance. 

7. I hereby certify that I took the attached photo on July 19, 2023 atthe J. 

Erik Jonnson Public Library at 1515 Young Street, Dallas, Texas 75201. At the 

library, I witnessed and documented no public notice or permit application from 

Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC at the library's table that holds public notices and public 

information. 

8. I hereby certify that I took the attached photos and videos on August 15, 

2023. At the site on this date, I witnessed and documented tln:ough photos and video 

no public notice signs at or around the site's main entrance. At the site on this date, 

I witnessed and documented through photos and video the wall height surrounding 

2 
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the site at one location on the east side of the main enti·ance measured under six feet 

tall and part of this wall/fence was made only of chain link. At the site on this date, I 

witnessed and documented through photos and video the walls of the three-walled 

bunker surrounding the stockpiles were either chain link or concrete that did not 

extend two feet above the top of the stockpile and the stockpiles were adjacent to the 

fence line. 

9. The affidavit and evidence submitted with it may be used fo1• a hearing 

or any court proceeding. 

Signed, 

~~ FRANKLIN ORTEG 

State of Texas 
County of Dallas 

SWORN to and SUBSCRIBED befo1·e me, the undersigned authority, on the 
17th day of August, 2023, by FRANKLIN ORTEGA. 

Not I Public, 
State of Texas 

e LYNELLE WELLS 
Nou,y Pulilc, Stdo ol T­
Nou,y lOf: 13145541-4 

MyC-E,q,ilu02-1&-2028 

3 
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STATE OF TEXAS § 
§ 

COUNTY OF DALLAS § 

AFFIDAVIT 

Before me, the undersigned auth01·ity, on this day personally appeared 

FRANKLIN ORTEGA. who swore or affirmed to tell the truth, and stated as follows: 

1. My name is FRANKLIN ORTEGA. I am of sound mind and capable of 

making this sworn statement. I have personal knowledge of the facts written in this 

statement. I am over the age of twenty-one years old and am competent to testify to 

the matters set forth in this Affidavit. I swear that the testimony and evidence as 

follows is true and correct to the best ofmy knowledge, 

2. I am a parnlegal for Legal Aid of North West Texas at the address 400 S 

Zang Blvd Suite 1420, Dallas, Texas 75208. 

3. I hereby certify I also took the attached photos from Joppa Freedman's 

Town Association's Supplemental Public Comment Dated Septembe1· 29, 2023 • 

Attachments 1 and 2 for Air Pei·mit No, 171636. 

4. I hereby certify that I took the attached photo on September 14, 2023 at 

the J. Erik Jonnson Public Lib,·ary at 1515 Young Street, Dallas, Texas 75201. 

5. I hereby certify that I took the attached photos on September 14, 2023 

of Applicant's site at 4500 Great Trinity Forest Way, Dallas, Texas 75216. At the site 

on this date, I witnessed and documented through photos the wall height surrounding 

the site on the east side of the main entrance remained the same height as a previous 

visit, under six feet tall, and pa,•t of this wall/fence was made only of chain link. At 
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the site on this date, I witnessed and documented through photos, the site did not 

have a paved main enti·ance or second entrance. 

6. The affidavit and evidence submitted with it may be used for a hea,·ing 

or any cou1t proceeding. 

Signed, 

~k:"C~ 
FRANKLIN ORTE A 

State of Texas 
County of Dallas 

SWORN to and SUBSCRIBED before me, the undersigned authority, on the 
28th day of September, 2023, by FRANKLIN ORTEGA. 

2 
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ATTACHMENT 15 

RESPONDENT'S COUNCIL - CORRESPONDENCE WITH TCEQ 

BIRCH, BECKER&: MOORMAN, LLP 
1000 HERITAGE CENTER CIRCLE, SUITE 146, ROUND ROCK, TEXAS 78664• (512) 349-9300• rAX {512) 349'-9303 

~ii: 

October 23, 2023 

VIA E-1\IAIL Al\'D CERTIFIED l\lAII. XO. 9589 0710 5170 0434 8456 32 
RETUfu'; RECEIPT REOFESTED 

Craig Pritzlaff 
Director, MC-172 
Office of Compliance and Enforcement 
Texas Commission on Em'ironmental Quality 
P.O. Box 13087 
Austin, Texas 78711-3087 

blblm 

Re: Proposed Revisions to Agreed Order-Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC; RN! 11648234; 
Docket No. 2022-1557-AIR-E; Enforcement Case No. 63326 
FOR SETTLEl\IE::\"T Pt.:RPOSES O::\"L Y 

Dear Mr. Pritzlaff: 

This letter is pro,ided on behalf of Texas Star Ready Mix. LLC (Texas Star) concerning the 
pending proposed agreed order im'Olving its facility located at 4500 Great Trinity Forest Way, 
Dallas, Texas. The Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) pro,,ided the agreed 
order to Mr. Eyad Albelbaisi, crn11er of Texas Star by letter dated September 7, 2023. Texas Star 
proposes re\isions to the agreed order, and if accepted by TCEQ, Texas Star is prepared to sign 
the agreed order and settle this matter. 

The proposed revisions to the agreed order are as follows: 

Ordering Provision 2.a: 

"Immediately upon the effective date of this Order, eease ep.,.liag Rl>IH llte seek proper 
authorization for the concrete batch plant hao l,eett ootaifled in accordance with 30 TEX. 
ADMIN. CODE$ 116.l l0(a). Operation of the coocrete batch plant may continue while 
the permit application is pending." 

Ordering Provisioo 2.d: 

"Within 180 days after the effective date of this Order, submit written certification that 
either the authorization has been obtained or that operations of the concrete batch plant 
have pe,,,,.,..tttlj· ceased, and inclnde detailed snpporting docnmentation iuclndiug 
photographs, receipts, and/or other records to demonstrate compliance. The certification 
shall be signed by the Respondent and shall include the following certification language" 
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Craig Pri.tztaff 
October 23, 2023 
Page2 of2 

The revision in Ord,ring Provision 2.d simply recognizes that the pending Standard Pennit is not 
the only form of authorization for the facility. The word "pennancntly" bas been deleted to clarify 
the nature of any required shutdown of the facility. 

As we discussed in the meeting on Thursday, September 28, 2023, v.-:ith Texas Star's owners, Ed 
and Hana Albelbaisi, you, and other members of the TCEQ staff, this situation has created a serious 
financial hardship on Mr. and Mrs. Albelbaisi This facility has been operated by a variety of 
different owners for nearly 70 years and was acquired only two years ago by Mr. and Mrs. 
Alhelbaisi. TCEQ alleges violations concerning this facility based on an event that occurred 
thirteen years ago by a fourth-generation predecessor owner of the facility. The Albelbaisi's 
operated under the same apparent authorization as the previous owners, and they have done 
absolutely nothing to cause this situation. 

Texas Star has ten employees and the J\Jbelbaisi's have attempted to retain and pay these 
employees, but they desperately need to get the plant back into operation to pay their employees 
and obviously to pay the proposed TCEQ penalty. There is a Standard Penni! application pending 
for the facility, and my discussions with the TCEQ Air Permits Division indicate that the 
application meets all requirements and the permit could be issued except for the pending public 
comment and hearing requests. There are no residences within the statutory 440-yacd distance 
required for standing for a contested hearing, and so the Standard Permit should be issued Texas 
Star has conducted research on an organization behind mnch of the opposition to the facility and 
it does appear to have a valid Texas charter. None of the hearing :requests or COllllllents or within 
440yards of the facility, and many of the comments and hearing requests identify addresses located 
far away from the facility, some 20 miles or more. It will take time for TCEQ to respond to these 
requests, which will further delay issuance of the pennit causing likely irreparable harm to Texas 
Star unless it can operate its facility. 

It has been sonte time since our meeting with you, and this has been in part due to my efforts to 
reach you and various other members of the TCEQ staff to discuss approaches to getting Texas 
Star back into operation, as I'd hoped to discuss the proposed language prior to submitting this 
request_ Part of the delay was also due to my personal travel plans. As discussed in the meeting, 
the proposed penalty will create a financial hardship for Texas Star and information supporting 
this claim was submitted to TCEQ shortly after our meeting. 

Please contact me by email or phone (512-413-0813) if yon have questions or otherwise wish to 
discuss this request. On behalf of Texas Star, I ucge TCEQ to incorporate the above revisions to 
the proposed Agreed Order and to allow Texas Star to continue operation so that it can save the 
compaoy aod the jobs of its employees. 

Sincerely, 

ft:U 
cc: Mr. Eyad Albelbaisi_ Owner, Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC 

Ms. Amy Settemeyer, Deputy Director, Office of Compliance and Enforcement, TCEQ 
Ms. CaseyKumath, Staff Attorney, Litigation Division, TCEQ 
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ATTACHMENT 16 

WATER QUALITY ENFORCMENT ACTION - PROPOSED AGREED ORDER 

Jon Niermann, Chalnmm 

Emily Llmllcy, Commissioner 

Bobby Janecka, Commissioner 
Erin E Chancellor, Executive Director 

TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENvlRONMENTAL QUALITY 
Protecling 1£!Xus by Reducing und Prevenling l'oHulion 

January 27, 2023 

Mr. Terry Daniel, Manager 
Pro-Crete Ready Mix, LLC 
4500 Great Trinity Forest Way 
Dallas, Texas 7521H 

Re: Proposed Agreed Order 
Pro-Crete Ready Mix, LLC; RN102390051 
Cancelled TPDES Permit No. TXGI 12472 
Docket No. 2021-1518-WQ-E; Enforcement Case No. 61597 
FOR SE1TLEMENT PURPOSES ONLY 

Dear Mr. Daniel: 

The Executive Director of the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
("Commission" or ''TCEQ") is pursuing an enforcement action against Pro-Crete Ready 
Mix, LLC for violations of the Texas Water Code and Commission Rules. These 
violations were discovered during a record review conducted on September 7, 2021, 
and documented in a letter dated November 5, 2021, from the TCEQDivision Support 
and Monitoring Section. 

Please find enclosed a proposed agreed order which we have prepared in an attempt to 
expedite this enforcement action. The order assesses an administrative penalty of 
$11,250. We are proposing a one-time offer to defer $2,250 of the administrative 
penalty if you satisfactorily comply with all the ordering provisions within the time 
frames Jisted. Therefore, the administrative penalty to be paid is $9,000. The order 
also identifies the violations that we arc addressing and identifies specific technical 
requirements necessary to resolve them. 

If you have any questions regarding this matter, we are available to discuss them in a 
conference in Austin or over the telephone. If we reach agreement in a timely manner, 
the TCEQ will then proceed with the remaining procedural steps to settle this matter. 
These steps include publishing notice of the proposed order In the Texas Register and 
scheduling the matter for approval by the Commission. We believe that handling this 
matter expeditiously could save Pro-Crete Ready Mix, LLC and the TCEQ a significant 
amount of time, as well as the expense associated with litigation. 

P.O. Box 13087 • Austin, Te.xas 78711-3087 • 512-239-1000 • tccg.tcxas.gov 
Uow is our cuslomc-r scrvkc-? lcc-q.lc-xas.gov/cuslomc-rsurvc-y 

pr!nl«l onrocy<!od p;tpo< 
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Mr. Terry Daniel 
Page 2 
January 2 7, 2023 

Enclosed for your convenience is a return envelope. If you agree with the order as 
proposed, please sign and return the original order and the penalty payment (check 
payable to "TCEQ" and referencing Pro-Crete Ready Mix, LLC, Docket No. 2021-1518-
WQ-E) to: 

Financial Administration Division, Revenue Operations Section 
Attention: Cashier's Office, MC 214 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
P .0. Box I 3088 
Austin, Texas 78711-3088 

Should you believe you are unable to pay the proposed administrative penalty, you 
may claim financial inability to pay part or all of the penalty amount. In order to 
qualify for financial inability to pay, the penalty must exceed $3,600 and be greater 
than 1 % of annual gross revenues. If this is the case, please contact us immediately to 
obtain a list of financial disclosure documents that must be submitted within 30 days 
of the receipt of this letter. These documents, once properly completed and 
submitted, will be thoroughly reviewed to determine if we agree with the claim of 
financial inability. Please be aware that if financial inability is proven to the 
satisfaction of staff, discussions pertaining to the penalty amount adjustment will 
focus only on deferral and not on waiver of the penalty amount. 

You may be able to perform or contribute to a Supplemental Environmental Project 
("SEP"), which is a project that benefits the environment, to offset a portion of your 
penalty. If you are interested in performing an SEP, you must agree to the penalty 
amount and submit an SEP proposal within 30 days of receipt of this proposed 
order. 

For additional information about the types of SEPs available and eligibility criteria, 
please go to the TCEQs web site link at 
https://www.tceg.texas.gov/compliance/enforcement/sep or contact the 
Enforcement Coordinator listed below. 

Please note that any agreements we reach are subject to final approval in accordance 
with 30 TEx. ADMIN. CODE§ 70.IO(a). 

If we cannot reach a settlement of this enforcement action or you do not wish to 
participate in this expedited process, we will proceed with enforcement under the 
Commission's Enforcement Rules, 30 TEx. ADMIN. CODE ch. 70. Specifically, if the 
signed order and penalty are not mailed and postmarked within 60 days from the 
date of this letter, your case will be forwarded to the Litigation Division and this 
settlement offer, including the penalty deferral, will no longer be available. The 
enforcement process described in :JO TEX. ADMIN. Com ch. 70 requires the staff to 
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Mr. Terry Daniel 
Page 3 
January 27, 2023 

prepare and issue an Executive Director's Preliminary Report and Petition to the 
Commission. If you would like to obtain a copy of 30 TEX. ADMIN. Com ch. 70, or any 
other TCEQ rules, the rules themselves and the agency brochure entitled Obtaining 
TCEQRules (Gl-032) are located on our agency website at http://www.tceq.texas.gov 
for your reference. If you would like a hard copy of this brochure mailed to you, you 
may call and request one from the Central Office Publications Ordering Team at (512) 
239-0028. 

For any questions or comments about this matter or to arrange a meeting, please 
contact Ms. Ellen Ojeda of my staff at (512) 239-2581 or ellen.ojeda@tceq.texas.gov. 

Sincerely, 

Kristy Deaver, Manager 
Enforcement Division 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 

KD/eo 

Enclosures: Proposed Agreed Order, Return Envelope, Penalty Calculation Worksheet, 
Site Compliance History 
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Mr. Terry Daniel 
Page 4 
January 27, 2023 

bee: Manager, Water Section, Dallas/Fort Worth Regional Office 
Ms. Ellen Ojeda, Coordinator, Enforcement Division, MC 219 
Central Records, MC 213, Building E, I st Floor 
WQ..TXG112472_CP_20230125_Proposed Agreed Order 
Enforcement Division Electronic Reader File 

app-,15 DAO Cover Letter/7-2-2020 
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TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

IN THE MATIER OF AN 
ENFORCEMENT ACTION 
CONCERNING 
PRO-CRETE READY MIX, U.C 
RNI02390051 

§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 

BEFORE THE 

TEXAS COMMISSION ON 

ENVIRONMENTAi QUALITY 

AGREED ORDER 
DOCKET NO. 2021-1518-WQ·E 

I. JURISDICTION AND STIPULATIONS 

On __________ , the Texas Commission on Environmenta] Quality ("the 
Commission" or "TCEQ') considered this agreement of the parties, resolving an enforcement 
action regarding Pro-Crete Ready Mix, LLC (the "Respondent") under the authority of TEX. WATER 
CODE chs. 7 and 26. The Executive Director of the TCEQ, through the Enforcement Division, and 
the Respondent together stipulate that: 

I. The Respondent owned and operated a concrete batch plant located at 4500 Great 
Trinity Forest Way in Dallas, Dallas County, Texas (the "Plant"). The Plant is near or 
adjacent to water in the state as defined in TEX. WATER Com; § 26.001(5). 

2. The Executive Director and the Respondent agree that the TCEQ has jurisdiction to enter 
this Order pursuant to TEX. WATER CODE§§ 7.002, 7.051, and 7.073, and that the 
Respondent is subject to TCEQ's jurisdiction. The TCEQ has jurisdiction in this mutter 
pursuant to TEX. WATER CODE§ 5.013 because it alleges violations of TEX. WATER CODE ch. 
26 and the rules of the TCEQ. 

3. The occurrence of any violation is in dispute and the entry of this Order shall not 
constitute an admission by the Respondent of any Violation alleged in Section II 
("Allegations"), nor ot· any statute or rule. 

4. An administrative penalty in the amount of $11,250 is assessed by the Commission in 
settlement of the violations alleged in Section II ("Allegations"). The Respondent paid 
$9,000 of the penalty and $2,250 is deferred contingent upon the Respondent's timely 
and satisfactory compliance with all the terms of this Order. The deferred amount shall 
be waived only upon full compliance with all the terms and conditions contained in this 
Order. If the Respondent fails to timely and satisfactorily comply with any of the terms 
or requirements contained in this Order, the F.xecutive Director may demand payment of 
all or part of the deferred penalty amount. 

5. The Executive Director and the Respondent agree on a settlement of the matters alleged 
in this enforcement action, subject to final approval in accordance with 30 TEX. ADMIN. 
CODE§ 70.1 O(a). Any notice and procedures, which might otherwise be authorized or 
required in this action, are waived in the interest of a more timely resolution of the 
matter. 
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Pro-Crete Ready Mix, LLC 
DOCKET NO. 2021-1518-WQ-E 
Page 2 

6. The Executive Director may, without further notice or hearing, refer this matter to the 
Office of the Attorney General of the State of Texas ("OAG") for further enforcement 
proceedings if the Executive Director determines that the Respondent has not complied 
with one or more of the terms or conditions in this Order. 

7. This Order represents the complete and fully-integrated agreement of the parties. The 
provisions of this Order are deemed severab1e and, if a court of competent jurisdiction 
or other appropriate authority deems any provision of this Order unenforceable, the 
remaining provisions shall be valid and enforceable. 

8. This Order shall terminate five years from its effective date or upon compliance with all 
the terms and conditions set forth in this Order, whichever is later. 

Il. ALLEGATIONS 

During a record review conducted for the Plant on September 7, 2021, an investigator 
documented that the Respondent failed to submit monitoring results at the intervals specified 
in the permit, in violation of 30 TFx. ADMIN. CODE§§ 305.125(1) and (17) and 319.7(d) and Texas 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System ("TPDES"') General Permit No. TXG112472, Part Ill, 
Section A, Permit Requirements Nos. I, 2, and 5; and Part IV, Standard Perm.it Conditions No. 
7.f. Specifically, the monthly conventional polJutants discharge monitoring reports ("DMRs") 
were not submitted, for the monthly monitoring periods of April 2019, December 2020, and 
January 2021 by the 20th day of the following month. Additionally, the annual hazardous 
metals DMRs and whole effluent toxicity ("WET") testing for water flea and fathead minnow 
DMRs were not submitted for the annual monitoring period of 2020 by March 31st of the 
following year. 

ill.DENIALS 

The Respondent generally denies each allegation in Section II ("Allegations"). 

IV. ORDERING PROVISIONS 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUAllTY ORDERS that: 

1. The Respondent is assessed a penalty as set forth in Section I, Paragraph No. 4. The 
payment of this penalty and the Respondent's compliance with all of the requirements 
set forth in this Order resolve only the allegations in Section IT. The Commission shall 
not be constrained in any manner from requiring corrective action or penalties for 
violations which are not raised here. Penalty payments shall be made payable to "TCEQ" 
and shall be sent with the notation ''Re: Pro-Crete Ready Mix, LLC, Docket No. 2021-
1 5 I 8-WQ-E" to: 

Financial Administration Division, Revenue Operations Section 
Attention: Cashier's Office, MC 214 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
P.O. Box 13088 
Austin, Texas 78711-3088 
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Pro-Crete Ready Mix, LLC 
DOCKET NO. 2021-1518-WQ-E 
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2. The Respondent shall undertake the folloWing technical requ.Jrements: 

a. Within 30 days after the effective date of this Order, update the Plant's 
operational guidance and conduct employee training to ensure that self­
reporting requirements are properly accomplished, including the timely 
submittal of signed and certified monthly and annual DMRs, in accordance with 
TPDES Permit No. TXGl 12472, Part III, Section A, Permit Requirements Nos. l, 2, 
and 5; and Part IV, Standard Permit Conditions No. 7.f. 

b. Within 30 days at'ter the effective date of this Order, submit the required 
monthly conventional pollutants, annual hazardous metals testing, and WET 
testing DMRs for all monitoring periods from April 20"! 9 and December 2020 
through June 2021 to: 

Enforcement Division, MC 'I 49A 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
P.O. Box 13087 
Austin, Texas 78711-3087 

With a copy to: 

Water Section Manager 
Dallas/Fort Worth Regional Office 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
2309 Gravel Drive 
Fort Worth, Texas 76118-6951 

c. Within 45 days after the effective date of this Order, submit written certification, 
and include detaHed supporting documentation including photographs, receipts, 
and/or other records to demonstrate compliance with Ordering ProVision 
Nos. 2.a. and 2.b. The certification shall be signed by the Respondent and shall 
include the following certification language: 

"I certify under pcnulty of Jaw that I have personally examined 
and am familiar with the information submitted and all attached 
documents, and that based on my inquiry of those individuals 
lmmed.iatcly responsible for obtaining the information, I believe 
that the submitted information is true, accurate and complete. I 
am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false 
jnformation, including the possjbility of fines and imprisonment 
for .knowing violations." 

The certification shall be submitted to: 

Enforcement Division, MC :I 49A 
Texas Commission on Environmcntul Quality 
P.O. Box 13087 
Austin, Texas 78711-3087 

89 



Pro-Crete Ready Mix, LLC 
DOCKET NO. 2021-1518-WQ-E 
Page 4 

with a copy to: 

Water Section Manager 
Dallas/Fort Worth Regional Office 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
2309 Gravel Drive 
Fort Worth, Texas 76118-6951 

3. All relief not expressly granted in this Order is denied. 

4. The duties and provisions imposed by this Order shall apply to cU1d be binding upon the 
Respondent. The Respondent is ordered to give notice of this Order to personnel who 
maintain day-to-day control over the Plant operations referenced in this Order. 

5. If the Respondent fails to comply with any of the Ordering Provisions in this Order 
within the prescribed schedules, and that failure is caused solely by an act of God, war, 
strike, riot, or other catastrophe, the Respondent's failure to comply is not a violation of 
this Order. The Respondent shall have the burden of establishing to the Executive 
Director's satisfaction that such an event has occurred. The Respondent shall notify the 
Executive Director within seven days after the Respondent becomes aware of a delaying 
event and shall take an reasonable measures to mitigate and minimize any delay. 

6. The Executive Director may grant an extension of any deadline in this Order or in any 
plan, report, or other document submitted pursuant to this Order, upon a written and 
substantiated showing ot· good cause. All requests for extensions by the Respondent 
shall be made in writing to the Executive Director. Extensions arc not effective until the 
Respondent receives written approval from the Executive Director. The determination 
of what constitutes good cause rests solely with the Executive Director. Extension 
requests shall be sent to the Order Compliance Team at the address listed above. 

7. This Order, issued by the Commission. shall not be admissible against the Respondent 
in a civil proceeding, unless the proceeding is brought by the OAG to: (1) enforce the 
terms of this Order; or (2) pursue violations of a statute lvith1n the Commission's 
jurisdiction, or of a rule adopted or an order or permit issued by the Commission under 
such a statute. 

8. This Order may be executed in separate and multiple counterparts, which together shall 
constitute a single instrument. Any page of this Order may be copied, scanned, 
digitized, converted to electronic portable document format ("pdf'), or otherwise 
reproduced and may be transmitted by digital or electronic transmission, including but 
not limited to facsimile transmission and electronic mail. Any signature affixed to this 
Order shall constitute an original signature for all purposes and may be used, filed, 
substituted, or issued for any purpose for which an origimtl signature could be used. 
The term "signature" shall include manual signatures and true and accurate 
reproductions of manual signatures created, executed, endorsed, adopted, or authorized 
by the person or persons to whom the signatures are at:t:nbutable. Signatures may be 
copied or reproduced digitally, electronically, by photocopying, engraving, imprinting, 
lithographing, electronic mail, facsimile transmission, stamping, or any other means or 
process which the Executive Director deems acceptable. In this paragraph exclusively, 
the terms: electronic transmission, owner; person, writing, and Written, shall have the 
meanings assigned to them under TEx. Bus. ORG. CODE§ 1.002. 
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9. The effective date of this Order is the date it is signed by the Commission. A copy of 
this fully executed Order shall be proVided to each of the parties. 
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SJGNATIIRE PAGE 

TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALlTY 

For the Commission Date 

For the Executive Director Date 

I, the undersigned, have read and understand the attached Order. I am authorized to agree to 
the attached Order, und I do agree to the terms und conditions specified therein. I further 
acknowledge that the TCEQ, in accepting payment for the penalty amount, is materially relying 
on such representation. 

I also understand that failure to comply with the Ordering Provisions, if any, in this Order 
and/or failure to timely pay the penalty amount, may result in: 

A negative impact on compliance history; 
Greater scrutiny of any permit applications submitted; , 
Referral of this case to the Attorney General's Office for contempt, injunctive relief, 
additional penalties, and/or attorney fees, or to a collection agency; 
Increased penalties 1n any future enforcement actions; 
Automatic referral to the Attorney General's Office of any future enforcement actions; and 
TCEQ seeking other relief as authorized by law. 

In addition, any falsification of any compliance documents may result in criminal prosecution. 

Signature 

Name (Printed or typed) 
Authorized Representative of 
Pro-Crete Ready Mix, LlC 

Date 

Title 

□ If mailing address has changed, please check this box and provide the new address below: 

Instructions: Send the originaJ, signed Order with penalty payment to the Financial Administration 
Division, Revenue Operations Section at the address in Ordering Provision l of this Order. 
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Penalty Calculation Worksheet (PCW) 
Policy Revision 5 (January 28, 2021) PCW Revision February 11, 2021 

Assigned 23-Nov-2021 
PCW 24-Nov-2021 . ~~~~_nl!'.lgl 23-Nov-2021 I . __ EPA Due~----

RESPONDENT/FACIUr-TY..;....;;;J.;,,cN.;;..FO.;;..;.;;;RM;;..;;;;..;A;.;.T.;;;..JO;;;..;N;.;.__ ________________________ __, 
Respondent Pro-Crete Read Mix LLC 

Reg. Ent. Ref. No. t-RN,....,,..1_,0.,...23_9..,.,,0,...0...,5...,1...,......,..,.... _______ __, ____ ..,..........,,_...,....-=---.---------
Fa_cili~ /Sit~ Regi_~n ._4_-_D_a_lla_s.,__F_o_rt_W_o_rt_h ________ _, Major/ Minor S~rc_e--LM_1_·n_or ______ __. 

CASE INFORMATION ....,_.-----------~ 
Enf./Case ID No. 61597 

Docket No. 1-:2:-::oc::2-:-1-,-1:-::s,..,.1=s--=-w.,.,,~Q-E=-----------1 

Media Program(s) Water Quality 
Multi-Mediat-----'~--'------------1 

No. of Violations 3 
OrderTypet-1~6=6=0--------1 

Government/ Non-Profit 1-N..,.,o_-=-----,-------1 
Enf. Coordinator '"'E-'11..;.e..;.n_O.._>ie.;..d;_a ____ _ 

EC's Team Enforcement Team 1 
~-$_2s~1_00_0_~ -- -···-----------·-- ____ _ 

Penalty Calculation Section 
TOTAL BASE PENALTY (Sum of violation base penalties) Subtotal 1 ... I ___ $.;_1_2_,_,s_o_o_,I 

ADJUSTMENTS(+/-) TO SUBTOTAL 1 
Subtotals 2-7 are obtained by muttlplylng the Total Base Penalty (Subtotal 1) by the Indicated percentage. 
Compliance Histo -10.0% Ad ustment Subtotals 2, 3, & 7 ... I ____ -_.$_1.._,2_5_o~j 

Notes No adjustment for Compliance History. 

No 0.0% Enhancement Subtot:.al 4i - _____ $_0~1 Culpability 

Notes The Respondent does not meet the culpabil ity criteria. 

Good Faith Effort to Comply Total Adjustments 

Economic Benefit 
Total EB Amounts! i396 

Estimated Cost of Compllance'.::==s~2:□100~=~ 

SUM OF SUBTOTALS 1-7 

OTHER FACTORS AS JUSTICE MAY REQUIRE 
"''"'~ oc .ah•::::• ""'j '""'~' e,, <ho 1,ao~,_, ""™~9•· 

STATUTORY LIMIT ADJUSTMENT 

DEFERRAL 
Reduces the Flnal Assessed Penalt b the Indicated ercenta e. 

Subtot:.al 5 ~I ----~$0~1 

0,00/o Enhancement• Subtotal 61~----~$0~1 
" Capped at the Total EB $ Amount 

Final Subtotal 1~ ___ $_11_,_2_5__,0 l 
0.00/ol Adjustment j.__ _____ $~0-i! 

I 
Final Penalty Amount 1.__ ___ _,_$...;;;1...;;;1,._,2_5_0__.I 

Final Assessed Penalty ~I ___ $_1_1_,_2s_o-j 
I 

20.00/o l Reduction Adjustment ._I ____ -...:$_2.:..,2_5_0-1l 
I 
I 
I 

Notes Deferral offered for expedited settlement. 

PAY~BLE ~ENALTY._ $9,oool 
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Screening Date 23-Nov-2021 Docket No. 2021-1s1s-wQ-E 
Respondent Pro-Crete Ready Mix, LLC 
Case ID No. 61597 

Reg. Ent. Reference No. RN10239oos1 
Media Water Quality 

Enf. Coordinator Ellen Ojeda 

Compliance History Worksheet 
>> Compliance History Site Enhancement (Subtotal 2) 

Component Number of ... 

Written notices of violation ("NOVs") with same or similar violations as those in 
NOVs the current enforcement action (number of NOVs meeting criteria) 

Other written NOVs 
Any agreed final enforcement orders containing a denial of liability (number of 
orders meeting criteria ) 

Orders Any adjudicated final enforcement orders, agreed final enforcement orders 
without a denial of liability, or default orders of this state or the federal 
government, or any final prohibitory emergency orders issued by the commission 

Any non-adjudicated final court judgments or consent decrees containing a denial 
of llablllty of this state or the federal government (number of Judgments or 

Judgments consent decrees meeting criteria ) 
and Consent 

Any adjudicated final court judgments and default judgments, or non-adjudicated Decrees 
final court judgments or consent decrees without a denial of liability, of this state 
or the federal government 

Convictions 
Any criminal convictions of this state or the federal government (number of 
counts) 

Emissions Chronic excessive emissions events (number of events) 

Letters notifying the executive director of an intended audit conducted under the 
Texas Environmental, Health, and Safety Audit Privilege Act, 74th Legislature, 

Audits 
1995 (number of audits for which notices were submitted) 

Disclosures of violations under the Texas Environmental, Health, and Safety Audit 
Privilege Act, 74th Legislature, 1995 (number of audits for which violations were 
disclosed) 

Environmental management systems in place for one year or more 

Voluntary on-site compliance assessments conducted by the executive director 

Other under a special assistance program 

Participation In a voluntary pollution reduction program 
Early compliance with, or offer of a product that meets future state or federal 
government environmental requirements 

PCW 
Polley Revision 5 (January 28, 2021) 

PCW Revis/on February 11, 2021 

Number Adiust. 

0 0% 

0 0% 

0 0% 

0 0% 

0 0% 

0 0% 

0 0% 

0 0% 

0 0% 

0 0% 

No 0% 

No 0% 

No 0% 

No 0% 

Adjustment Percentage (Subtotal 2) I 0% 

, >> Repeat Violator {Subtotal 3} 

No 

>> Compliance History Person Classification (Subtotal 7) 

High Performer 

: >> Compliance History Summary 

Adjustment Percentage (Subtotal 3) I 0% 

Adjustment Percentage (Subtotal 7) I -10% 

No adjustment for Compliance History. 
Compliance I 

History 

Notes ~-----------------------------------~ 

Total Compliance History Adjustment Percentage (Subtotals 2, 3, & 7) I -10% 
>> Final Compliance History Adjustment 
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Docket No. 2021-1518-WQ-E PCW Screening Date 23-Nov-2021 
Respondent Pro-Crete Ready Mix, LLC 
case ID No. 61597 

Polley Revision 5 (January 28, 2021) 

PCW Revision February 11, 2021 

Reg. Ent. Reference No. RN10239oos1 
Media Water Quality 

Enf. Coordinator Ellen Oieda 
Violation Numberll-_...,;1 ____ 11.,11 _______________________ "'11 

Rule Cite(s) 30 Tex. Admin. Code§§ 305 .125(1) and (17) and 319 .7(d) and Texas Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination System ("TPDES") General Permit No . TXG112472, Part III, 
Section A, Permit Requirements No. 1; and Part IV, Standard Permit Conditions 

No. 7.f 

Violation Description 

Failed to submit monitoring results at the intervals specified in the permit. 
Specifically, the monthly conventional pollutants discharge monitoring reports 

("DMRs") were not submitted for the monthly monitoring periods of April 2019, 
December 2020, and January 2021 by the 20th day of the following month. 

Base Penalty 1..I _ ___ _,..;$:t.;2=-:5:..L,.;;..oo=-=o:;.J! 

>> Environmental, Property and Human Health Matrix 
• Harm 

Release Major Moderate Minor 
OR Actual~---==~l===---......j:1-, .............. ..a 

Potentlala:=====================~=====:::!I 

>>Programmatic Matrix 
Falsification 

Percent ~ 

Percent ! 10.0% 1 

Matrix 
Notes 

100% of the rule requirements were not met. 

Adjuatment~11 ___ ___:$i;.:2:.=21.::,s;.;;o.:;.io I 

Violation Events 

Number of Violation Eventsll!::I ===3=====:!I 92 !!Number of violation days 

$2,SOO i 

daily 
weekly 

monthly 
quarter1y Violation Base Penalty '-I ______ $:....7_,_,s_o_o...,I 

semiannual 
annual 

single event X 

Three single events are recommended, one for each missed report. 

Good Faith Efforts to Comply I 0.0% I Reduction .... I ________ $D_.i 
Before NOE/NOV NOE/NOV to EDPRP/Settlement orrer 

Extraordinary II U 

Ordinary I 11 II 
N/A . x !I 

The Respondent does not meet the good faith criteria 11 
Notes for this violation . II 

Economic Benefit (EB) for this violation Statutory Limit Test 

Estimated EB Amount ._l ___ ____ $..;;.3.;;..96.;...ii 
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Economic Benefit Worksheet 
Respondent Pro-Crete Ready Mix, LLC 
Case ID No. 61597 

Reg. Ent. Reference No. RN10239oos1 
Media Water Quality 

Vlolatlon No. 1 

Item Cost Date Required Final Date 
Jtem Description 

Yrs Interest Saved Costs Saved EB Amount 

Delayed Costs==========---'""""=-__,...,~-------....,..,,---....... ---,.------. 
Equipment 

Buildings 
Other (as needed) 

Engineering/Construction 
Land 

Record Keeping System 
Training/Sampling 

Remedlatlon/Olsposal 
Permit Costs 

Other (as needed) 

Notes for DELA YEO colta 

Estimated cost to submit the DMRs for the missed monitoring periods, update the Plant's operational 
guidance, and conduct employee training to ensure that self-reporting requirements are properly 

accomplished, including the timely submittal of signed and certified monthly and annual DMRs. The Date 
Required is the earliest DMR due date, and the Final Date is the estimated date of compliance . 

Avoided CostsP====;;.;;;=-p;;;;;;;...,;.,.;;;;;;;;;;;=iji;;,;.;;;;;.,;;;,.;e,;,;o.,;r,;;e,.;e.,.n•ten~~ng~it:..:e;.;;m;;..!.(e;;:;x;;cc=e:.!:p:..:t..:.fo::.r::.,::.on::.:.e::.-..:t.:.::•m;.:,e;:;,..::a:..:v.::.0:..:1 :.::.,;;...::.;;=~---, 
DlspoAI 0.00 0 0 

Personnel 0.00 0 0 
Inspection/Reporting/Sampling 0.00 0 0 

Supplies/Equipment 0.00 0 0 
Financial Auurance 0.00 0 0 

ONE-TIME avoided ClOSts 0.00 0 0 
Other (as needed) 

Notes for AVOIDED colta 

Approx. Cost of Compllanoe $2,000! TOTAL~I _________ $~3_9~61 
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Screening Date 23-Nov-2021 Docket No. 2021-1518-WQ-E PCW 
Respondent Pro-Crete Ready Mix, LLC Policy Revision 5 (January 28, 2021 ) 
Case ID No. 61597 PCW Revision February 11, 2021 

Reg. Ent. Reference No. RN102390051 
Media Water Quality 

Enf. Coordinator Ellen Oieda 
Violation Numberll-_ __ 2 _ _ ,.1 _______________________ "11 

Rule Cite(s) 30 Tex. Admin. Code§§ 305 .125(1) and (17) and 319 .7(d) and TPDES General 
Permit No. TXG112472, Part III, Section A, Permit Requirements No. 2; and Part IV, 

Standard Permit Conditions No. 7.f 

Failed to submit monitoring resu lts at the Intervals specified In the permit . 
Violation Description Specifically, the annual hazardous metals DMRs were not submitted for the annual 

monitoring period of 2020 by March 31st of the fol lowing year. 

Base Penalty ._! ___ _ __..$_2_,51~0_00_,! 

OR 

>>Programmatic Matrix 
Falsification 

Violation Events 

Percent ~ 

Ma jor Moderate Minor 
Percent ! 10.0% ! 

100% of the rule requirements were not met. 

dally ~ weekly 
monthly 
quarterly 

semiannual 
annual 

single event x 

One single event Is recommended . 

$22,500 ! 

$2,500 ! 

Violation Base Penalty ._! _____ ..:..$2--',_s_oo_,j 

Good Faith Efforts to Comply I 0.0% I Reduction !,__ _____ ...;.$ __,O ! 
Before NOE/NOV NOE/NOV to EDPRP/Settlement Offer 

Extraord inary I ff 

Ordinary I U 
N/A x I 

The Respondent does not meet the good faith cri teria for II 
Notes th is violation. II 

Statutory Limit Test 
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Economic Benefit Worksheet 
Respondent Pro-Crete Ready Mix, LLC 
Case ID No. 61597 

Reg. Ent. Reference No. RN10239oos1 
Media Water Quality 

Vlolatlon No. 2 I Years of 
Percent Interest Depreciation 

5,0 15 
Item Cost Date Required Final Date Yrs Interest Saved Costs Saved EB Amount 

Jtem Description 

Delayed Costs 
Equipment 

Buildings 
Other (as needed) 

Engineering/Construction 
Land 

Record Keeping System 
Training/Sampling 

Remediation/Disposal 
Permit Costs 

Other (as needed) 

Notes for DELAYED costs 

0.00 0 
0.00 0 
0.00 0 
0.00 0 
0.00 0 
0.00 0 
0.00 0 
0.00 0 
0.00 0 

0 

See Economic Benefit Worksheet for Violation No. 1. 

Avoided Costs _ _ ______ .;.,;iiiiiii...,;;_,;_,;....,;_,;;;;.;;;,;;e..,fo_r_e_•.,n•t=en;..:..;,:n~g.;.•t:::•:.::m:..:....!.e=x:::c;::•:.i:P:.:t...:..::.or=-..=.on:.:.•::.•..:ti:.:.m::,e==-=a:.:.v.::::o:.:• :.=;::..:costs==!)~--, 
Disposal 0.00 0 0 0 

Personnel 0.00 0 0 0 
Inspection/Reporting/Sampling 0.00 0 0 0 

Supplies/Equipment 0.00 0 0 0 
Financial Assurance 0.00 0 0 0 

ONE· TIME avoided ClOSts 0. 00 0 0 0 
Other (as needed) 

Notes for AVOIDED ClOstS 

Approx. Cost of Compliance TOTAL!.._ _________ $~0~! 
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Screening Date 23-Nov-2021 Docket No. 2021-1518-WQ-E PCW 
Respondent Pro-Crete Ready Mix, LLC Polley Revision 5 (January 28, 2021) 

Case ID No. 61597 PCW Revision February 11, 2021 

Reg. Ent. Reference No. RN102390051 
Media Water Quality 

Enf, Coordinator Ellen Oieda 

Violation Number.,.._..,.3 __ ,.•-----------------------"!I 
Rule Cite(s) 30 Tex. Admin. Code§§ 305.125(1) and (17) and 319.7(d) and TPDES General 

Permit No. TXG112472, Part III, Section A, Permit Requirements No. 5; and Part IV, 
Standard Permit Conditions No. 7.f 

Failed to submit monitoring results at the intervals specified In the permit. 
Violation Description Specifically, the annual whole effluent toxicity DMRs for the water flea and fathead 

minnow were not submitted for the annual monitoring period of 2020 by March 31st 
of the following year. 

Base Penalty ._j ___ _ __..$_2~5,~o_oo~I 

>> Environmental, Property and Human Health Matrix 
Harm 

Release_ .... M_a. j..,or,.._"""II_M,_o..,d..,era ...... te_,._..,M..,in .. o .. r_, 

Actual lt-...., ............... -o,,, .... - ..... """11""""''""""'"""'mmiff Potential ______________ _ 
OR 

Minor 

Percent ~ 

Percent ! 10.0% ! 

Matrix 
Notes 

100% of the rule requirements were not met. 

Adjustment l...._ ___ .... $_22_.,_so_o_,j 

Violation Events 

Number of Violation Events,..I =====- 237 HNumber of vio lation days 

weekly 

$2,500 ! 

monthly 
quarterly 

daily ~ 

Violation Base Penalty ,_j _____ ...;..$-'2,'-S_OO_,I 
semiannual 

annual 
single event x 

One single event is recommended. 

Good Faith Efforts to ComP.lr l 0.00/o I Raductlon_L! ______ -'-$~0 j 
Before NOE/NOV NOE/NOV to EDPRP/Settlement Offer 

Extraordinary I U 
Ordinary I II 

N/A x I 

Notes The Respondent does not meet the g~d faith criteria for II 
this violation. II 

Economic Benefit (EB) for this violation 

Estimated EB Amount ._j ________ $'-'O~j 

This violation Final Assessed Penalty (adjusted for limits) ._I _____ .... $2""'.;;;;2~50'-'j 
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Economic Benefit Worksheet 
Respondent Pro-Crete Ready Mix, LLC 
Case ID No. 61597 

Reg. Ent. Reference No. RN10239oos1 
Media Water Quality 

Vlolatlon No. 3 

Item Description 

Delayed Costs 
Equipment 

Buildings 
Other (as needed) 

Engineering/Construction 
Land 

Record Keeping System 
Training/Sampling 

Remediation/ Disposal 
Permit Costs 

Other <• needed) 

Item Cost Date Required Final Date 

~ 

I Years of ' 
Percent Interest Depreciation 

.__ ____ --'s~•c...,o 1s 
Yrs Interest Saved Costs Saved EB Amount 

0.00 0 so 0 
0.00 0 rn 0 
0.00 0 ~o 0 
0.00 0 so 0 
0.00 0 n, I 0 
0.00 0 na 0 
0.00 0 n,a 0 
0.00 0 na 0 
0.00 0 na 0 
n.nn :n n/a n 

Notes for DELAYED costs See Economic Benefit Worksheet for Violation No. 1. 

Avoided Costs 
DlspOAI 

Personnel 
Inspection/Reporting/Sampling 
• • - SUpplies/Equlpment 

Financial Assurance 
ONE-TIME avoided ClOSts 

Other (as needed) 

Notes for AVOIDED oosts 

Approx, Cost of Compliance 

~ avoided costs before entering Item ( except for one-time avo1oa I costs 
0.00 0 0 0 
0.00 0 0 0 
0.00 0 0 0 
0.00 0 0 0 
0.00 0 0 0 
0.00 0 0 0 
n nn 0 0 :n 

$0! TOTAL~I ---------~$~01 
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The TCEQ IS committed to accesslblllty' 
To request a more accesslble version of this report, please contact the TCEQ Help Desk at (512) 239-4357. 

Compliance History Report 
ComplJance History Report for CN605640B61, RN102390051, Rating Year 2022 which Includes compUance History (CH) 
components from September 1, 2017, through August 31, 2022. 

Customer, Respondent, CN605640861, Pro-Crete Ready Mix, LLC Classification: HIGH 
or Owner/Operator: 

Regulated Entity: RN102390051, TEXAS STAR READY MIX Classification: HIGH 

Complexlty Points: 
CH Group: 

Location: 

TCEQ Region: 

ID Number(s): 

8 Repeat Violator: NO 

10 - Cement and Concrete Product Manufacturing 

4500 Great Trinity Forest Way, in Dallas, Dallas County, Texas 

REGION 04 • DFW METROPLEX 

Rating: o.oo 

Rating: o.oo 

AIR NEW SOURCE PERMITS REGISTRATION 39039 
AIR NEW SOURCE PERMITS AFS NUM 4811300957 

AIR NEW SOURCE PERMITS ACCOUNT NUMBER D604150 
PETROLEUM STORAGE TANK REGISTRATION 
REGISTRATION 1239 

STORMWATER PERMIT TXR1549KU 
AIR EMISSIONS INVENTORY ACCOUNT NUMBER 
0804150 

WASTEWATER PERMITTXG113001 

Compliance History Period: September 01, 2017 to August 31, 2022 Rating Year: 2022 

Date Compliance History Report Prepared: November 18, 2022 

Agency Decision Requiring Compliance History: Enforcement 

Component Period Selected: November 18, 2017 to November 18, 2022 

Rating Date: 09/01/2022 

TCEQ Staff Member to Contact for Addltlonal Information Regarding This Compliance History. 

Name: Ellen OjedaPhone: (512) 239-2581 

Site and 0wner/0oerator History; 
1) Has the site been in existence and/or operation for the full five year compliance period? YES 
2) Has there been a (known) change in ownership/operator of the site during the compliance period? NO 

comaoneots (Multimedia> for the Site Are Li@ed in Sections A - J 

A. Final Orders, court judgments, and consent decrees: 
N/A 

B. Criminal convictions: 
N/A 

C. Chronic excessive emissions events: 
N/A 

D. The approval dates of investigations (CCEDS Inv. Track. No.): 
Item l August 26, 2019 (1596307) 
Item 2 September 03, 2019 (1609467) 
Item 3 October 14, 2019 (1616318) 
Item 4 November 07, 2019 (1622098) 
Item 5 December 17, 2019 (1629434) 
Item 6 January 16, 2020 (1637086) 
Item 7 February 19, 2020 (1643649) 
Item 8 March 28, 2020 (1650265) 
Item 9 April 18, 2020 (1656617) 

Page 1 
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Item 10 May 15, 2020 (1663095} 
Item 11 June 11, 2020 (1669658) 
Item 12 July 09, 2020 (1676649) 
Item 13 August 17, 2020 (1683406) 
Item 14 September 02, 2020 (1689982) 
Item 15 October 05, 2020 (1696290) 
Item 16 November 03, 2020 (1721533) 
Item 17 December 01, 2020 (1721534) 

E. Written notices of violations (NOV) (CCEDS Inv. Track. No,): 
A notice of vlolatlon represents a written allegation of a violation or a specific regulatory requirement from the commission to a 
regulated entity, A notice of vlolat!on Is not a flnal enforcement action, nor proof that a violation has actually occurred. 

N/A 

F. Environmental audits: 
N/A 

G. Type of environmental management systems (EMSs): 
N/A 

H. Voluntary on-site compliance assessment dates: 
N/A 

I. Participation in a voluntary pollution reduction program: 
N/A 

J. Early compliance: 
NIA 

Sites OutSide" of 'l'exas: 
N/A 

Page 2 
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Jon Niermann, Chairman 

Bobby Janecka, Commissioner 

Catarina R. Gonzales, Commissioner 

Kelly Keel, Executive Director 

TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 
Protecting Texas by Reducing and Preventing Pollution 

P.O. Box 13087   •   Austin, Texas 78711-3087   •   512-239-1000   •   tceq.texas.gov 

How is our customer service? tceq.texas.gov/customersurvey 
printed on recycled paper 

April 22, 2024 

Mr. Michael Bates, Staff Attorney 
Legal Aid of NorthWest Texas 
400 South Zang Boulevard, Suite 1420 
Dallas, Texas 75208 

Re: Comment Received, Proposed Agreed Enforcement Order – Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC 
 RN111648234; Enforcement Case No. 63326; Docket No. 2022-1557-AIR-E 
 
Dear Mr. Bates: 
  
On January 11, 2024, we received your comments on behalf of the Joppa Freedmans 
Town Associated (JFTA) concerning the proposed agreed order for Texas Star Ready Mix, 
LLC.  I have forwarded your comments to our Dallas/Fort Worth Regional Office for 
their information and to our General Counsel's Office so that the Commissioners can 
consider your comments regarding the proposed order. 
 
The proposed agreed order includes two violations documented during on-site 
investigations conducted on September 12, 2022 and August 29, 2023.  For both of 
these violations, the Executive Director alleges that Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC failed to 
obtain authorization prior to constructing or modifying a source of air contaminants. 
The proposed order recognizes that Texas Star Ready Mix LLC temporarily ceased 
operating the concrete batch plant on August 9, 2023 and have not operated the 
concrete batch plant since that date. The technical requirements in the proposed agreed 
order require Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC to cease operating until the proper 
authorization for the concrete batch plant has been obtained. 
 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) staff and Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC 
agreed to the terms of the proposed order on November 13, 2023.  These terms include 
payment of an administrative penalty, the amount for which was calculated consistent 
with the TCEQ’s Penalty Policy.  
 
Some of the comments received from you are not limited to the provisions of the 
proposed order addressing the violations.  Additionally, while 30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE § 
70.10(c) allows for public comment on agreed orders, it does not grant the public 
standing to seek the relief you requested in your comments.  No changes to the 
proposed agreed order were made in response to your comments.  Our responses to 
your comments are provided below:  
 

• Comment – The TCEQ denied JFTA and the public their right to meaningfully 
participate in the enforcement agreement by failing to collect and make Texas 
Star Ready Mix, LLC’s operational logs publicly available and by failing to make 
Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC’s Financial Inability to Pay assessment and related 
documents publicly available for review. 
 

http://www.tceq.state.tx.us/
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Response – During the investigations conducted on September 12, 2022 and on 
August 29, 2023, the investigators did not obtain any operational logs from Texas 
Star Ready Mix, LLC. TCEQ previously provided you with a copy of the September 
12, 2022 investigation report. At this stage of the enforcement process, 
operational records are not necessary. Should this matter go to litigation, TCEQ 
would seek to obtain necessary records through that process. 
 
Regarding your request to make Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC’s Financial Inability to 
Pay documentation publicly available for review; because these documents 
contain Personal Identifiable Information, they are confidential under the Texas 
Public Information Act and not available to the general public. 

 
• Comment – Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC’s will require significant structural and 

mechanical alterations and improvements in order to qualify for the requested 
standard permit including paving entrances to the site, constructing barriers that 
rise above the site’s stockpiles, constructing concrete fences taller than ten feet, 
and other upgrades to batching, mixing, and production equipment. 
 
Response – In the registration application for Standard Permit Registration No. 
171636, Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC demonstrated how they plan to comply with 
the conditions for the Air Quality Standard Permit for Concrete Batch Plants.  
During the review process for Standard Permit Registration No. 171636, TCEQ 
staff will verify that Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC can comply with the terms and 
conditions with the Air Quality Standard Permit for Concrete Batch Plants. 
 

• Comment – The TCEQ failed to correctly assess Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC’s 
penalty by not requiring a fine of $10,000 per day for operating a concrete batch 
plant without an air operating permit and by not considering the hazards 
created for health and safety of the public; the impacts of continuing violations 
on air quality in the region; Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC’s history and extent of 
previous violations, degree of culpability and anticipation of the violation, or 
lack of good faith in rectifying the unauthorized action; Texas Star Ready Mix, 
LLC’s economic benefit gained through its violations; and the penalty’s ability to 
deter future violations.   
 
Response – The penalty assessed in the order was calculated in accordance with 
the Texas Water Code and TCEQ’s Penalty Policy. The TCEQ staff did not assess a 
penalty of $10,000 each day that Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC continued to operate 
the concrete batch plant because during the development of the enforcement case, 
the TCEQ staff determined that Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC held another TCEQ 
permit; therefore, the TCEQ staff assessed a penalty in accordance with TEX. 
WATER CODE § 7.052(b-3) and in accordance with the TCEQ’s Penalty Policy that 
allows the Commission to exercise discretion whether to assess a penalty of 
$10,000 per day per violation if the facility holds another type of permit.  Since 
there were no documented human health or environmental impacts, the TCEQ 
staff assessed the penalty using the Programmatic Penalty Matrix in accordance 
with the TCEQ’s Penalty Policy.  The TCEQ staff assessed the penalty as monthly 
events because Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC continued to operate the concrete batch 
plant from September 12, 2022, through August 9, 2023.  Based on Texas Star 
Ready Mix, LLC’s compliance history, Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC did not have any 
previous violations in the past five years; therefore, the TCEQ staff did not apply a 
Compliance History enhancement in accordance with the TCEQ’s Penalty Policy.  
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The TCEQ staff determined there was no documentation indicating that 
culpability existed; therefore, the TCEQ staff did not apply a Culpability 
enhancement in accordance with the TCEQ’s Penalty Policy.  The TCEQ staff 
determined that Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC did not resolve the violation; therefore, 
the TCEQ staff did not recognize compliance and did not apply a Good Faith 
Efforts to Comply reduction to the assessed penalty in accordance with the TCEQ’s 
Penalty Policy.  The TCEQ staff considered Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC’s economic 
benefit; however, the Economic Benefit enhancement was evaluated, and no 
adjustment was made in accordance with the TCEQ’s Penalty Policy.  The TCEQ 
staff assessed a penalty in accordance with the TCEQ’s Penalty Policy and the 
amount was determined to be necessary to deter future violations. 

 
• Comment – Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC’s site is still under review for a water 

quality enforcement action, Order Docket No. 2021-1518-WQ-E.   
 
Response – The water quality violations addressed by Order Docket No. 2021-
1518-WQ-E are associated only to Pro-Crete Ready Mix, LLC and were referred to 
the TCEQ Litigation Division because settlement was not achieved.  Pro-Crete 
Ready Mix, LLC is no longer operating at this location and does not have a permit 
to operate. This enforcement action is on-going, and an Executive Director 
Preliminary Report and Petition was filed on April 8, 2024. 
 
Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC assumed the lease from Pro-Crete Ready Mix, LLC on 
January 14, 2021. Since Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC is not associated to the water 
quality violations addressed by Order Docket No. 2021-1518-WQ-E, the only 
pending enforcement action regarding Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC is for the air 
violations that were documented in the investigations conducted on September 12, 
2022 and on August 29, 2023 and are associated to this proposed order. 

 
• Comment – The TCEQ failed to take into account the impact on the community 

from cumulative risks of other industrial activity in the area.   
 
Response – A concrete batch plant has been operated at this location since July 27, 
1980 and has experienced seven ownership changes over the last 40 years.  The 
proposed order addresses the violations that were documented at Texas Star 
Ready Mix, LLC’s concrete batch plant which Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC are liable 
for. Since there were no documented human health or environmental impacts, the 
TCEQ staff assessed the penalty using the Programmatic Penalty Matrix in 
accordance with the TCEQ’s Penalty Policy.  TCEQ staff also took into account all 
appropriate factors to be considered in determining the administrative penalty, 
and the required technical requirements in the order are consistent with TCEQ’s 
rules and regulations.  During the review of the registration for Standard Permit 
Registration No. 171636, TCEQ staff will ensure that there are no air quality 
impacts to human health or the environment; otherwise, Standard Permit 
Registration No. 171636 may not be issued to Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC.  

 
• Comment – The TCEQ failed to consider the adverse impacts of the unpermitted 

operations to the surrounding environmental justice community in violation of 
Executive Order 12898. 
 
Response – During the investigations conducted on September 12, 2022, and 
August 29, 2023, there were no documented impacts to human health or the 
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environment.  However, TCEQ staff confirmed that Texas Star Ready Mix LLC 
temporarily ceased operating the concrete batch plant on August 9, 2023 and has 
not operated the concrete batch plant since that date.  Also, Federal Executive 
Orders are not binding on states. 
 

• Comment – The community should receive compensation for Texas Star Ready 
Mix, LLC’s unauthorized operations through the form of a supplemental 
environmental project. 

 
Response – A supplemental environmental project allows a respondent under 
enforcement to voluntarily participate in a project that enhances, protects, and 
improves the Texas environment.  Since supplemental environmental projects are 
not mandatory, Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC did not volunteer to participate in a 
supplemental environmental project.   
 

We appreciate your input into the enforcement action currently pending against Texas 
Star Ready Mix, LLC.  The proposed agreed order will be considered at an upcoming 
Commission Agenda meeting.  If you have further concerns or comments related to this 
order, please do not hesitate to call Ms. Yuliya Dunaway at (210) 403-4077 or at 
yuliya.dunaway@tceq.texas.gov.  For environmental complaints related to the current 
operating conditions at Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC, please contact our Dallas/Fort Worth 
Regional Office at (817) 588-5800. 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
 
 
Amy Settemeyer, Deputy Director 
Enforcement Division 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
  
AM/yd 
 
cc: Ms. Wendi Hammond, Staff Attorney, Legal Aid of NorthWest Texas, via e-mail 

Ms. Haley Varnadoe, Staff Attorney, Legal Aid of NorthWest Texas, via e-mail 
Manager, Air Section, Dallas/Fort Worth Regional Office, TCEQ 

 



Penalty Calculation Worksheet (PCW)
  Policy Revision 5 (January 28, 2021) PCW Revision February 11, 2021

DATES Assigned 28-Oct-2022
PCW 6-Sep-2023 Screening 3-Nov-2022 EPA Due

RESPONDENT/FACILITY INFORMATION
Respondent Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC

Reg. Ent. Ref. No. RN111648234
Facility/Site Region 4-Dallas/Fort Worth Major/Minor Source Minor

CASE INFORMATION
Enf./Case ID No. 63326 No. of Violations 2

Docket No. 2022-1557-AIR-E Order Type 1660
Media Program(s) Air Government/Non-Profit No

Multi-Media Enf. Coordinator Yuliya Dunaway
EC's Team Enforcement Team 2

Admin. Penalty $ Limit Minimum $0 Maximum $25,000

Penalty Calculation Section
TOTAL BASE PENALTY (Sum of violation base penalties) Subtotal 1 $30,000

ADJUSTMENTS (+/-) TO SUBTOTAL 1
Subtotals 2-7 are obtained by multiplying the Total Base Penalty (Subtotal 1) by the indicated percentage.
Compliance History 0.0% Adjustment Subtotals 2, 3, & 7 $0

Notes No adjustment for Compliance History.

Culpability No 0.0% Enhancement Subtotal 4 $0

Notes The Respondent does not meet the culpability criteria.

Good Faith Effort to Comply Total Adjustments Subtotal 5 $0

Economic Benefit 0.0% Enhancement* Subtotal 6 $0
Total EB Amounts $334   *Capped at the Total EB $ Amount

Estimated Cost of Compliance $5,900

SUM OF SUBTOTALS 1-7 Final Subtotal $30,000

OTHER FACTORS AS JUSTICE MAY REQUIRE 0.0% Adjustment $0
Reduces or enhances the Final Subtotal by the indicated percentage. 

Notes

Final Penalty Amount $30,000

STATUTORY LIMIT ADJUSTMENT Final Assessed Penalty $30,000

DEFERRAL 20.0% Reduction Adjustment -$6,000
Reduces the Final Assessed Penalty by the indicated percentage. 

Notes Deferral offered for expedited settlement.

PAYABLE PENALTY $24,000



Screening Date 3-Nov-2022 Docket No. 2022-1557-AIR-E PCW
Respondent Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC   Policy Revision 5 (January 28, 2021)

Case ID No. 63326 PCW Revision February 11, 2021

Reg. Ent. Reference No. RN111648234
Media Air

Enf. Coordinator Yuliya Dunaway

Compliance History Worksheet
>>   Compliance History Site  Enhancement (Subtotal 2)

Component Number of... Number Adjust.
Written notices of violation ("NOVs") with same or similar violations as those in the

0 0%
NOVs current enforcement action (number of NOVs meeting criteria )

Other written NOVs 0 0%
Any agreed final enforcement orders containing a denial of liability (number of

0 0%orders meeting criteria )

Orders Any adjudicated final enforcement orders, agreed final enforcement orders without
a denial of liability, or default orders of this state or the federal government, or 0 0%
any final prohibitory emergency orders issued by the commission

Any non-adjudicated final court judgments or consent decrees containing a denial
of liability of this state or the federal government (number of judgments or 0 0%

Judgments consent decrees meeting criteria )
and Consent 

Any adjudicated final court judgments and default judgments, or non-adjudicatedDecrees
final court judgments or consent decrees without a denial of liability, of this state 0 0%
or the federal government
Any criminal convictions of this state or the federal government (number of

Convictions 0 0%counts )
Emissions Chronic excessive emissions events (number of events ) 0 0%

Letters notifying the executive director of an intended audit conducted under the
Texas Environmental, Health, and Safety Audit Privilege Act, 74th Legislature, 0 0%
1995 (number of audits for which notices were submitted)

Audits
Disclosures of violations under the Texas Environmental, Health, and Safety Audit
Privilege Act, 74th Legislature, 1995 (number of audits for which violations were 0 0%
disclosed )

Environmental management systems in place for one year or more No 0%

Voluntary on-site compliance assessments conducted by the executive director
No 0%under a special assistance programOther

Participation in a voluntary pollution reduction program No 0%
Early compliance with, or offer of a product that meets future state or federal

No 0%government environmental requirements

Adjustment Percentage (Subtotal 2) 0%

>>   Repeat Violator (Subtotal 3)

No Adjustment Percentage (Subtotal 3) 0%

>>   Compliance History Person Classification (Subtotal 7)

Unclassified Adjustment Percentage (Subtotal 7) 0%

>>   Compliance History Summary

Compliance 
History No adjustment for Compliance History.
Notes

Total Compliance History Adjustment Percentage (Subtotals 2, 3, & 7) 0%
>> Final Compliance History Adjustment

Final Adjustment Percentage *capped at 100% 0%



Screening Date 3-Nov-2022 Docket No. 2022-1557-AIR-E PCW
Respondent Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC   Policy Revision 5 (January 28, 2021)

Case ID No. 63326 PCW Revision February 11, 2021

Reg. Ent. Reference No. RN111648234
Media Air

Enf. Coordinator Yuliya Dunaway
Violation Number 1

Rule Cite(s) 30 Tex. Admin. Code § 116.110(a) and Tex. Health & Safety Code §§ 382.0518(a) 
and 382.085(b)

Failed to obtain authorization prior to constructing or modifying a source of air 
contaminants.  Specifically, the Respondent operated a concrete batch plant prior Violation Description to obtaining the proper authorization from September 12, 2022 through 

November 3, 2022.

Base Penalty $25,000

>> Environmental, Property and Human Health Matrix
Harm

Release Major Moderate Minor
OR Actual

Potential Percent 0.0%

>>Programmatic Matrix
Falsification Major Moderate Minor

x Percent 10.0%

Matrix 100% of the rule requirements were not met.
Notes

Adjustment $22,500

$2,500

Violation Events

Number of Violation Events 2  52 Number of violation days

daily
weekly
monthly x
quarterly Violation Base Penalty $5,000

semiannual
annual

single event

Two monthly events are recommended from the September 12, 2022 investigation date to the 
November 3, 2022 screening date.

Good Faith Efforts to Comply 0.0% Reduction $0
Before NOE/NOV  NOE/NOV to EDPRP/Settlement Offer

Extraordinary

Ordinary
N/A x

The Respondent does not meet the good faith criteria 
Notes for this violation.

Violation Subtotal $5,000

Economic Benefit (EB) for this violation Statutory Limit Test

Estimated EB Amount $92 Violation Final Penalty Total $5,000

This violation Final Assessed Penalty (adjusted for limits) $5,000



Economic Benefit Worksheet
Respondent Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC
Case ID No. 63326

Reg. Ent. Reference No. RN111648234
Media Air Years of Percent InterestViolation No. 1 Depreciation

5.0 15
Item Cost Date Required Final Date Yrs Interest Saved Costs Saved EB Amount

Item Description

Delayed Costs
Equipment    0.00 $0 $0 $0

Buildings  0.00 $0 $0 $0
Other (as needed) 0.00 $0 $0 $0

Engineering/Construction 0.00 $0 $0 $0
Land 0.00 $0 n/a $0

Record Keeping System 0.00 $0 n/a $0
Training/Sampling 0.00 $0 n/a $0

Remediation/Disposal 0.00 $0 n/a $0
Permit Costs $900 12-Sep-2022 1-Oct-2024 2.05 $92 n/a $92

Other (as needed) 0.00 $0 n/a $0

Actual cost to obtain Standard Permit Registration No. 171636 to authorize the concrete batch plant and 
Notes for DELAYED costs the associated emissions at the Plant.  The Date Required is the investigation date and the Final Date is the 

estimated date of compliance.

Avoided Costs ANNUALIZE avoided costs before entering item (except for one-time avoided costs)
Disposal 0.00 $0 $0 $0

Personnel 0.00 $0 $0 $0
Inspection/Reporting/Sampling 0.00 $0 $0 $0

Supplies/Equipment 0.00 $0 $0 $0
Financial Assurance 0.00 $0 $0 $0

ONE-TIME avoided costs 0.00 $0 $0 $0
Other (as needed) 0.00 $0 $0 $0

Notes for AVOIDED costs

Approx. Cost of Compliance $900 TOTAL $92



Screening Date 3-Nov-2022 Docket No. 2022-1557-AIR-E PCW
Respondent Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC   Policy Revision 5 (January 28, 2021)

Case ID No. 63326 PCW Revision February 11, 2021

Reg. Ent. Reference No. RN111648234
Media Air

Enf. Coordinator Yuliya Dunaway
Violation Number 2

Rule Cite(s) 30 Tex. Admin. Code § 116.110(a) and Tex. Health & Safety Code §§ 382.0518(a) 
and 382.085(b)

Failed to obtain authorization prior to constructing or modifying a source of air 
contaminants.  Specifically, the Respondent operated a concrete batch plant prior to Violation Description obtaining the proper authorization from November 4, 2022 until temporarily ceasing 

operation on August 9, 2023.

Base Penalty $25,000

>> Environmental, Property and Human Health Matrix
Harm

Release Major Moderate Minor
OR Actual

Potential Percent 0.0%

>>Programmatic Matrix
Falsification Major Moderate Minor

x Percent 10.0%

Matrix 100% of the rule requirements were not met.
Notes

Adjustment $22,500

$2,500

Violation Events

Number of Violation Events 10  278 Number of violation days

daily
weekly
monthly x
quarterly Violation Base Penalty $25,000

semiannual
annual

single event

Ten monthly events are recommended from the November 4, 2022 non-compliance date to the 
August 9, 2023 date the concrete batch plant temporarily ceased operating.

Good Faith Efforts to Comply 0.0% Reduction $0
Before NOE/NOV  NOE/NOV to EDPRP/Settlement Offer

Extraordinary

Ordinary
N/A x

The Respondent does not meet the good faith criteria for 
Notes this violation.

Violation Subtotal $25,000

Economic Benefit (EB) for this violation Statutory Limit Test

Estimated EB Amount $0 Violation Final Penalty Total $25,000

This violation Final Assessed Penalty (adjusted for limits) $25,000



Economic Benefit Worksheet
Respondent Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC
Case ID No. 63326

Reg. Ent. Reference No. RN111648234
Media Air Years of Percent InterestViolation No. 2 Depreciation

5.0 15
Item Cost Date Required Final Date Yrs Interest Saved Costs Saved EB Amount

Item Description

Delayed Costs
Equipment    0.00 $0 $0 $0

Buildings  0.00 $0 $0 $0
Other (as needed) 0.00 $0 $0 $0

Engineering/Construction 0.00 $0 $0 $0
Land 0.00 $0 n/a $0

Record Keeping System 0.00 $0 n/a $0
Training/Sampling 0.00 $0 n/a $0

Remediation/Disposal 0.00 $0 n/a $0
Permit Costs 0.00 $0 n/a $0

Other (as needed) 0.00 $0 n/a $0

Notes for DELAYED costs See the Economic Benefit in Violation No. 1.

Avoided Costs ANNUALIZE avoided costs before entering item (except for one-time avoided costs)
Disposal 0.00 $0 $0 $0

Personnel 0.00 $0 $0 $0
Inspection/Reporting/Sampling 0.00 $0 $0 $0

Supplies/Equipment 0.00 $0 $0 $0
Financial Assurance 0.00 $0 $0 $0

ONE-TIME avoided costs 0.00 $0 $0 $0
Other (as needed) 0.00 $0 $0 $0

Notes for AVOIDED costs

Approx. Cost of Compliance $0 TOTAL $0
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The TCEQ is committed to accessibility.  
To request a more accessible version of this report, please contact the TCEQ Help Desk at (512) 239-4357. 
 

 Compliance History Report 
 
 Compliance History Report for CN605903574, RN111648234, Rating Year 2022 which includes Compliance History (CH)  
 components from September 1, 2017, through August 31, 2022. 
 
  
Customer, Respondent,  CN605903574, Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC Classification: UNCLASSIFIED Rating: ----- 
or Owner/Operator: 
Regulated Entity: RN111648234, TEXAS STAR READY MIX  Classification: UNCLASSIFIED Rating: ----- 
 CBP SN 78043 

Complexity Points:  2 Repeat Violator:  NO 

CH Group: 10 - Cement and Concrete Product Manufacturing  
Location: 4500 GREAT TRINITY FOREST WAY, DALLAS, DALLAS COUNTY, TEXAS  
TCEQ Region: REGION 04 - DFW METROPLEX  
ID Number(s): 
 AIR NEW SOURCE PERMITS REGISTRATION 39039 AIR NEW SOURCE PERMITS REGISTRATION 171636  
Compliance History Period: September 01, 2017 to August 31, 2022 Rating Year: 2022 Rating Date: 09/01/2022  
Date Compliance History Report Prepared: August 28, 2023  
Agency Decision Requiring Compliance History:  Enforcement  
Component Period Selected: August 28, 2018 to August 28, 2023  
TCEQ Staff Member to Contact for Additional Information Regarding This Compliance History.   
 Name: Yuliya Dunaway Phone:  (210) 403-4077 

 
Site and Owner/Operator History: 
 
1) Has the site been in existence and/or operation for the full five year compliance period? YES 
2) Has there been a (known) change in ownership/operator of the site during the compliance period? YES 
3) Who is the current owner/operator? Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC OWNER OPERATOR since 6/22/2021 
4) Who was/were the prior owner(s)/operator(s)? Pro-Crete Ready Mix, LLC, OWNER OPERATOR, 3/4/2019 to 6/21/2021 
 C-N-T REDI MIX, LLC, OWNER, 4/1/2015 to 3/3/2019  
 
Components (Multimedia) for the Site Are Listed in Sections A - J 
 
A. Final Orders, court judgments, and consent decrees: 
 N/A   
B. Criminal convictions: 
 N/A 
 
C. Chronic excessive emissions events: 
 N/A 
 
D. The approval dates of investigations (CCEDS Inv. Track. No.): 
 N/A 
 
 
E. Written notices of violations (NOV) (CCEDS Inv. Track. No.): 
 A notice of violation represents a written allegation of a violation of a specific regulatory requirement from the commission to a  
 regulated entity.  A notice of violation is not a final enforcement action, nor proof that a violation has actually occurred. 
 N/A 
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F. Environmental audits: 
 N/A 
 
G. Type of environmental management systems (EMSs): 
 N/A 
 
H. Voluntary on-site compliance assessment dates: 
 N/A 
 
 I. Participation in a voluntary pollution reduction program: 
 N/A 
 
J. Early compliance: 
 N/A 
 
Sites Outside of Texas: 
 N/A 



TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 
 

 

 

IN THE MATTER OF AN   
ENFORCEMENT ACTION  
CONCERNING  
TEXAS STAR READY MIX, LLC 
RN111648234 
 

§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 
§ 

BEFORE THE 
 
TEXAS COMMISSION ON 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 

AGREED ORDER 
DOCKET NO. 2022-1557-AIR-E 

I. JURISDICTION AND STIPULATIONS 

On   , the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality ("the 
Commission" or "TCEQ") considered this agreement of the parties, resolving an enforcement 
action regarding Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC (the "Respondent") under the authority of TEX. 
HEALTH & SAFETY CODE ch. 382 and TEX. WATER CODE ch. 7.  The Executive Director of the TCEQ, 
through the Enforcement Division, and the Respondent together stipulate that: 

1. The Respondent owns and operates a concrete batch plant located at 4500 Great Trinity 
Forest Way in Dallas, Dallas County, Texas (the "Plant").  The Plant consists or consisted 
of one or more sources as defined in TEX. HEALTH & SAFETY CODE § 382.003(12).   

2. The Executive Director and the Respondent agree that the TCEQ has jurisdiction to enter 
this Order pursuant to TEX. WATER CODE §§ 7.002, 7.051, and 7.073, and that the 
Respondent is subject to TCEQ’s jurisdiction.  The TCEQ has jurisdiction in this matter 
pursuant to TEX. WATER CODE § 5.013 because it alleges violations of TEX. HEALTH & SAFETY 

CODE ch. 382 and the rules of the TCEQ.   

3. The occurrence of any violation is in dispute and the entry of this Order shall not 
constitute an admission by the Respondent of any violation alleged in Section II 
("Allegations"), nor of any statute or rule. 

4. An administrative penalty in the amount of $30,000 is assessed by the Commission in 
settlement of the violations alleged in Section II ("Allegations").  The Revenue Operations 
Section of TCEQ's Financial Administration Division reviewed financial documentation 
submitted by the Respondent and determined that the Respondent is unable to pay all 
or part of the penalty.  Therefore, $26,400 of the penalty is deferred contingent upon 
the Respondent's compliance with all the terms of this Order and shall be waived only 
upon full compliance with this Order.  If the Respondent fails to comply with any 
requirement of this Order, including any payment schedule, the Executive Director may 
require the Respondent to pay all or part of the deferred penalty.  

The Respondent paid $100 of the undeferred penalty.  The remaining amount of $3,500 
of the undeferred penalty shall be paid in 35 monthly payments of $100 each.  The first 
monthly payment shall be paid within 30 days after the effective date of this Order.  The 
subsequent payments shall each be paid not later than 30 days following the due date of 
the previous payment until the penalty is paid in full.  If the Respondent fails to comply 
with the payment requirements of this Order, including the payment schedule, the 



Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC 
DOCKET NO. 2022-1557-AIR-E 
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Executive Director may accelerate the maturity of the remaining installments, in which 
event the unpaid balance shall become immediately due and payable without demand or 
notice.  The Respondent's failure to meet the payment schedule of this Order and/or the 
acceleration of any remaining balance constitutes the failure by the Respondent to 
timely and satisfactorily comply with all the terms of this Order and the Executive 
Director may demand payment of all or part of the deferred penalty. 

5. The Executive Director and the Respondent agree on a settlement of the matters alleged 
in this enforcement action, subject to final approval in accordance with 30 TEX. ADMIN. 
CODE § 70.10(a).  Any notice and procedures, which might otherwise be authorized or 
required in this action, are waived in the interest of a more timely resolution of the 
matter.  

6. The Executive Director may, without further notice or hearing, refer this matter to the 
Office of the Attorney General of the State of Texas ("OAG") for further enforcement 
proceedings if the Executive Director determines that the Respondent has not complied 
with one or more of the terms or conditions in this Order.  

7. This Order represents the complete and fully integrated agreement of the parties.  The 
provisions of this Order are deemed severable and, if a court of competent jurisdiction 
or other appropriate authority deems any provision of this Order unenforceable, the 
remaining provisions shall be valid and enforceable. 

8. This Order shall terminate five years from its effective date or upon compliance with all 
the terms and conditions set forth in this Order, whichever is later. 

9. The Executive Director recognizes that the Respondent implemented the following 
corrective measures at the Plant: 

a. On January 30, 2023, submitted a registration for Standard Permit Registration 
No. 171636 to authorize the concrete batch plant and the associated emissions 
at the Plant; and 
 

b. On August 9, 2023, temporarily ceased operating the concrete batch plant. 

II. ALLEGATIONS 

During investigations at the Plant conducted on September 12, 2022 and August 29, 2023, 
investigators documented that the Respondent failed to obtain authorization prior to 
constructing or modifying a source of air contaminants, in violation of 30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE 
§ 116.110(a) and TEX. HEALTH & SAFETY CODE §§ 382.0518(a) and 382.085(b).  Specifically, the 
Respondent operated a concrete batch plant prior to obtaining the proper authorization from 
September 12, 2022 until temporarily ceasing operation on August 9, 2023. 

III. DENIALS 

The Respondent generally denies each allegation in Section II ("Allegations"). 

IV. ORDERING PROVISIONS 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE TEXAS COMMISSION ON ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ORDERS that: 
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1. The Respondent is assessed a penalty as set forth in Section I, Paragraph No. 4.  The 
payment of this penalty and the Respondent’s compliance with all of the requirements 
set forth in this Order resolve only the allegations in Section II.  The Commission shall 
not be constrained in any manner from requiring corrective action or penalties for 
violations which are not raised here.  Penalty payments shall be made payable to "TCEQ" 
and shall be sent with the notation "Re: Texas Star Ready Mix, LLC, Docket No. 2022-
1557-AIR-E" to: 

Financial Administration Division, Revenue Operations Section 
Attention: Cashier’s Office, MC 214 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
P.O. Box 13088 
Austin, Texas 78711-3088 

2. The Respondent shall undertake the following technical requirements at the Plant:  

a. Immediately upon the effective date of this Order, cease operating until the 
proper authorization for the concrete batch plant has been obtained in 
accordance with 30 TEX. ADMIN. CODE § 116.110(a). 

b. Within 15 days after the effective date of this Order, submit written certification 
demonstrating compliance with Ordering Provision No. 2.a., as described in 
Ordering Provision No. 2.d. 

c. Respond completely and adequately, as determined by the TCEQ, to all requests 
for information concerning the registration for Standard Permit Registration No. 
171636 within any deadlines specified in writing. 

d. Within 180 days after the effective date of this Order, submit written 
certification that either the authorization has been obtained or that operations 
of the concrete batch plant have permanently ceased, and include detailed 
supporting documentation including photographs, receipts, and/or other 
records to demonstrate compliance.  The certification shall be signed by the 
Respondent and shall include the following certification language: 

"I certify under penalty of law that I have personally examined 
and am familiar with the information submitted and all attached 
documents, and that based on my inquiry of those individuals 
immediately responsible for obtaining the information, I believe 
that the submitted information is true, accurate and complete.  I 
am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false 
information, including the possibility of fines and imprisonment 
for knowing violations." 

The certification shall be submitted to: 

Enforcement Division, MC 149A 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
P.O. Box 13087 
Austin, Texas 78711-3087 
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with a copy to: 

Air Section Manager 
Dallas/Fort Worth Regional Office 
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality 
2309 Gravel Drive 
Fort Worth, Texas 76118-6951 

and a copy to: 
 
Air Program Manager 
City of Dallas 
Office of Enviromental Quality & Sustainability 
1500 Marilla Street, 7AN 
Dallas, Texas 75201 

3. All relief not expressly granted in this Order is denied. 

4. The duties and provisions imposed by this Order shall apply to and be binding upon the 
Respondent.  The Respondent is ordered to give notice of this Order to personnel who 
maintain day-to-day control over the Plant operations referenced in this Order. 

5. If the Respondent fails to comply with any of the Ordering Provisions in this Order 
within the prescribed schedules, and that failure is caused solely by an act of God, war, 
strike, riot, or other catastrophe, the Respondent’s failure to comply is not a violation of 
this Order.  The Respondent shall have the burden of establishing to the Executive 
Director's satisfaction that such an event has occurred.  The Respondent shall notify the 
Executive Director within seven days after the Respondent becomes aware of a delaying 
event and shall take all reasonable measures to mitigate and minimize any delay. 

6. The Executive Director may grant an extension of any deadline in this Order or in any 
plan, report, or other document submitted pursuant to this Order, upon a written and 
substantiated showing of good cause.  All requests for extensions by the Respondent 
shall be made in writing to the Executive Director.  Extensions are not effective until the 
Respondent receives written approval from the Executive Director.  The determination 
of what constitutes good cause rests solely with the Executive Director.  Extension 
requests shall be sent to the Enforcement Division at the address listed above. 

7. This Order, issued by the Commission, shall not be admissible against the Respondent 
in a civil proceeding, unless the proceeding is brought by the OAG to: (1) enforce the 
terms of this Order; or (2) pursue violations of a statute within the Commission’s 
jurisdiction, or of a rule adopted or an order or permit issued by the Commission under 
such a statute. 

8. This Order may be executed in separate and multiple counterparts, which together shall 
constitute a single instrument.  Any page of this Order may be copied, scanned, 
digitized, converted to electronic portable document format ("pdf"), or otherwise 
reproduced and may be transmitted by digital or electronic transmission, including but 
not limited to facsimile transmission and electronic mail.  Any signature affixed to this 
Order shall constitute an original signature for all purposes and may be used, filed, 
substituted, or issued for any purpose for which an original signature could be used.  
The term "signature" shall include manual signatures and true and accurate 
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reproductions of manual signatures created, executed, endorsed, adopted, or authorized 
by the person or persons to whom the signatures are attributable.  Signatures may be 
copied or reproduced digitally, electronically, by photocopying, engraving, imprinting, 
lithographing, electronic mail, facsimile transmission, stamping, or any other means or 
process which the Executive Director deems acceptable.  In this paragraph exclusively, 
the terms: electronic transmission, owner, person, writing, and written, shall have the 
meanings assigned to them under TEX. BUS. ORG. CODE § 1.002. 

9. The effective date of this Order is the date it is signed by the Commission.  A copy of 
this fully executed Order shall be provided to each of the parties.   

 
  
 



4/15/2024
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